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CORPORATE INFORMATION

NEER
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Auditor

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
35/F, One Pacific Place

88 Queensway

Hong Kong

Legal Advisers

As to Hong Kong Laws:

Lau, Horton & Wise LLP in Association with
CMS Hasche Sigle, Hong Kong LLP

8th Floor, Nexxus Building

41 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong

As to People’s Republic of China Laws:
Commerce & Finance Law Offices

6/F, NCIl Tower

A12 Jianguomenwai Avenue

Chaoyang District

Beijing

China

As to Cayman Islands Laws:

Maples and Calder (Hong Kong) LLP
53rd Floor, The Center

99 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong

Registered Office
P.O. Box 309, Ugland House
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman Islands
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued)
REEM ()

Principal Place of Business

Head Office in China

Office building next to E’Lang Pu Leisure Square
Hongguo Economic Development Area
Liupanshui City, Guizhou Province, China

Hong Kong Office
Unit 10083, 10th Floor
Tower 2, Lippo Centre
89 Queensway

Hong Kong

Cayman Islands Principal Share
Registrar and Transfer Office
Maples Fund Services (Cayman) Limited

P.O. Box 1093, Boundary Hall

Cricket Square, Grand Cayman

KY1-1102, Cayman Islands

Hong Kong Branch Share
Registrar and Transfer Office
Tricor Investor Services Limited

17/F, Far East Finance Centre

16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

Principal Bankers

Bank of China Limited

Bank of Guiyang Co. Ltd.

Bank of Communications Co., Limited, Hong Kong

Place of Listing and Stock Code
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited/2798

Company’s Website

www.perennialenergy.hk
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
an)
MBREE
For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A1BLEE
2021 2022 2023
20214F 20224 20234
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000)
(AREETFIT) (AR®EFT) (AR#F )
Revenue Wz 1,541,399 1,784,033 1,715,623
Gross profit Sl 918,483 1,117,635 944,290
Gross profit margin FEH=E 59.6% 62.6% 55.0%
Profit and total comprehensive FREMNREEB AL

income for the year 301,770 743,955 504,193
Basic earnings per Share (RMB cents) S EARBH(ARED) 18.86 46.50 31.51
Dividend per Share (Proposed) TSRS (R

(HK cents) Gz 3.75 12.50 5.00
Return on equity! ek B 17.1% 30.2% 18.1%
Return on assets® BEDHREE 9.3% 18.2% 11.6%
Net cash from operations BEEHREFRE 553,428 180,742 213,378

As at 31 December
M12831H
2021 2022 2023
20214 20224 20234
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000)
(AREFT) (AR®EFT) (AR®T )
Total assets HWEE 3,237,621 4,080,004 4,329,247
of which: Hr

Bank balances and cash WITHEBRRIRS 180,854 202,057 93,712

Trade and bills receivables B 5 e TE M e ik 393,003 871,550 789,003
Total liabilities meE 1,469,877 1,617,361 1,541,071

of which: Hr -

Bank and other borrowings RITRE MK 522,015 785,972 913,854
Total equity B 1,767,744 2,462,643 2,788,176
Number of shares in issue 2ETRMNEE (BER)

(million shares) 1,600 1,600 1,600
Net assets per Share (RMB) BEREEFEARE) 1.105 1.539 1.743
Gearing ratio® EEAMELERO 29.5% 31.9% 32.8%
Notes: FEE - N N N
1) Return on equity is calculated by profit and total comprehensive income for (1) *Eﬁ?@f_&%;ﬁ?%i P I B 2 T MR 8RR

the year over total equity. Ffﬁ%ﬁ@t&ﬁa‘l‘%ﬁ%ﬁ .
@ Return on assets is calculated by profit and total comprehensive income for @) ﬁ%@fﬁ ‘Ié*)_ﬁiﬁz/i pr P PNk
the year over total assets. BRIA wEEESE " )
@) Gearing ratio is calculated by bank and other borrowing over total equity. (©)) AEARLTTHRRIT REMERER AR

MRS HE -



Perennial Energy Holdings Limited A = EseRIER AR D T ) st

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (Continued)
MBRE(E)

Revenue

s

For the year ended 31 December

HZE12A311LFE

Gross profit and gross profit margin
EFRERNZE
For the year ended 31 December

HE12A31BLEE

(RMB’000,000) (RMB’000,000)
(ANREBEET) (AR¥EBET) (%)
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£ EFx
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year Dividend per share
FREMNREZEBABZE BREE
For the year ended 31 December For the year ended 31 December
(RMB'000,000) HZE12B31L5E (HK cents) HZE12A3181LEE
(ARBEET) (Al
800 15
700
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o) ) s ) )
100
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Net assets Bank balances and cash and gearing ratio
EEFE RITHEMBRBEREERBLE
As at 31 December As at 31 December
M2A31H M12A31H
(RMB’000,000) (RMB’000,000)
(ANREEETT) (AR¥EBET) (%)
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2%5/”‘/. 30
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) 10
500 ) ) o ) ] 5
0 0
2020 2022 2023 2021 2022 2023
B Bank balances and cash ~ —@— Gearing ratio
RITHEB RIS BEABLE
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Dear Shareholders,

I would like to express my gratitude for your interest in and support for
Perennial Energy Holdings Limited (“Perennial Energy” or the “Company”).
Over the past year, the Company sought opportunities in a revitalised
market environment to drive steady business growth amidst continuous
improvement in the macroeconomic conditions and steady recovery of
industrial enterprises from the pandemic. On behalf of the board of directors
of the Company (the “Board”), | am pleased to present to our shareholders
the results and financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2023 (the “year under review”).

Industry Review

In 20283, global coal demand reached a record high, exceeding 8.5 billion
tonnes. As a major coal producer and consumer, China accounted for
approximately half of the global coal output, with the demand from
industries such as coal-fired power generation and steel which played a
pivotal role in sustaining such position. Over the past year, according to
the data released by the National Bureau of Statistics, China’s raw coal
production from industrial enterprises above designated size reached 4.66
billion tonnes, representing a growth of 2.9% year-on-year (“YoY”), which
gave irresistible momentum to economic development.

As a southwestern province, Guizhou has made significant progress
in economic development in recent years with the support of national
policies. In 2023, following the easing of measures to control the COVID-19
pandemic, Guizhou experienced a gradual recovery and positive economic
growth, with a 4.9% growth in GDP for the year, sustaining a strong
momentum towards high-quality development. Massive investments in
infrastructure construction, including projects such as high-speed railways
and highways, brought about a huge demand for coking coal, an important
raw material for steelmaking.

In terms of price fluctuations, coal prices in 2023 experienced a moderate
decline from the high prices caused by coal shortages and supply
constraints in 2022. Such fluctuations were considered normal market
adjustments within a reasonable range and did not have a significant impact
on the production and business operations of the Company.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (Continued)
ETRWEE(E)

Business Review

The Company mainly owns and operates three underground coal mines,
namely Hongguo Coal Mine, Baogushan Coal Mine, and Xiejiahegou Coal
Mine, in Panzhou City, Guizhou Province, of which the permitted annual
production capacity of each of Hongguo Coal Mine and Baogushan Coal
Mine is 600,000 tonnes respectively, while the permitted annual production
capacity of Xiejiahegou Coal Mine is 450,000 tonnes.

During the year under review, raw coal production of the Group was
approximately 1,541,544 tonnes, representing an increase of approximately
11.5% over approximately 1,382,519 tonnes last year. Total sales volume
of coal products from the Group’s three self-operated underground coal
mines was approximately 1,224,959 tonnes, representing an increase of
approximately 14.8% as compared to approximately 1,066,877 tonnes last
year.

The annual average selling price of clean coal of the Group was
approximately RMB1,924.41 per tonne, representing a decrease of
approximately 18.0% over approximately RMB2,347.09 last year, due to the
overall market fluctuations in coal prices. As a result, despite a significant
increase in both coal production and sales volume, the Group’s revenue
experienced a slight decline. The Group recorded revenue of approximately
RMB1,715.6 million during the year under review, representing a decrease
of approximately 3.8% over approximately RMB1,784.0 million last year.
Gross profit and gross profit margin were approximately RMB944.3
million and approximately 55.0% respectively, representing a decrease of
approximately 15.5% and 7.6 percentage points respectively over last year.

£ AE)

KRB E2HA ML

EMEBMNTH=
B TBEE - BIAT RBEHE - BL A LBEeE - R
KB - HRAREERESALEES B
Y ¥ A] 4F EE £E /600,000 - 1 & 500 8 5 A
1 A] 4F EE Bt £5450,0000 ©

REBEFE AEEREEE41,541,544
WE - 85 2 #91,382,519MF £ 3R #4J11.5% ©
AEEAEN @B TEBEENERE
MhAA S E B 41,204,950 - BEFE 24
1,066,877 L5R4714.8% ©

REBEEFREFTHEBEEBEHARYE
1,924.4170 * M EF 2 AR#)2,347.097T7
L#18.0% - X B MISEBERERTZE -
Hit - AEEERESHBFESHNE L
7t BEREWRDE/NMEEE - AREE R
FEHBF/UEHARB17TI56BET BE
FZHUAREA,784.08 BT T %5493.8% + £
FIMEMED R BHARKI4.3FE TR
55.0% * MEAF D HI TFE4115.5% 7.6 8 5
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (Continued)
FEREE(E)
Prospects RE

According to the industry development report from the China National
Coal Association, there is still some room for slight growth in China’s coal
demand over a certain period. In the future, coal will continue to play a role as
a safeguard for energy security and remain an important “anchor”. Starting
from 2024, China will resume tariff policies on coal imports from certain
countries and regions, which will weaken the price advantage of imported
coal, especially coking coal, thus benefiting domestic coal enterprises.

From a regional development perspective, infrastructure (roads, bridges,
etc.) and new infrastructure (5G base stations, data centres, etc.) will
continue to be the focus for Guizhou to promote local economic growth in
line with the national development agenda in the coming years. According to
the instructions at the Guizhou Province Transportation Work Conference,
in 2024, the province will accelerate the progress of 13 highway projects,
totaling 1,214 kilometers of road construction. These plans and data
indicate an increasing demand for coking coal for steelmaking and market
opportunities for coal enterprises.

In line with the national industrial development goals of 1&l Integration
(informationisation and intelligentisation) and “Dual Carbon” (peak carbon
emissions by 2030 and achievement of carbon neutrality by 2060) goal,
coal enterprises will embrace new opportunities and confront challenges in
the new era. In terms of “I&l Integration”, coal enterprises will adopt more
advanced technologies and equipment, and apply intelligent systems to
improve production efficiency and reduce costs. In terms of achieving “Dual
Carbon” goal, coal enterprises will strive to reduce environmental pollution
and carbon emissions by adopting cleaner combustion technologies and
implementing emission control measures. This will promote the efficient
utilisation of coal resources and environmentally friendly development.

We will continue to adhere to a prudent and optimistic approach to our
development as well as actively seizing opportunities and bravely facing
challenges. We will closely monitor policy changes and market fluctuations
and adjust our own operations accordingly. We will prioritise production
safety and customer demands, actively seek transformations towards
smarter and greener approach, carefully organise production and make
efforts to gain more development opportunities.

PREIRR TEHENTTERRBEEL - HE
BRRFTKEE —ERFHARNE/MEERZER -
R BRADAE LS RERERLROER - K
ER—REZW[ERA] - 202452 - HE
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B B ) M EZE (5GEY - BURTLE)
MEEREMNBABRKRE « #REMF LK
WEL - BRESMNEXBIEE LHETR
2024%F - 2E B MRASEAKIEE « £5
1,214 0 BRYE IR IERHETR o B LR BB EUE
A% - BERREAERENTRER M
BRI TIGHE o

FREEREZEME](ZELEEaEL) M
[ 1% | (2030 E IR AR ELE - 2060F I ik A1)
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BB ERgkE - [k A m - kX BERA
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EEME  BRIERAR - EERIEHiR]IBEEAH
- R A BUI R D RIE S R B
R+ ERENEE B R B0 HRIGE S AN Bk e Il FE B -
HEBE R E RN S FI AR R TR ER

BPSEERA—BEARERLENERS
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BERB(CEMISITIENE - W2 BB 5K
TEHARE - HPIERFIELEELZREPEH R
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DHEBLE  RESEZNERKEMELS
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (Continued)
EREHmEE(E)

Acknowledgement

With support of the policies of government departments at all levels,
continuous trust from our business partners, and the concerted efforts of
our entire employees, | firmly believe that we will be able to continuously
achieve better business results in the coming year. | would like to express
my utmost appreciation for the support and assistance from various sectors
to the Group.

Yu Bangping
Chairman of the Board

Hong Kong, 21 March 2024
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS

The Company’s directors (the “Directors”) and senior management of the
Group as at 21 March 2024 are as follows:

Directors

Mr. Yu Bangping, aged 55, the Chairman and executive Director of the
Company, joined the Group in 1990 and is a founder of the Group. He is also
the chairman of the nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”). Mr. Yu was the Chief Executive Officer of the Company from
March 2018 to March 2023. He is also a director of &/ A AL RFTEE
A BR A 7] (Guizhou Jiutai Bangda Energy Development Co., Ltd*) (“Jiutai
Bangda”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. He is responsible
for the overall management and strategic planning and development of the
Group, including day-to-day business management, overseeing sales and
marketing matters as well as managing external relationships with business
partners.

Mr. Yu Bangping has more than 32 years of experience in the coal mining
industry. He has acted as the legal representative of both Hongguo Coal
Mine and Baogushan Coal Mine since the acquisition of such mines.

Apart from Mr. Yu Bangping’s contributions to the Group, he was appointed
as the vice president of the township enterprises association in Liupanshui
in 2004, appointed as a deputy of the National People’s Congress of
Pan county in March 2005, recognised as a “Model Labourer” by the
Liupanshui township in April 2005, recognised as the 2008 outstanding
private entrepreneur in Guizhou Province, recognised as one of the top
10 influential entrepreneurs in 2009, recognised as the “Guizhou Star
of Entrepreneurship” in 2010 and recognised as a “Model Labourer” in
Guizhou in April 2010. Mr. Yu Bangping has also been recognised for his
social contributions to his community. He was recognised for his individual
support of social welfare in April 2007, recognised for his outstanding
contributions for disaster relief in April 2008 and recognised as the “Moral
Model” for helping others in Liupanshui in November 2010.

£ & % 2 (Guizhou

Province Professional Secondary School*) majoring in underground

Mr. Yu Bangping graduated from & JI| & ¥ i@
mining. He is the father of Mr. Yu Zhilong, an executive Director and the

Chief Executive Officer of the Company and Mr. Yu Hu, the Vice President
(Business Development) of the Company.

*  For identification purpose only
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS (Continued)

BEhafEREREFE(E)

Mr. Yu Zhilong, aged 36, was appointed as executive Director and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company in September 2019 and April 2023
respectively. He is also a director and the legal representative of Z /1 & B3
AR BBR AR (Guizhou Fu Bangda Consultancy Services Co., Ltd.*), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. He was the manager of
EMARBERERFAZE B R A RIEED 25 (Guizhou Jiutai Bangda Energy
Development Co., Ltd. Electricity and Machinery Branch*), the branch
office of an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, from July
2016 to March 2023. He graduated from Guizhou University and holds a
bachelor’s degree in business management. He also obtained a bachelor’s
degree in mining engineering awarded by # B#E% X2 (China University of
Mining and Technology®). Mr. Yu Zhilong is the son of Mr. Yu Bangping, the
Chairman of the Company and the brother of Mr. Yu Hu, the Vice President
(Business Development) of the Company.

Mr. Li Xuezhong, aged 55, joined the Group in 2018 and was appointed
as executive Director and the Chief Operating Officer of the Group in
March 2018 and April 2019 respectively. Mr. Li assists the Chief Executive
Officer in handling PRC legal matters of the Group. He has taken senior
management roles in different enterprises in China and possesses years
of experience in corporate management. Mr. Li holds a bachelor’s degree
in economics awarded by Shaanxi Institute of Finance and Economics.
He obtained his accountant qualification from Ministry of Personnel of the
People’s Republic of China.

Mr. Lau Kai Ming, aged 40, joined the Group in March 2021 as the Chief
Financial Officer and was appointed as executive Director in June 2022.
Mr. Lau is also a member of the remuneration committee of the Company
(the “Remuneration Committee”). He also acts as a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lau holds a bachelor’s degree in
commerce awarded by Curtin University of Technology and master’s degree
in science awarded by City University of Hong Kong and Manchester
Metropolitan University respectively. He is a member of each of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the CPA Australia, The
Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute, The Chartered Governance
Institute and the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants. Mr. Lau
has extensive experience in financial management, auditing and company
secretarial matters. Prior to joining the Group, he served as the financial
controller of a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS (Continued)

Mr. Yu Xiao, aged 41, was appointed as executive Director in September
2019. He acted as the deputy general manager of &M HELERMABE AR A
7] (Guizhou Bangda Energy Development Co., Ltd.*) (“Guizhou Bangda”)
from March 2017 to February 2019. Mr. Yu Xiao was appointed as the chief
executive officer of Jiutai Bangda in March 2019. He was appointed to
certain posts including accounting clerk, account manager and chief
accountant in finance department of & M B X e E(L BR & T A A
(Guizhou Qiangui Tianneng Coking Co., Ltd.*) from September 2006 to
February 2017. Mr. Yu Xiao currently acts as a committee member of #£8
& F {Z B & {EB +& (Pan County Rural Credit Union*). He graduated from
Guizhou University and holds a bachelor’s degree in management.

Mr. Fong Wai Ho, aged 43, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director in November 2018. He is also the chairman of each of the audit
committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) and the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee. Mr. Fong has
19 years of experience in auditing and business advisory services. He is
the founder and practitioner of UBC & Co., Certified Public Accountants
from March 2013 to present. Mr. Fong was the practicing director of
Andes Glacier CPA Limited from March 2017 to March 2020. He holds a
bachelor’s degree in business administration (Honours) in accountancy
and management information systems awarded by City University of Hong
Kong. Mr. Fong is a practicing Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong,
a member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants as well as
a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is a
member of the Chartered Professional Accountants of British Columbia and
the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada, respectively.

Mr. Fong is currently an independent non-executive director of Great Wall
Terroir Holdings Limited (stock code: 524), the shares of which are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He was an independent non-
executive director of Global Sweeteners Holdings Limited (stock code:
3889) from December 2018 to January 2024, the shares of which are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He was also an independent
non-executive director of CT Environmental Group Limited from August
2020 to September 2021, the shares of which were delisted from the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange with effect from 10 September 2021.

*  For identification purpose only
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS (Continued)

BEhafEREREFE(E)

Mr. Punnya Niraan De Silva, aged 39, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in November 2018. Mr. De Silva is also a member
of each of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee. He
has over 16 years of experience in the financial industry. From November
2017 to present, Mr. De Silva worked as a consultant for Ho Chi Minh City
Development Joint Stock Commercial Bank. He holds a bachelor’s degree
in commerce and economics awarded by Monash University Australia.

Ms. Cheung Suet Ting, Samantha, aged 41, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in November 2018. Ms. Cheung is also
a member of each of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee.
She has over 11 years of experience in private equity investments and
mergers and acquisitions. From November 2017 to May 2019, Ms. Cheung
worked as finance executive at Breakthrough Innovation Lab, a venture
builder of many promising and innovative tech startups. From May 2019
to May 2023, she acted as investment manager of Animoca Brands
Corporation Limited. She is currently the manager of SinoPac Securities
(Asia) Limited. Ms. Cheung holds a bachelor’s degree in economics and
mathematics awarded by Brandeis University.

Mr. Wang Xiufeng, aged 66, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in September 2019. He has over 34 years’
experience in coal mining industry. Mr. Wang had worked in & /M4 EiEL5
ift7EbT (Guizhou Coal Mine Design and Research Institute®) (“Guizhou Coal
Mine Institute”) and has been the mine design project leader in various coal
mines. He is currently the legal representative of & /NEt# TIERMERE
f£/2 ) (Guizhou Lianxin Engineering Technology Co., Ltd.*). Mr. Wang was
the chairman of the board of directors and legal representative of & /I /&
®i0E TR AR E T2 A (Guizhou Coal Mine Geological Engineering Co.,
Ltd.*) from December 2012 to April 2018. He was also the vice president of
Guizhou Coal Mine Institute from March 2003 to April 2018. Mr. Wang was
the senior engineer of Guizhou Coal Mine Institute from March 1997 to April
2018. He obtained a certificate of Registered Mining Mineral Exploration &
Design Engineer from the Ministry of Construction of the People’s Republic
of China.

Mr. Wang is currently an independent non-executive director of Feishang
Anthracite Resources Limited (stock code: 1738), the shares of which
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He graduated from
Chongqging University and holds a bachelor’s degree in underground coal
mining.

*

For identification purpose only
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS (Continued)

Senior Management

Mr. Yu Hu, aged 33, joined the Group as the Vice President (Business
Development) in March 2024. He graduated from &3 B 2 5T 28T (Zunyi
Vocational and Technical College) majors in mechatronics technology.
Mr. Yu Hu possesses extensive experience in areas includes real estate
development, hotel management and investment decision making. He is
currently serves as the chairman of the board of director of & /i FiE & i
EM#ABRAR] (Guizhou Bangda Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.*) and
the executive director of #3518 #8/)5 B R A 7] (Qujing Fubang Hotel Co.,
Ltd.”). He is the son of Mr. Yu Bangping, the Chairman and the executive
Director, and the brother of Mr. Yu Zhilong, the executive Director and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

Mr. Liu Yongfu, aged 52, joined the Group in 2017 and has been the
Financial Director since April 2017. Mr. Liu is responsible for the financial
management of the Group. From April 2017 to present, he has acted as
financial controller at Jiutai Bangda. Mr. Liu obtained the qualification as
certified public accountant in China. He obtained the qualification as an
intermediate accountant in China. Mr. Liu obtained a diploma in material
management from & Jl & ¥ & £ & (Guizhou Materials School*). He
graduated from R E R (Central Party School*) with diploma in economic
management.

Mr. Yu Honggang, aged 50, joined the Group in 2008 and has been the
General Manager of the Group since September 2016. Mr. Yu is responsible
for the Group’s production and safety management. From 2015 to
present, He has been the general manager of the Hongguo Coal Mine and
Baogushan Coal Mine. From 2008 to 2015, Mr. Yu worked at Hongguo Coal
Mine during which he acted as chief of Hongguo Coal Mine from 2013 to
2015. Mr. Yu holds a bachelor’s degree in coal mining technology awarded
by Hunan University of Science and Technology. He also graduated from &
MA LB S EEEZR (Guizhou Province Professional Secondary School*)

majoring in mining technology.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS (Continued)

BEhafEREREFE(E)

Mr. Tong Yu, aged 50, joined the Group in 2017 and has been the Deputy
General Manager since June 2017. Mr. Tong is responsible for the sales and
business development of the Group. He has over 18 years of experience in
the coal mining industry. From June 2017 to present, Mr. Tong has acted
as deputy general manager of Jiutai Bangda. He graduated from Guizhou
University with a diploma in business management. Mr. Tong also obtained
a bachelor’s degree in marketing at Xinan University. He received his
qualification certificate of specialty and technology specializing in business
economics.

Mr. Wan Weiping, aged 61, joined the Group in 2009 and has been the
Chief Engineer and Technical Manager since September 2016. Mr. Wan is
responsible for the technical supervision of the Group. He graduated from
BIEXET (Xiangtan Mining Institute*) (now known as the Hunan University
of Science and Technology) with a bachelor’s degree in engineering. Mr.
Wan was qualified the professional technical position as senior engineer by
the personnel department of Guizhou Province.

Mr. Wang Long, aged 49, joined the Group in 2011 and has been the Chief
Accountant since September 2016. Mr. Wang is responsible for accounting
supervision of the Group. From September 2016 to present, he has worked
in the financial affairs department of Jiutai Bangda as Chief Accountant.
Mr. Wang holds a diploma in economics and bank management. He was
qualified as registered accountant.

*  For identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Industry Review

With the government lifting all COVID-19 restrictions, China officially entered
into the post-pandemic era in 2023. However, the trajectory of China’s
economic development did not soar immediately upon the reopening;
instead, it experienced a series of ups and downs, and concluded with a
5.2% YoY GDP growth, just attaining the objective set at the outset of the
year. On the one hand, export and real estate, two former growth engines,
have shown lacklustre performance, both experiencing declines in growth
rate. On the other hand, the added value of China’s industrial enterprises
above the designated size (enterprises with revenue from the principal
business over RMB20 million) increased by 4.6% compared to the year
before, providing strong support for the overall economy. According to
statistics, the country’s crude steel production reached 1,019.08 million
tonnes, slightly increased when compared to the previous year, showing a
solid demand in the coking coal market.

From a provincial perspective, Guizhou’s economic development has also
exhibited steady growth and has been gradually recovering following the
conclusion of the pandemic with a 4.9% YoY growth rate recorded for 2023.
As a southwestern province with ample potential, Guizhou accelerated
its infrastructure construction and investment attraction in 2023, with a
high-speed rail network reaching a total amount of 1,808 kilometres and
industrial investment growing by 15.5%.

As the region’s industry continued to grow and the need for infrastructure and
steel persisted, the demand for coking coal remained strong for the year.
Despite a downturn in coal prices compared to the previous year’s peak
level, the coal industry still provides market opportunities for production and
development.

BB W RO

1TEEE
BEERAF2EEUE COVID-19 )R 4| » R ER®
2023F F N EABREIFRAL o A - REIL
BEE BRI A E EHF R BT - TR
FE—ZRFHER - AR A5.2% BN A EEE
FILLIERWE @ BENRENBIEFT - —7
| HOREHEMAZERILRSIERRS
7 BREETE - BE—HHE - PEEE
FRE(FEEB R REARK20E8ETUE
W) TEENMERAFIERI6% - AR
OBIRMAE DR - BIBSETEIE - 2EHEM
EEEZE1,019.08A 8N - & —FEIAIE
e REEETSERER -

NERAEMS ENNCBERHRIZ2RES
BRRED - WHEEIFEREZXHIE - 2023
FRIERR54.9% - EATImRILEES
EXRMED - 2023F &M IR AT R HEER
RIBESIEN IR BEEKEERKED
1,808 FE  TEHREHEK15.5% °

BEE IR T R RHEIE R A R ETER R IR
B RET R NEEHEENTRIKAR
5o BERRERER —FNRR/NKERLE
PR BERRITERDAREERERRED
BRI o



18 Perennial Energy Holdings Limited X 33 Z 8RR ER A H ) Y

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
BEE T wm R (8)

Business Review e e
The Group mainly owns and operates three underground coal mines in AEBFEHB REEMRBEMNERMNTH=

Panzhou City, Guizhou Province, including & S 4T R IAAT R1%H% (Pan County & T ERE - BB AT REAT R EE (AR
Hongguo Town Hongguo Coal Mine*) (“Hongguo Coal Mine”), 2 8241 SRS ES Rig])  BHRARBESEALERE(TEALE
AR (Pan County Hongguo Town Baogushan Coal Mine*) (‘Baogushan Bl MEEFSAHNEERE(HRTE
Coal Mine”) and #2835 803 SOM B KB (Pan County Yangchang Village RIE])

Xiejiahegou Coal Mine*) (“Xiejiahegou Coal Mine”).

Resource and Reserve BERE#E
The following table indicates the resource and reserve data of the three TRER - ARENERERFESEIE
mines:
Hongguo Baogushan Xiejiahegou
Coal Mine Coal Mine Coal Mine

ALRENE BARLEE SRUEEE
Resource data under the JORC Code* RIEJORCIR AI#

Summary (as at 31 December 2023)' BENERSHE
(742023%12831H)"
Measured resources (kt) A& RS (FHE) 15,860 8,950 -
Indicated resources (kt) )& RE (W) 7,780 24,700 15,047
Inferred resources (kt) HETERE(THE) 13,225 7,000 10,360
Reserve data under the JORC Code* RIEJORCHR AN
Summary (as at 31 December 2023)' BENFEEE
(742023%12831H)"
Proved reserves (kt) FBEHE(TH) 12,052 6,803 -
Probable reserve (kt) s E (Fug) 5,910 18,790 9,167
Marketable reserves? AIHERHE?
— Clean coal (kt)® — R (FmE)3 9,459 13,425 5,266
- Middling coal (kt) — B () 3,342 4,780 1,016
- Sludge coal (kt) — Rt (FmE) 994 1,506 1,231
Notes: BifeE -
1. The resource and reserve data of the Hongguo Coal Mine and Baogushan 1. %I%i%ﬁ%&é%dﬂiiﬁ}%@i§2023¢12ﬂ
Coal Mine are based on the resource and reserve review report provided by 31E® §7E§&1;%§§@§)HE 1% Valtech
Mr. Edmundo Laporte of Valtech Corporate Services Limited (“Valtech”) as Corporate Services L|m|teg ( [V?"?CZJ )
of 31 December 2023 while the resource and reserve data of the Xiejiahegou Ej] Iildrundo '—?E?O“ef'ﬁ f:Hf@i\ E’] ﬁﬁi K
Coal Mine are based on the resource and reserve review report provided FEEE®RES D ! ﬂﬁﬂ%ﬁ]éﬁﬁ%%}i%
by Mr. Leung Karfai of BAW Mineral Partners Limited (“BAW”) as of 31 2022&12_)5]31 H E’J’ﬁﬁg&ﬁg%{ﬂiﬂ@
December 2022. The resource and reserve data as of 31 December 2023 of E\BA:\’EV\’E"'”eraLPa””?@ L;mlte?(ili‘fWJ)
the Xiejiahegou Coal Mine have been adjusted by the indicated resource data E“]f%ﬁﬁ%\kﬁi\E"Jﬁﬁiﬁﬁgﬁsﬁﬁ
and the probable reserve data as at 31 December 2022, after deducting the S - Eiﬁ%}fléﬁf}%%?:%?(%ﬁwﬂm
respective data extracted from the mining activities between 1 January 2023 B ERE M E 2RO RN 2022512
and 31 December 2023. F31 8 87 il 2 B0 R BTS2 BURIE

HFAE - W0k B 202341 A1H £20234F
12 A31 B S AR E 815 H A MEREEIE -

*  For identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

2. The marketable reserves of each of the three final products (clean coal,
middling coal, and sludge coal) of the Hongguo Coal Mine, Baogushan Coal
Mine and Xiejiahegou Coal Mine were estimated by deducting the respective
data extracted from the mining activities between 1 January 2023 and 31
December 2023.

3. The clean coal produced from the Hongguo Coal Mine and Baogushan Coal
Mine is mostly 1/3 coking coal whereas the clean coal produced from the
Xiejiahegou Coal Mine is mostly coking coal.

# JORC Code: The Australasian Code for Reporting of Exploration Results,
Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves.

Production

As at 31 December 2023, each of the Hongguo Coal Mine and Baogushan
Coal Mine had a permitted annual capacity of 600,000 tonnes, whereas the
Xiejiahegou Coal Mine had a permitted annual capacity of 450,000 tonnes,
totalling 1.65 million tonnes for the overall permitted annual capacity of the
Group’s mines. The following sets forth the actual production and utilisation
rate for the Group’s coal mines for the year ended 31 December 2023 and
2022:

BEER A (&)

2. ARERE  BALUEBMSEREEE=
EREEDEE  RERER) B/
SHE 25 B0 5202341 518 £2023
F12 A31 B B MRS 815 H A AE
BETTIAET

3. AL SR PR B 2 L R AT A 2 O S R KD
DRVBER - MHFONBRREA EENTE
BRED RERK

# JORC#i A : CRAR AL HEMFELER -
BYERENBEAFESTAD -

HE
M2023F12 A31H « AL RER LR EA LR
& B HYFF Al 4F EE B 4,600,000 1 #5008
TR HY R A] 4F EE E A450,000M © A5 EE TR
HEESIT R FERE A L R1.65BENE - TRE
FIRE E 20234 22022412 A31 H L FE A
SEEBEsERES RMEAE

2023 2022
Permitted
Annual Actual Utilisation Actual Utilisation
Capacity Production Rate Production Rate
AT ERE BERES ER= BERES EEER
(Tonnes) (Tonnes) (Percentage) (Tonnes) (Percentage)
(Mg ) (Mg ) (A7) (mg) (Aot
Hongguo Coal Mine AR 600,000 553,515 92.3% 509,100 84.8%
Baogushan Coal Mine BALERE 600,000 564,800 94.1% 463,911 77.3%
Xiejiahegou Coal Mine BNV 450,000 423,229 94.1% 409,508 91.0%
1,650,000 1,541,544 93.4% 83.8%

For the year under review, the Group’s total raw coal production was
1,541,544 tonnes, of which 553,515 tonnes, 564,800 tonnes and 423,229
tonnes of raw coal were produced by Hongguo Coal Mine, Baogushan Coal
Mine and Xiejiahegou Coal Mine, respectively, representing an increase of
approximately 8.7%, 21.7% and 3.4% YoY, respectively. The utilisation
rates of Hongguo Coal Mine, Baogushan Coal Mine and Xiejiahegou
Coal Mine were approximately 92.3%, 94.1% and 94.1%, respectively,
representing an increase of approximately 7.5 percentage points (“ppt”),
16.8 ppt and 3.1 ppt YoY, respectively. The increase in utilization rates of
Hongguo Coal Mine and Baogushan Coal Mine can be attributed to the
improvement of the geological structures in the mining faces of the two coal
mines.

1,382,519

REOEFE AEEORELEER
1,541,544 WF - & F1 553,515 - 564,800 I
K:423,220M8 [R B Ty 95 B RALRERE « BAL
BREERHSOMERBEE - D RIR LGN
8.7%  21.7% [23.4% ° 4T R - BALK
T R SO B IR R 5 B R 9 51149 /292.3% -
94.1% [294.1% - H BRI LLIE MK 758 E o
B(E2H]) - 168EEHHKEIAEED
B AAREBREAILEBERAENIES SR
MBS ERE TEE B AR A=
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
BEE T wm R (8)

Coal Processing

The Group operates its own coal preparation plants, namely A2 111 3% &
(Songshan Coal Preparation Plant*) (“Songshan CPP”) and {5 5o & e R
(Xiejiahegou Coal Preparation Plant*) (“Xiejiahegou CPP”), for processing
the raw coal extracted from its coal mines. As at 31 December 2023, the
capacity of Songshan CPP was 2.4 million tonnes per annum, while the
capacity of Xiejiahegou CPP was 1.8 million tonnes per annum.

During the year under review, a total of 1,534,569 tonnes of raw coal was
processed, of which 1,118,705 tonnes and 415,864 tonnes were processed
by Songshan CPP and Xiejiahegou CPP, respectively.

Sales Volume and Average Selling Price
The following sets forth the sales volumes and average selling prices of the
Group’s coal products for the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,

BT

ANER B B R BRI LA B R ([ AR LR R )
RSO E SR ([ SOIER R ) - it A
FIEFM AR #EITINT - %2023 12 A31
B - RUEEREFREE N R2.4B BN -
M SO EERO A HE N REF1.88E
Mg o

R EIRBFE LR A E /31,534,569 @ & L
VLI 58 R TR B i 5T R B R O R R & 9 Bl A
1,118,705 [2 415,864 °

HERFIIEE
TR RIE T AN E B K R E RN E E£2023F
N2022F12 A31HIEFERHE K FHEE -

respectively:
2023 2022

Sales Average Sales Average
Unit Volume Selling Price Volume Selling Price
By $HE FH9EE HE THEE
(RMB/unit) (RMB/unit)
(AR¥ B1{x) (AR¥ #h1)
Clean coal T Tonnelf 842,020 1,924.41 719,079 2,347.09
Middling coal LS Tonnel 202,553 320.53 223,963 317.98
Sludge coal JekE Tonneli# 171,520 132.59 109,039 153.26
Raw coal JRE Tonneli 8,866 278.37 14,796 239.32
Coalbed methane gas KER Cubic meter 28,202,782 0.18 26,597,991 0.18

K

*  For identification purpose only




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

The coal market gradually levelled off during the year under review. As a
result of a sufficient supply of coal in the post-pandemic era, the coal price
in the market experienced a drop. Such trend was reflected in the average
selling price of the Group’s products. The Group’s average selling price
of clean coal decreased by approximately 18.0% YoY to approximately
RMB1,924.41/tonne (2022: approximately RMB2,347.09/tonne). The
average selling price of sludge coal dropped by approximately 13.5% YoY
to approximately RMB132.59/tonne (2022: approximately RMB153.26/
tonne). The middling coal and raw coal were exceptions with their average
selling prices rising approximately 0.8% YoY to approximately RMB320.53/
tonne (2022: approximately RMB317.98/tonne) and approximately 16.3%
YoY to approximately RMB278.37/tonne (2022: approximately RMB239.32/
tonne), respectively.

The Group’s raw coal is washed and cleaned into clean coal at Songshan
Coal Preparation Plant and Xiejiahegou Coal Preparation Plant before the
coal products are sold to the customers. During the year under review,
the sales volume of clean coal, the Group’s primary product, amounted
to 842,020 tonnes, representing a significant rise of approximately 17.1%
YoY from approximately 719,079 tonnes in 2022. The sales volume of
middling coal dropped by approximately 9.6% YoY to 202,553 tonnes (2022:
approximately 223,963 tonnes). The sales volume of sludge coal increased
by approximately 57.3% YoY to approximately 171,520 tonnes (2022:
approximately 109,039 tonnes). The sales volume of raw coal decreased by
approximately 40.1% to approximately 8,866 tonnes (2022: approximately
14,796 tonnes). In total, the sales volume of coal products amounted to
approximately 1,224,959 tonnes (2022: approximately 1,066,877 tonnes),
showing a sharp rise of approximately 14.8%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
BEE T wm R (8)

Financial Review B 75 B BE
Revenue U %

During the year under review, the Group recorded a total revenue of REEFE  NEEEEERIHERBE - F
approximately RMB1,715.6 million (2022: approximately RMB1,784.0 B REREERESNARGRNBARE
million) from the production and sales of clean coal, middling coal, sludge 1,715.6 B B0 (2022 F : 49 AR #1,784.0
coal, and coalbed methane gas, representing a decrease of approximately BET) AR H3.8% o B E20235F &
3.8% YoY. The revenues for the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 202212 A1 BIEFER gt T

were summarised as follows:

2023 2022

Revenue Percentage to Revenue Percentage to
RMB’000 total revenue RMB’000 total revenue
Wz LK = W 1E AR
ARMET T [Epalse ARBETTT Ao

Sales of coal products BEIREE hiH SRR
- Clean coal — B 1,620,390 94.5% 1,687,745 94.6%
— Middling coal — 64,925 3.8% 71,216 4.0%
- Sludge coal — ekt 22,741 1.3% 16,711 0.9%
- Raw coal — R 2,468 0.1% 3,541 0.2%
Sales of methane gas HERHESE 5,099 0.3% 4,820 0.3%
Total et 1,715,623 100.0% 1,784,033 100.0%
Consistent with the Group’s strategy, clean coal remains the principal HASBEMRE -3 BREDAZEFEHEE
product of the Group and the Group has been adhering to the strategy of ZER - ASE—EERBREBEERLO
stabilizing the proportion of clean coal products. For the year ended 31 HIREE o 8i22023F12 A31HIEFE @ HE

December 2023, the proportion of revenue generated from the sales of FEREPTE £ U Es L DI 4) 594.5% (20224F « 49
clean coal amounted to approximately 94.5% (2022: approximately 94.6%). 94.6%) °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

During the year under review, following the overall price drop in the market,
the Group’s sales revenue of clean coal decreased by approximately 4.0%
to approximately RMB1,620.4 million (2022: approximately RMB1,687.7
million). The Group’s sales revenue of middling coal decreased by
approximately 8.8% to approximately RMB64.9 million (2022: approximately
RMB71.2 million); sales revenue of sludge coal increased by approximately
36.1% to approximately RMB22.7 million (2022: approximately RMB16.7
million); sales revenue of raw coal decreased by 30.3% to approximately
RMB2.5 million (2022: approximately RMB3.5 million); sales revenue of
coalbed methane gas increased by approximately 5.8% to approximately
RMBS5.1 million (2022: approximately RMB4.8 million). The decrease in total
revenue during the year under review was mainly attributable to the fallback
in the average market price of coal products.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The Group recorded a decrease in its gross profit from approximately
RMB1,117.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately
RMB944.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2023, representing a
decrease of approximately 15.5% YoY. The gross profit margin for the year
ended 31 December 2023 was approximately 55.0% (2022: approximately
62.6%), representing a decrease of approximately 7.6 ppt YoY. The
decreases in gross profit and gross profit margin were mainly due to the
decline in revenue as a result of the decreased average coal price in the

market.

Other Income

The Group’s other income decreased by approximately 32.5% YoY
to approximately RMB35.7 million during the year under review from
approximately RMB52.8 million for 2022. Such decline was primarily
attributed to a decrease in sales of electricity during the year under review.

Other Gains and Losses

The Group recorded other losses of approximately RMB17.4 million for
the year under review, increasing from a loss of approximately RMB4.9
million for the year 2022, which was primarily attributable to the translation
difference arising from the conversion of Hong Kong dollars to RMB and
loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment incurred during the year

under review.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
BEE T wm R (8)

Distribution and Selling Expenses

The Group’s distribution and selling expenses increased by approximately
34.4% YoY to approximately RMB97.4 million during the year under review
from approximately RMB72.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2022.
The increase was primarily due to higher transportation costs for certain
customers, to whom a large volume of the Group’s coal products was sold,
with the Group bearing the transportation costs.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses increased by approximately 20.9% YoY to
approximately RMB134.0 million during the year under review from
approximately RMB110.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2022.
The increase was mainly brought about by an increase in staff related costs,
professional fee and depreciation charge during the year under review.

Other Expenses

The Group’s other expenses increased to approximately RMB86.8 million
during the year under review from approximately RMB77.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2022. The increase was mainly brought about by
an increase in research and development expenses in relation to the mining
technology and coal seam studies which were incurred during the year

under review.

Finance Costs

The Group’s finance costs primarily comprised the interest expenses
charged by banks and other borrowings and interest expenses on secured
bank borrowings from factoring of bills receivables with full recourse from
the Group’s customers. Finance costs increased by approximately 24.6%
to approximately RMB36.0 million during the year under review from
approximately RMB28.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2022. The
increase was mainly due to the interest expenses arising from the increase
in average bank and other borrowings during the year under review.

Taxation Charge

The Group’s income tax expense for the year under review was
approximately RMB101.0 million, compared to approximately RMB111.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2022. The decrease of 9.5%
only was mainly due to a decrease in profits before income tax, with
the mitigating effect of an increase in withholding tax connected with
the distribution of retained earnings from a subsidiary in the PRC to its
immediate holding company in Hong Kong.

DR HERX
REBDHRIHERZAEE2022F12 A
J1HLEFENARET25BE TRLLLIEMNL
344%ZEIFEFENARBITARE T - BH
EMDEEARETEPOERKALN - K
PARKEMZER P HE KNS ERERITARE
BRIRAFTEL ©

THRX

REREFE - THAXBEZE2022412 431
BLEFEHOARE1109BE LRI NG
209% ENARE134.08 8T - I EE
RAAREFENE THBRAE EXEBRNX
FrEEfsTIg M

HitnBak
REEEMFALAEZ2022F12A31H ILF
EHOARBIT2EETIESNERNBFEHAR
#86.8BETT - ZIEMEEREBEFENEE
B BRI L 01 B B S B 9 AR B RO B B B FR S 0
FTEL ©

LB R AN
REBRFE KA EZ B IERTHREA FLER
SAEMERRREAEERFAMETARE
BRENEWEEMEEEMRRITEROFIE
FX - BERABRE £2022412 A31HIEF
ERHARE28.95 BTG IN4124.6% = 1
FEHNHARKIOEET - BRAEGNEEL
HRERBEFE - FHRITREMEFKIG T
EEOF ST -

HIEZ H
AEBREBEFENMESHAIHNAARE
101.0B 87T © MEZE2022F12A31HIEFE
WBAREINMBEET  HP9.5%EFTEH
RERFTSFHATEFIR L - U R P BB AR
MEBEEERA D IRRE BT ErET
BB MM AR 2 -




Annual Report 2023 £ %5

25

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Profit for the Year

As a result of the foregoing, the Group recorded a net profit of approximately
RMB504.2 million during the year under review (2022: approximately
RMB744.0 million), representing a decrease of approximately 32.2% YoY.
It was mainly caused by a decline in the gross profit margin, which was in
turn primarily driven by a decrease in the price of clean coal during the year
under review.

Prospects

In 2024, under the influence of the sluggish global economic environment
and the gradually emerging domestic structural issues, China’s economic
growth rate is not expected to be significantly higher than that of other
countries. However, it remains a major driving force for the world economy.
At the Central Economic Work Conference held in Beijing, Chinese policy
makers highlighted their increasing macroeconomic regulation efforts and
assurance of stable economic operation as the key macroeconomic policy
priorities for the coming year. According to a report from BOC Research
Institute (4 B 2R 17 #f %t B ), China’s GDP growth rate for the coming year
is likely to maintain at a level of 5% and consumer spending is expected
to further recover, while investment in infrastructure and manufacturing is
anticipated to grow at a faster pace.

Regarding the regional development blueprint for Guizhou province,
while conventional constructions such as high-speed roads and bridges
will continue to expand and generate a significant demand for steel, new
infrastructure projects related to the digital economy are also expected to
create more opportunities. According to the National Development and
Reform Commission, Guizhou is one of the western provinces designated
to host computing hubs for the National Computing Network, aiming to
promote collaboration between the eastern and western regions. As part
of this strategy, the construction of 5G base stations and data centres is
planned. These plans and data may bring a growing demand for coking
coal in the steelmaking industry, which presents business opportunities for
coal mining enterprises in the region. Additionally, the development of roads
and 5G stations will enhance logistics and facilitate digital transformation,
benefiting business operations.

The future is filled with numerous opportunities and challenges, and the coal
mining industry is at a crucial turning point that demands a shift towards
smarter and more environmentally-friendly practices. In line with this, the
Group will adapt its business strategies to market conditions and policy
directions, ensuring that informed decisions are made, and competitiveness
is maintained. The commitment to customer satisfaction and prioritizing
safety in production will remain unwavering, enabling the Group to achieve
satisfactory performance and contribute to a better future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
BEE T wm R (8)

Liquidity and Financial Information

Bank Balances and Cash

As at 31 December 2023, bank balances and cash amounted to
approximately RMB93.7 million (2022: approximately RMB202.1 million).

Bank and Other Borrowings

As at 31 December 2023, secured bank borrowings from factoring of bills
receivables with full recourse amounted to approximately RMB241.8 million
(31 December 2022: approximately RMB435.0 million). The effective interest
rate on the discounted bills was approximately 1% to 2% per annum during
the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: approximately 1% to 2%).

As at 31 December 2023, secured bank borrowings amounted to
approximately RMB672.1 million (31 December 2022: approximately
RMB351.0 million). The effective interest rate on bank borrowings was 5.5%
per annum during the year under review (2022: 5.5%).

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s gearing ratio was approximately 0.33
(2022: approximately 0.32). Gearing ratio is calculated based on the total
bank and other borrowings divided by the total equity as at the end of the
year. The increased gearing ratio was mainly due to an increase in the bank
and other borrowings.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group is subject to limited foreign currency exposure as its business
activities mainly take place in China and all sales and most of its costs are
denominated in the functional currency (RMB) of respective group entities.
The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk is primarily Hong Kong dollars
as certain bank balances, deposits and accrued charges are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars. The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Credit Risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and bills receivables,
deposits and other receivables, investment in a debt instrument, restricted
bank deposits and bank balances as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.
Such risk may cause financial loss to the Group in the case of a failure to
discharge obligations by the counterparties.

As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the top three trade
debtors accounted for approximately 67% and 61% of the Group’s total
trade receivables, respectively. In view of this, the management regularly
visits the customers relating to such trade receivables to understand
their business operations and cash flow positions and follows up with the
subsequent settlement from the counterparties. The management delegates
a team of staff to monitor procedures to ensure that follow-up actions are
taken to recover overdue debts. In this regard, the management considers
that such credit concentration risk has been significantly mitigated. Taking
into account the financial conditions of the customers, their historical
settlement patterns with no previous default and the forward-looking
information (such as the future coal prices and GDP growth of China), the
management considers that based on internal credit rating assessment, the
trade and bills receivables have low risk of default from the counterparties.

In respect of other receivables, investment in a debt instrument, restricted
bank deposits, and bank balances, the management considers that no
material inherent credit risk exists based on the assessment of historical
and subsequent settlement records.

Liquidity Risk

As at 31 December 2023, the Group recorded net current liabilities of
approximately RMB179.7 million. In preparing the consolidated financial
statements, the Directors have considered the future liquidity of the Group.
The Directors are of the view that the Group will have sufficient working
capital to finance its operations and to meet its financial obligations as and
when they fall due in the foreseeable future after taking into consideration
of the cash flow forecasts, which assume the continuity of normal business
activities and indicate that the Group will have sufficient liquidity to meet
its operational needs, existing contractual debts and capital expenditure
requirements for the 12 month period from 31 December 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
BEE T wm R (8)

Interest Rate Risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to lease
liabilities and bank and other borrowings and is also exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk in relation to restricted bank deposits and bank balances.
The Group currently has no interest rate hedging policy. However, the
management closely monitors the Group’s exposure to future cash flow
interest rate risk arising from changes in market interest rates and will
consider hedging against market interest rate risk should the need arise.

Capital Commitments and Expected Source of Funding

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had capital commitments in respect
of the acquisition of China Power Construction Panzhou Low Calorific
Value Coal Power Generation Co., Ltd. (“Panzhou Power Generation
Co”), contracted for but not yet incurred for the amount of approximately
RMB416.5 million (31 December 2022: capital expenditure in respect of
the acquisition of property, plant and equipment contracted for but not
yet incurred for the amount of approximately RMB3.5 million). The Group
intends to finance its capital commitments by utilizing a combination of
internal resources and external financing.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no material contingent liabilities
(31 December 2022: contingent consideration payables in respect of the
acquisition of Xiejiahegou Coal Mine amount of approximately RMB395.2

million).

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of 3,745 employees (31
December 2022: 3,619). During the year under review, staff costs (including
Directors’ remuneration) totalled approximately RMB474.2 million (2022:
approximately RMB414.8 million). All members of the Group are equal
opportunity employers, with the selection, promotion and remuneration of
individual employees based on their suitability for the positions offered.
The Group provides defined contribution to the Mandatory Provident
Fund as retirement benefits for its employees in Hong Kong and provides
its employees in China with various benefit schemes as required by the
applicable laws and regulations in China. All the Group’s employees are
required to undergo induction training before they commence work. In
addition, depending on the work nature, the Group’s employees are also
required to attend training pursuant to applicable laws and regulations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Material Acquisitions, Disposals and Investment

Projects

On 31 October 2023, Guizhou Jiutai Bangda Energy Development Co.,
Ltd.* (“diutai Bangda”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
acquired 49% equity of Panzhou Power Generation Co. The consideration
for the acquisition was approximately RMB4.9 million, and additional
registered capital of RMB509.6 million was committed by Jiutai Bangda
in four instalments to Panzhou Power Generation Co. Upon completion of
the acquisition, Panzhou Power Generation Co has become an associate
company of the Company and its results and net assets shall be accounted
for using the equity method in the consolidated financial statements of the
Company with effect from the completion date.

For more information, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 25 August 2023, 15 September 2023, 18 September 2023, 19
September 2023 and 31 October 2023 and the circular of the Company
dated 25 October 2023.

Save as disclosed above, the Company did not have any material
acquisitions or disposals and significant investments during the year under

review.

Final Dividend

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK5.00 cents
per share for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: HK12.50 cents).

Asset Charges

As at 31 December 2023, bank and other borrowings from factoring of bills
receivables with full recourse amounted to approximately RMB241.8 million
(31 December 2022: approximately RMB435.0 million) and bank and other
borrowings amounting to approximately RMB672.1 million (31 December
2022: approximately RMB351.0 million) were secured by the pledge of the
Group’s bills receivables, the mining right of the Hongguo Coal Mine and
Baogushan Coal Mine, respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
ERE @RI (E)

Event After the Reporting Date

On 6 February 2024, the Baogushan Coal Mine successfully obtained the
safety production permits for the Revised Expansion Plan from the Energy
Bureau of Guizhou Province (& /N & 8¢ R /) after the joint trial operation.
With the completion of the installation of all necessary mining operation
machinery and equipment, the annual production capacity of the Baogushan
Coal Mine has been increased from 600,000 tonnes to 1,200,000 tonnes.
For more information, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 10 December 2020, 24 May 2021 and 8 February 2024 respectively.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any significant
event requiring disclosure that has taken place subsequent to 31 December
2023 and up to the date of this report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements of
the Company and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The Group
is principally engaged in the exploration and mining of coking coal and
coal refinery in the People’s Republic of China. Details of the principal
activities of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2023, distributable reserves of the Company amounted
to approximately RMB92.1 million (31 December 2022: approximately
RMB281.4 million).

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 and the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group as at 31 December 2023 are
set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 111 to 113 of this
annual report.

The Board has recommended the distribution of a final dividend of
HK5.00 cents (2022: HK12.50 cents) per Share for the year ended 31
December 2023.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
BEFEWE(H)

Closure of Register of Members

For the purposes of determining shareholders’ eligibility to attend and vote
at the 2024 annual general meeting of the Company (the “2024 AGM”) to be
held on Wednesday, 5 June 2024, and entitlement to the final dividend, the
register of members of the Company will be closed on the dates as set out
below:

(i) For determining shareholders’ eligibility to attend and vote at the
2024 AGM:

Latest time to lodge transfer documents
for registration with the Company’s branch
share registrar and transfer office
inHongKong . ... At 4:30 p.m.
on Thursday, 30 May 2024

Closure of register of members
oftheCompany ..................... Friday, 31 May 2024 to
Wednesday, 5 June 2024
(both dates inclusive)

(ii) For determining shareholders’ entitlement to final dividend:

Ex-dividenddate ................... Wednesday, 12 June 2024

Latest time to lodge transfer documents
for registration with the Company’s branch
share registrar and transfer office
inHongKong ... At 4:30 p.m.
on Thursday, 13 June 2024

Closure of register of members
oftheCompany ..................... Friday, 14 June 2024 to
Tuesday, 18 June 2024
(both dates inclusive)

Recorddate .......................... Tuesday, 18 June 2024

Expected paymentdate..................... Friday, 5 July 2024
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Closure of Register of Members (continued)

During the above closure periods of the register of members of the
Company, no transfer of Shares will be registered. To be eligible to attend
and vote at the 2024 AGM and to qualify for the final dividend, all properly
completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged for registration with the Company’s branch share registrar
and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 17/F,
Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for registration not
later than the aforementioned latest time.

Financial Summary
A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
five financial years is set out on page 201 of this annual report.

Business Review

A fair review of the business of the Group as well as a discussion and an
analysis of the Group’s performance during the year ended 31 December
2023 including a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group and an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s
business are provided in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 7 to 10 and pages 17 to
30 respectively of this annual report. An analysis of the Group’s performance
during the year under review using financial key performance indicators is
provided in the Financial Highlights on pages 5 to 6 of this annual report.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Investment Properties

Details of the investment properties held by the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2023 are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year ended
31 December 2023 are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
BEFEWE(H)

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed Securities
of the Company
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, redeemed

or sold any of the listed securities of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2023.

Arrangements for Directors to Purchase Shares or

Debentures

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2023 was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of an acquisition of Shares or debentures of
the Company or any other body corporate, and neither the Directors nor any
of their spouses or children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe
for securities of the Company or had exercised such right during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles
of association (the “Articles”) or the laws of the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders of the Company.

Charitable Donations
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2023 amounted to approximately RMB1.6 million (2022:
approximately RMB1.1 million).

Major Customers and Suppliers

For the year ended 31 December 2023, sales attributable to the largest
customer of the Group amounted to approximately 41.9% of the total sales
and the five largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately
79.2% of the Group’s total sales.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, purchases attributable to the
largest supplier of the Group amounted to approximately 11.7% of the
total purchases and the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for
approximately 41.6% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their close associates or
any shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than
5% of the total number of issued Shares) had any interest in the Group’s
five largest customers and suppliers.
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Directors
The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2023
and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Bangping (Chairman)

Mr. Yu Zhilong (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Li Xuezhong (Chief Operating Officer)

Mr. Lau Kai Ming (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Yu Xiao

Mr. Sun Dawei (resigned on 1 April 2023)

Mr. Wang Shize (resigned on 12 March 2024)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Fong Wai Ho

Mr. Punnya Niraan De Silva

Ms. Cheung Suet Ting, Samantha

Mr. Wang Xiufeng

Pursuant to Article 16.19 of the Articles, at each annual general meeting
of the Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to,
but not less than, one-third) shall retire from office by rotation, provided
that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Mr. Yu
Bangping, Mr. Fong Wai Ho and Mr. Punnya Niraan De Silva will retire by
rotation at the 2024 AGM and, being eligible, have offered themselves for
re-election.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies
Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the Group
are set out on pages 11 to 16 of this annual report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)

EfxeRE(E)

Changes in Information of the Directors

ESENED

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities BEEIMES EMBRA(TEWRA])E
(the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange, the changes in information of 13 51B()RTARE - ESHFBEEZHNT

the Directors are set out below:

Name of Director

Eoy

Mr. Yu Bangping
RABFRLE

Mr. Wang Shize (Note)
T2 A M)

Mr. Lau Kai Ming
£l 67

Mr. Yu Xiao
RMAE

Mr. Fong Wai Ho

Details of changes

LS

His salary was adjusted to RMB620,908 per annum paid by a subsidiary of the
Company with effect from 1 February 2024.
B20242 A1 B - HEFH AR S ARE620,9087C - BADAME QR

His salary was adjusted to RMB174,384 for the period from 1 February 2024 to 11
March 2024 paid by a subsidiary of the Company.

% 7020245F2 A1 B £2024F3 A 11BN H L /B B/ ARKE174,3847T » BIAR A
BRI -

His salary was adjusted to HK$1,152,000 per annum paid by a subsidiary of the
Company with effect from 1 February 2024.
H2024F2 A1 B8 « i FHFHEEAR1,152,000/8 7T + EAAFIMEBRAIZA o

His salary was adjusted to RMB390,908 per annum paid by a subsidiary of the
Company with effect from 1 February 2024.

F202452 A1 B © HEFHFHE A ARES90,9087T © HARFIMBRARIA

He resigned as an independent non-executive director of Global Sweeteners

FRERLE Holdings Limited (Stock code: 3889), the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, with effect from 18 January 2024.
% 520241 B 18 HBHEAMIE R EIA R A 7 (R SE - 3889 » HARM B2 Pl
FRET)ELIERITES o
Note: Mr. Wang Shize resigned as an executive Director with effect from 12 March ek . FHUBLACDBEENITES © 5202437
2024. 128 AR -

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information required to be Br EXCPTIREEESN - IR EM ERAIRE £

disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

$RBIFE13.51B)ETARE -




Permitted Indemnity Provisions

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the date of this annual
report, the Company has in force indemnity provisions as permitted under
the relevant statutes for the benefit of the Directors (including former
Directors) of the Company. The permitted indemnity provisions are provided
for in the Articles and in the Directors and officers liability insurance
maintained for the Group in respect of potential liability and costs associated
with legal proceedings that may be brought against such Directors.

Management Contracts

No contracts, other than employment contracts or appointment letters,
concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company were entered into or
subsisted during the year ended 31 December 2023.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no contract of significance
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling
shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year ended
31 December 2023.

Equity-linked Agreements
For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company has not entered into
any equity-linked agreement.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No Director proposed for re-election at the 2024 AGM has a service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
EFEWE(HE)

BT RERX

HE2023F12 A31A L FEREERFHRA
B RARREMERMAREBAUERRA]
EZ(BENEES)AXE ARRER - &
FERTREBSURERIA MR R EE R ZEE
FER BRI AR PN B EE T RAR
MitENEE RS ABEEERET AR

.
T °

EEEX
HZE2023F12 A1 HILFE » A RBWER]
S IFEA AR A SR 2 I E
ARBDERRITREENEGHN(BEEGNKE
FEERFRIN) ©

BrRAFIRFTHEEE SN - B E2023F12A31H
WFE - RRRISHE(EA B AR EARRHE
FRAE SR AT B A R BRI L EREL ©

B SR S 1
BZE2023F12 AN ALLFE - ARFHAKE]
M EfA ERARER BN O 1 o o

EERBEL

R2024F R FBFRGHRE R EENESRY
RN R S E A B A RIS N AT — 4
WAL I B AE R E CEERERIN MR

EH o

Annual Report 2023 £ 37/



38 Perennial Energy Holdings Limited X 32 a0RZERER A H

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
BEFEWE(H)

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares and underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)),
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which the Directors and chief executive of the Company
were deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the
register therein, or were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix C3 to
the Listing Rules were as follows:

Long positions in Shares of the Company:

Capacity/

Name of Director Nature of interest

Rt B #aEitE

Mr. Yu Bangping Interest in a controlled corporation

RAFFEE (Note 2)
EyEE R (fFr2)
Notes:
1. The percentage was calculated based on 1,600,000,000 Shares in issue as at

31 December 2023.

2. These Shares were held by Spring Snow Management Limited. The
issued share capital of Spring Snow Management Limited was held as to
approximately 61.21% by Lucky Street Limited which was wholly owned by
Mr. Yu Bangping. Accordingly, Mr. Yu Bangping was deemed to be interested
in 864,000,000 Shares held by Spring Snow Management Limited for the
purpose of the SFO.

EERTRABRKRG - B8
AR ERENESR AR
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HEREERAR)  AREEF R EE KD
FE3525KFL IR RZ I FT I B R it A By e 2 B0
B IRE E TR BIMTERC3ATH _ETHEIT A
ERETEFRSMEESTA([ZEFA]) A
MEAN R R FTHRERS OAB T -

RARBRBIEE :

Approximate %

Total number of of interests held

Shares held (Note 1)
hFEER
BHBE D
BEROEE (MF7E1)
864,000,000 54.00

MIE
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REEHANmE - "B TFEERRER
Spring Snow Management Limited 75 £
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and

Debentures (continued)
Long positions in the shares of associated corporations:

Name of Director

BEEpE

Mr. Yu Bangping
RAFELE

Mr. Wang Shize

FHRAEAE Management Limited corporation (Note 3)
2y A E e (MHEE3)
Notes:

Name of associated Capacity/

corporation Nature of interest

RECEEERE B REmitE
Spring Snow Interest in controlled

Management Limited corporation (Note 2)

LB (HE2)

Spring Snow Interest in controlled

The percentage was calculated based on 10,000,000 issued shares of Spring
Snow Management Limited as at 31 December 2023.

Mr. Yu Bangping owned the entire issued share capital of Lucky Street
Limited which owned approximately 61.21% of the issued share capital of
Spring Snow Management Limited. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Yu was deemed
to be interested in 6,120,581 shares of Spring Snow Management Limited
held by Lucky Street Limited.

Mr. Wang Shize owned the entire issued share capital of Seasons In The
Sun Limited which owned approximately 2.87% of the issued share capital
of Spring Snow Management Limited. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Wang was
deemed to be interested in 287,364 shares of Spring Snow Management
Limited held by Seasons In The Sun Limited. He resigned as an executive
Director with effect from 12 March 2024.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
BEFEWE(H)

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and

Debentures (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, so far as is known to
the Company, none of the Directors or chief executive of the Company
had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which the Directors and
chief executive were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded
in the register referred to therein; or were required, pursuant to the Model
Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares

As at 31 December 2023, the following interests in Shares or underlying
Shares of 5% or more of the issued Shares of the Company were recorded
in the register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions:

Name of Substantial Shareholder Nature of interest

TERRBE BB EEME

Spring Snow Management Limited Beneficial owner (Note 2)

BmEA A (HE2)

Lucky Street Limited
mEE e (FFE2)

Ms. Qu Liumei

BYixzt

Interest of spouse (Note 3)

Aotk (MEES)

Interest in controlled corporation (Note 2)

EERFRARNRE - mﬁ%
19 (SR RS A B

Br EXCRTIEEEE SN - 72023128318 @ &
ARRRFTA - EERLARRITHEBENAE
NRIHEEAEEEE (R REAFRBAERK
BIZEXVER) BB (D - MERARR D RIEEE R - %
B EMAIREE #&Hﬁ 5 B EBEXVERERT 85
EIP=FSIN NN R R SOA R (BRI
R %%&%ﬁiawJmﬁ@%mﬁé‘aﬂﬁxﬁﬁ
HESRITRBHEENEZRAR) IR
BB 5 R H S50 5352 (§ B8R L I35
ZMArERSOAE - SIRBEAZ ST BB
AN R R TR R SOAE

TEBRRRES K HEERS

R

20235124318 » ARAR B EITRNH5%
A E O SABBRIR D 80 T B 2 DR
RARBE S R E DI HIB6 AT ERE
wE M

%

mp

Approximate %

Total number of of interests held

Shares held (Note 1)
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864,000,000 54.00
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares (continued)

Notes:

1. The percentage was calculated based on 1,600,000,000 Shares in issue as at
31 December 2023.

2. The issued share capital of Spring Snow Management Limited was held as
to approximately 61.21% by Lucky Street Limited. Accordingly, Lucky Street
Limited was deemed to be interested in 864,000,000 Shares held by Spring
Snow Management Limited by virtue of the SFO.

3. Ms. Qu Liumei is the spouse of Mr. Yu Bangping and was therefore deemed

to be interested in all the Shares held by Mr. Yu Bangping (through Lucky
Street Limited and Spring Snow Management Limited) by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, so far as is known to
the Company, no other person (other than the Directors and chief executive
of the Company whose interests are disclosed in the section headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures” above) had interests or short positions
in the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO or, which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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Competing Business

During the year ended 31 December 2023, Guizhou Bangda, an associate
of the connected person of the Company pursuant to Rule 14A.12(1)(c) of
the Listing Rules, and owned by Mr. Yu Bangping (Chairman and executive
Director) as to 90% and Mr. Yu Bangcheng (brother of Mr. Yu Bangping)
as to 10%, both being the Controlling Shareholders (as defined in the
prospectus of the Company dated 26 November 2018 (the “Prospectus”)),
was principally engaged in the mining, production and sale of coking coal,
whereas the Group has been principally engaged in the mining, production
and sale of 1/3 coking coal. The Directors are of the view that there is
no actual or potential in competition in business between the Group and
Guizhou Bangda and there is a clear delineation of business between the
Group and Guizhou Bangda. The Directors are satisfied that each of Mr. Yu
Bangping and Mr. Wang Shize (who were the executive Directors and the
Controlling Shareholders during the year under review) are able to perform
their roles in the Company independently. The Directors are also of the view
that the Group is capable of managing its business independently from the
Controlling Shareholders and their respective close associates during the
year under review.

As at 31 December 2023, save as disclosed above, the Directors were
not aware of any business or interest of the Directors or the Controlling
Shareholders and their respective close associates that had competed or
might compete with the business of the Group and any other conflicts of
interests which any such person had or might have with the Group.

Non-Competition Undertakings by Controlling
Shareholders

In order to avoid and safeguard against any potential competition arising
between the Group and the Directors or the Controlling Shareholders and
their respective close associates, each of the Controlling Shareholders
(including Mr. Yu Bangping and Mr. Wang Shize) and Guizhou Bangda
(the “Covenantors”) executed a deed of non-competition (“Deed of
Non-Competition”) in favour of the Company. Details of the Deed of
Non-Competition are disclosed in the section headed “Relationship
with Controlling Shareholders — Non-Competition Undertakings” in the
Prospectus.
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Non-Competition Undertakings by Controlling

Shareholders (continued)

The Covenantors have made an annual confirmation that they have fully
complied with the Undertakings given by them in favour of the Company
pursuant to the Deed of Non-Competition. The independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed the status of the compliance by the Covenantors
with the Undertakings during the year ended 31 December 2023 and
confirmed that, as far as they can ascertain, there is no breach by any of the
Covenantors of the Undertakings given by them.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements

or Contracts of Significance

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance to which the Company or any related company
(holding companies, subsidiaries, or fellow subsidiaries) was a party and
in which a Director or an entity connected with a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year ended 31 December 2023.

Remuneration Policy

The remuneration policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Board on the basis of their performance, qualifications, competence and
job nature. The remuneration of the Directors is recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and decided by the Board, having regard to
their experience, responsibilities, performance and the time devoted to the
Group’s business. The Company has adopted a Post-IPO share option
scheme on 15 November 2018 (the “Share Option Scheme”) as an incentive
arrangement for eligible employees.

Retirement Benefit Scheme
Details of the retirement benefit scheme of the Group are set out in note 33
to the consolidated financial statements.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual report, at
least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital is held by the public
under the Listing Rules.
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Share Option Scheme
Particulars of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme pursuant to an ordinary
resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company on 15 November
2018 which shall be valid and effective for a period ending on the tenth
anniversary of 12 December 2018, being the date of the listing of the Shares
on the Stock Exchange, subject to early termination by the Company in a
general meeting or by the Board. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme
is to provide an incentive or reward for the grantees for their contribution
or potential contribution to the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.
Under the Share Option Scheme, the Board may offer to grant an option
to any full-time or part-time employees, potential employees, consultants,
executives or officers (including executive, non-executive and independent
non-executive Directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and any
suppliers, customers, consultants, agents and advisers who, in the sole
opinion of the Board has contributed or will contribute to the Group.

The number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company at any time shall not
in aggregate exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time. The
maximum number of Shares available for issue under options which may
be granted under the Share Option Scheme or other share option scheme
adopted by the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares
in issue immediately following completion of the Share Offer (but taking
no account of any Shares which may be allotted or issued pursuant to the
exercise of the Over-allotment Option (as defined in the Prospectus)) (the
“Scheme Limit”), being 160,000,000 Shares. The total number of Shares
issued and which may fall to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme to each eligible person in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the number of Shares in issue as
at the date of grant unless approved by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting.
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Share Option Scheme (continued)

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular option granted
under the Share Option Scheme shall be determined by the Board provided
that it shall not be less than the highest of: (i) the official closing price of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the offer
date, which must be a business day; (ii) the average of the official closing
price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets
for the five business days immediately preceding the offer date; and (jii) the
nominal value of a Share.

Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1 to the Company
by way of consideration for the grant. An option may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time after
the date upon which the option is deemed to be granted and accepted and
prior to the expiry of 10 years from that date. The period during which an
option may be exercised will be determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion, save that no option may be exercised more than 10 years after it
has been granted.

No share options have been granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during
the year ended 31 December 2023 and no share options were outstanding as
at 31 December 2023 under the Share Option Scheme.

As at the date of this report, the total number of Shares available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme was 160,000,000 Shares representing 10%
of the issued Shares.

The number of share options available for grant under the Scheme Limit as
at 1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023 was both 160,000,000.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

On 16 December 2020, the Group entered into several continuing connected
transactions (collectively, the “2020 Agreements”) with the connected
persons of the Company, namely Guizhou Bangda, &/l &4 & RERE
f£ 72 7] (Guizhou Yue Bang Integrated Energy Limited Liability Company?*)
(“Guizhou Yue Bang”) and $8/N AL E 4R 4 85 )R A FR A A] (Panzhou Hongda
Integrated Energy Co., Ltd.”) (“Panzhou Hongda”). Guizhou Bangda was
owned as to 90% and 10% by Mr. Yu Bangping and Mr. Yu Bangcheng,
respectively. Mr. Yu Bangping is the Chairman and an executive Director.
Also, each of Mr. Yu Bangping and Mr. Yu Bangcheng was indirectly
interested in approximately 61.2% and 7.2% shareholding interests in
Spring Snow Management Limited, a substantial shareholder of the
Company, respectively. Hence, Mr. Yu Bangping and Mr. Yu Bangcheng
were regarded as the Controlling Shareholders. As such, Guizhou Bangda,
an entity controlled by Mr. Yu Bangping and Mr. Yu Bangcheng, was
regarded as an associate of the connected person of the Company pursuant
to Rule 14A.12(1)(c) of the Listing Rules. Guizhou Yue Bang was owned as
to 45% and 55% by Guizhou Bangda and an independent third party of the
Company, respectively and was therefore an associate of the connected
person of the Company pursuant to Rule 14A.12(1)(c) of the Listing Rules.
Panzhou Hongda was owned by Guizhou Bangda and an independent third
party of the Company, as to 49% and 51%, respectively and was therefore
also an associate of the connected person of the Company pursuant to Rule
14A.12(1)(c) of the Listing Rules. These continuing connected transactions
are disclosed as CCT No. 1 to 5 in the table below pursuant to Rule 14A of
the Listing Rules. Details of each of these continuing connected transactions
are set out in the announcement and the supplemental announcement of
the Company dated 16 December 2020 and 21 December 2020
respectively.

*  For identification purpose only
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

On 22 February 2022, & /N A = H ZE B B F 5 B 3 R0 & K &
(Guizhou Jiutai Bangda Pan County Yangchang Village Xiejiahegou Coal
Mine*) (“Xiejiahegou Coal Mine Branch”), a branch of Jiutai Bangda, and
BN FBE IR B R A A 885N & B RE (Guizhou Bangda Energy
Development Company Limited Pan County Yunixiang Changxing Coal
Mine*) (“Changxing Coal Mine Branch”), a branch of Guizhou Bangda
entered into the electricity supply agreement (the “Electricity Supply
Agreement”). As mentioned above, Guizhou Bangda, an entity controlled by
Mr. Yu Bangping and Mr. Yu Bangcheng, was regarded as an associate of
the connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly,
the transactions as contemplated under the Electricity Supply Agreement
constituted continuing connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. On 17 November 2023, Xiejiahegou Coal
Mine Branch and Changxing Coal Mine Branch entered into a termination
agreement, pursuant to which the Electricity Supply Agreement was early
terminated with effect from 17 November 2023. Details are disclosed as
CCT No. 6 in the table below pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
and set out in the announcements of the Company dated 22 February 2022
and 17 November 2023.
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(€9 Name, date and term of the agreements Transaction party Counterparty, nature and Consideration

No. and service fee within the Group description of the transaction Purpose of transaction for 2023

RERE  BELE BERDRIRERE AEENNRE S RA4FH  HERHE RZEW N2BERE

RMB'000

ARETT

1 Operations Agreement signed on 16 December 2020 Jiutai Bangda Logistics service provided by For temporarily storage and 4,153
R200F 128168 FTNEE ARHE Guizhou Bangda loading of Jiutai Bangda’s coal

mEMARRRRE

Term: From 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023
BR - A20215 1518220235 12/318

Logistics Service at cost of RMBS5 per tonne

IS ARBSTHBARERRG

*  For identification purpose only

and coal side products on trains
for onward transportation at
Hugjiazhuang Railway Logistics
Centre
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

CCT Name, date and term of the agreements
No. and service fee

2GR BEEE RERARNRRYE

2 Baogushan Gas Supply Agreement signed on
16 December 2020
R200E12 16 B EFT A AL R K T

Term: From 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023
HR : 8202151 A1AZ20235 123317

Sale of coalhed gas: RMB0.0688 per KWh electricity
generated (tax inclusive)

HERER  2EETRRAARK0.0688T(4H)

3 Hongguo Gas Supply Agreement signed on
16 December 2020
R2020E12 A6 BAFT VAL R At s

Term: From 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023
HR : 8202151 A1AZ20235 123317

Sale of coalbed gas: RMBO.18 per/m® (tax inclusive)

BERER  BUIRARY0.18T(EH)

4 Baogushan Electricity Supply Agreement signed on
16 December 2020
R200F12A16RFTNEALB NAERR

Term: From 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023
#R 5202151 A1AZ20235 123317

Purchase of electricity: RMB0.5038 per kWh

(tax inclusive)

BEEN: TABARK05038T(2H)

*  For identification purpose only

Transaction party Counterparty, nature and
within the Group description of the transaction
AEEANRS S REHTR - HERRE

ENARBEORREER
NREURESALRE

(Guizhou Jiutai Bangda Energy
Development Co., Ltd. Panxian
Hongguo Town Baogushan Coal
Mine?) (‘Baogushan Coal Mine
Branch”), a branch of Jiutai
Bangda

ENARAERRSERATE
FAREBAURR(ERLE
EA0E ) ARBENART)

Coalbed gas supplied to
Guizhou Yue Bang

REMEAHERER

EMARARERALER
ARERIRBARGR
(Guizhou Jiutai Bangda Energy
Development Co., Ltd. Panxian
Hongguo Town Hongguo Goal
Mine?) (‘Hongguo Coal Mine
Branch”), a branch of Jiutai
Bangda

NSRS ERATE
BURETRAR(LR5RD
AR)AFAENALA)

Coalbed gas supplied to
Panzhou Hongda

REMTEHERER

Baogushan Coal Mine Branch
BALKEALT

Electricity purchased from
Guizhou Yue Bang
mENEARER

?T;.\QE% E_\_% &)

Consideration
Purpose of transaction for 2023
REEH NBERE
RMB'000
ARETFT
Supply of coalbed gas from 3,869
Baogushan Coal Mine for
generating other source of
revenue
BEALKBEERNRE
Eﬁﬁ_WﬁXﬁ
Supply of coalbed gas from 1,230
Hongguo Coal Mine for
generating other source of
revenue
FRIREBAERLE
EE5—RERE
Purchase of electricity for use in 7310
Baogushan Coal Mine
EESNMEBALRRRR
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

CCT Name, date and term of the agreements
No. and service fee

2GR BEEE RERARNRRYE

5 Hongguo Electricity Supply Agreement signed on
16 December 2020
R0NF12A16RFTNIRE N B GE

Term: From 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023
R 8202151 A1AZ20235 123317

Purchase of electricity: RMB0.5117 per kWh
(tax inclusive)
BEE: BTABARKOSNR(2H)

6 Electricity Supply Agreement signed on
22 February 2022
20222 AR RETIE Nt

Term: From 22 February 2022 to 16 November 2023
R - 5002252 A22AZ2023411 7168

Sale of electricity: a fixed electrical capacity charge
and a unit price calculated based on the electricity
tariff plus RMB0.02 per kWWh (tax inclusive)

HEE)  EFAESERERERIENERNE
TREARB0.0270(55)

All the above continuing connected transactions as referred to CCT No. 1

Transaction party
within the Group

ARERNRSR

Hongguo Coal Mine Branch

ZI%)%%AA

Xiejiahegou Goal Mine Branch

AXTRREALE

Counterparty, nature and
description of the transaction

EOHES N E L

Electricity purchased from
Panzhou Hongda

REMIEEET

Electricity supplied to
Changxing Coal Mine Branch
NEEREA AAHEES

to 6 are exempt from the circular and independent shareholders’ approval

requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, but are subject to
the reporting, announcement and annual review requirements. None of the
transaction amount of each of the above continuing connected transactions
has exceeded its respective annual cap (on an aggregated basis where

appropriate) for the year ended 31 December 2023.
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Consideration
Purpose of transaction for 2023
REEH NBERE
RMB'000
ARETFT
Purchase of electricity for use in 6,967

Hongguo Coal Mine
BESNMMIRERER

Sale of electricity for enhancing -
the Group's profitability and
sharing of fixed electrical
capacity charge
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the continuing
connected transactions of the Company set out above and unanimously
confirmed that these continuing connected transactions were entered
into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (ii) on
normal commercial terms or better; and (jii) in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor of the Company
has issued an unqualified letter containing the findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

On 12 December 2023, the respective parties to the 2020 Agreements
entered into the 2023 operations agreement, the 2023 Baogushan gas
supply agreement, the 2023 Hongguo gas supply agreement, the 2023
Baogushan electricity supply agreement and the 2023 Hongguo electricity
supply agreement (collectively, the “2023 Agreements”) to extend the 2020
Agreements for three years from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2026.
The entering into of the 2023 Agreements constituted continuing connected
transactions for the Company under the Listing Rules. Details of these
transactions are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 12
December 2023.

Related Party Transactions

Details of the significant related party transactions of the Group are set
out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements. The Company
confirmed that in relation to the related party transactions for the year
ended 31 December 2023, the Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Please refer to the section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” of
this report for further details.
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Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group recognises the importance of environmental affairs and
considers business development and environment affairs are highly
related. During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group implemented
certain environmental protection measures to save energy and reduce the
consumption of resources. These policies were supported by the staff of the
Group and were implemented effectively.

For more detailed information about the Group’s environmental policies
and performance for this financial year, please refer to the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” on pages 77 to 103 of this annual report.

Key Relationships with Stakeholders

The Group recognises that employees, customers, business associates
and the local community are key stakeholders of the Group’s success.
The Group strives to achieve corporate sustainability through engaging
employees, providing quality services to customers and collaborating
with business associates (including suppliers and contractors) to deliver
sustainable products and services and support the local community.

For more detailed information, please refer to the “Environmental, Social
and Governance Report” on pages 77 to 103 of this annual report.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group is subject to various laws and regulations including the
Companies Act (As Revised) of the Cayman Islands, the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and Business
Registration Ordinance (Chapter 310 of the Laws of Hong Kong), etc.
The Group has put in place internal controls to ensure compliance of the
same. In addition, as the Group engages business in the People’s Republic
of China, compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to
applicable laws, rules and regulations in particular, the mining-related rules
and regulations which have significant impact on the Group. Any changes
in the applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought to the attention
of relevant employees and relevant operation units in the Company and
subsidiaries from time to time.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
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Relief of Taxation
The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the Shares.

Auditor

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023 have been
audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. A resolution to re-appoint Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as the independent auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the 2024 AGM.

By order of the Board

Yu Bangping

Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2024
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Culture and Values

The Company is committed to creating value for our customers and
contributing to the development of society through our products and
services. Our corporate culture is built on the following core values:

1. Professionalism: We focus on the coal industry and continuously
strive to improve our knowledge and skills; to reinforce the required
standards, the Company conducts periodic training for our
employees.

2. Integrity: We uphold high standards of business ethics and corporate
governance in all activities and operations and our employees
are committed to maintaining integrity and acting ethically and
responsibly, with explicit standards and norms laid out in training
materials for all new staff and incorporated into various policies,
such as the Group’s employee handbook, anti-corruption policy and
whistleblowing policy.

3. Responsibility: We see products and employee responsibility are
the valuable assets. We take responsibility for our coal production
and ensure it meets environmental and safety standards. We also
prioritise the safety and health of employees in the workplace by
providing necessary training and resources to ensure their well-
being.

4. Sustainability: We recognize the importance of environmental
protection and sustainable development. We always strive to
minimize our negative impact on the environment and promote

sustainable development in the economic and social aspects.

These core values will guide our actions and decisions, and help us achieve
our mission: to become a trusted and sustainable coal company, creating
value for our customers, employees, and communities.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
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Corporate Governance Code

The Company recognises the importance of corporate transparency and
accountability. It is the belief of the Board that the shareholders of the
Company can maximise their benefits from good corporate governance. It is
also with these objectives in mind that the Group has applied the principles
of good corporate governance as set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with all code
provisions of the CG Code during the year ended 31 December 2023,
except for the deviation disclosed herein.

Compliance with the Model Code for Securities
Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix C3 to the
Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Company
confirms that the Directors have complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2023.

The Board of Directors

The Board is responsible for ensuring continuity of leadership, development
of sound business strategies, availability of adequate capital and managerial
resources to implement the adopted business strategies, adequacy of
systems of financial and internal controls and conduct of business in
conformity with applicable laws and regulations. All Directors have made full
and active contribution to the affairs of the Board and the Board has always
acted in the best interests of the Group.

The executive Directors and the senior management are delegated with
respective levels of authorities with regard to key corporate strategies and
policy and contractual commitments. Senior management is responsible for
the day-to-day operations of the Group with divisional heads responsible for
different aspects of the Group’s business.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. During the period from 1 January 2023 to 31 March 2023,
the roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
(“CEO”) were held by Mr. Yu Bangping. Following the appointment of Mr.
Yu Zhilong, an executive Director, as the CEO in place of Mr. Yu Bangping
on 1 April 2023, the roles of the Chairman and CEO are performed by
Mr. Yu Bangping and Mr. Yu Zhilong, respectively. Mr. Yu Bangping is
responsible for the overall management and strategic planning and business
development of the Group and Mr. Yu Zhilong is accountable to the Board
for the implementation of the Company’s strategies and the coordination
of various business operations. As such, the Company is in full compliance
with code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code. The Company has clearly
established the division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the
CEO, so that the balance of power and authorization between the Board
and the management of the Company could be maintained.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises five executive Directors, namely Mr. Yu
Bangping (Chairman), Mr. Yu Zhilong (CEO), Mr. Li Xuezhong (Chief
Operating Officer), Mr. Lau Kai Ming (Chief Financial Officer) and Mr. Yu
Xiao and four independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Fong Wai
Ho, Mr. Punnya Niraan De Silva, Ms. Cheung Suet Ting, Samantha and
Mr. Wang Xiufeng. Mr. Yu Bangping is interested in the Company’s shares
through his interests in Spring Snow Management Limited, the immediate
holding company of the Company. Mr. Yu Bangping is the father of Mr. Yu
Zhilong. Save as disclosed aforesaid, the Directors have no other financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationships with one another.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
ERERERE (E)

Board Composition (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the number of independent non-
executive Directors represents more than one-third of the Board. As such,
there exists a strong independent element in the Board which can effectively
exercise independent judgement. The Company has complied with the
requirements under Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 11 to 16 of this
annual report.

Independence of Independent Non-executive

Directors

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from each
independent non-executive Director. The Company has assessed their
independence and concluded that all independent non-executive Directors
are independent in accordance with the relevant guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Board Independence

The Board has established mechanisms ensuring independent views
available to the Board and such mechanisms are reviewed annually by the
Board. The Board considered that the following key features or mechanisms
under the Company’s Board and governance structure are effective in
ensuring that independent views and input are provided to the Board.

Composition of the Board and °
Board Committees
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The Board endeavours to ensure the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive directors (“INED(s)”) and at least one-third of its members being

INEDs (or such higher threshold as may be required by the Listing Rules from time

to time).

e Apart from complying with the requirements prescribed by the Listing Rules as to

the composition of certain Board committees, INEDs will be appointed to other

Board committees as far as practicable to ensure independent views are available.
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Board Independence (continued)

Independence Assessment °
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
TRERES (F)
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The Nomination Committee must strictly adhere to the Nomination Policy and the
independence assessment criteria as set out in the Listing Rules with regard to
the nomination and appointment of INEDs.

Each INED is also required to inform the Company as soon as practicable if there
is any change in his/her own personal particulars that may materially affect his/her
independence.

The Nomination Committee is mandated to assess annually the independence of
all INEDs by reference to the independence criteria as set out in the Listing Rules
to ensure that they can continually exercise independent judgement.
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No equity-based remuneration (e.g. share options or grants) with performance-
related elements will be granted to INEDs as this may lead to bias in their
decision-making and compromise their objectivity and independence.
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Board Independence (continued)

Board Decision Making e INEDs (as other Directors) are entitled to seek further information and
documentation from the management on the matters to be discussed at Board
meetings. They can also seek assistance from the Company’s company secretary
and, where necessary, independent advice from external professional advisers at

the Company’s expense.

e INEDs (as other Directors) shall not vote or be counted in the quorum on any
Board resolution approving any contract or arrangement in which such Director or
any of his/her close associates has a material interest.

e The Chairman shall at least annually hold meetings with the INEDs without the
presence of other Directors to discuss major issues and any concerns.
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Review of mechanisms implementation e The Board shall, or may designate a Board committee to, make an annual review

of the implementation and effectiveness of these mechanisms.
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Directors’ Continuous Professional Development
The Company provides regular updates on the business performance
of the Group to the Directors. The Directors are continually updated by
the management of the Company on the latest development regarding
the Listing Rules and other applicable statutory requirements to ensure
compliance and upkeeping of good corporate governance practices.

ARARBBEE2 NEMHEFERRORIE

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional

development courses and seminars to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Directors
participated in continuous professional development by way of attending
training and/or seminars organised by professional organisations and
director training webcasts organised by the Stock Exchange and also
reading materials updating new practices, rules and regulations to keep
themselves updated on the roles, functions and duties of a listed company
director.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

Directors’ Continuing Professional Development

(continued)
According to the records provided by the Directors, a summary of training
received by the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2023 is as

follows:

Name of Directors FEHE

Executive Directors HiTEE

Mr. Yu Bangping (Chairman) RABFFREER)

Mr. Yu Zhilong (CEO) REBREE(TTEAEEL)
Mr. Li Xuezhong TEREAE

Mr. Lau Kai Ming DRREE S E

Mr. Yu Xiao RWEE

Mr. Sun Dawei (resigned on 1 April 2023)
Mr. Wang Shize (resigned on 12 March 2024)

HIIHTTEE
TEREE

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Fong Wai Ho

Mr. Punnya Niraan De Silva
RESLZ L
THEE

Ms. Cheung Suet Ting, Samantha
Mr. Wang Xiufeng

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors
Each of the executive Directors has entered into an executive director
service agreement with the Company for a term of three years until
terminated by either party by giving to the other not less than one month’s
notice. Each of the independent non-executive Directors was appointed to
the Board pursuant to his/her respective letter of appointment for a term of
three years until terminated by either party by giving to the other not less
than three months’ notice. The procedures and process of appointment,
re-election and removal of the Directors are governed by the Articles. Each
of the Directors is subject to re-election at the annual general meeting (the
“AGM”) of the Company upon retirement by rotation.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors
(continued)

The Articles provide that any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall hold office only until the first
AGM after his appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election at that
meeting.

In accordance with Article 16.19 of the Articles, at every AGM of the
Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number
is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to, but not
less than, one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Any Director required
to stand for re-election pursuant to Article 16.2 of the Articles shall not
be taken into account in determining the number of Directors and which
Directors are to retire by rotation. A retiring Director shall retain office until
the close of the AGM at which he/she retires and shall be eligible for re-
election. The Company at any AGM at which any Directors retire may fill the
vacated office by electing a like number of persons to be Directors.

Board Process

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall strategy
as well as the operation and financial performance of the Group. Directors
may participate in meetings either in person or through electronic means of
communications. At least fourteen days’ notice of a regular Board meeting
is normally given to all Directors who are provided with an opportunity to
include matters for discussion on the agenda. According to the current
Board practice, if a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be
considered by the Board which the Board has determined to be material,
the matter will be dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting
rather than by a written resolution. The Articles also stipulate that save for
the exceptions as provided therein, a Director shall abstain from voting and
not be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving any transaction,
contract or arrangement in which such Director or any of his/her associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) has a material interest.

In addition to Board meetings, the Chairman of the Board met with the
independent non-executive Directors once without the presence of other
executive Directors in 2023.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, eight Board meetings were held
and attendance of each Director at the Board meetings is set out in the
section headed “Attendance Records of Meetings” of this report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

Board Process (continued)
Board and committee minutes are recorded in appropriate detail and
draft minutes are circulated to all Directors and committee members for
comments before being approved.

Board Committees

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee (collectively, the “Board Committees”)
on 15 November 2018. All the Board Committees perform their distinct roles
and functions in accordance with their respective terms of reference which
are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
The Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee comprises three members, all being independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Fong Wai Ho, Mr. Punnya Niraan De Silva
and Ms. Cheung Suet Ting, Samantha. Mr. Fong Wai Ho is the Chairman of
the Audit Committee.

The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee include, among others,
(i) monitoring the integrity of the Group’s financial statements including
but not limited to the Group’s interim and annual results; (ii) overseeing the
relationship between the Company and its external auditor; (iii) reviewing
the financial reporting system and risk management and internal control
systems of the Group; and (iv) performing the corporate governance
functions set out in code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

All members of the Audit Committee possess in-depth experience in
their own profession. At least one of the committee members possesses
appropriate professional qualifications in finance and accounting and meets
the requirements of Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.
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Board Committees (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2023, there was no disagreement
between the Board and the Audit Committee on the selection and
appointment of the external auditor. The Audit Committee is mandated to
monitor the independence of the external auditor to ensure true objectivity
in the financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Audit Committee held two
meetings and performed the following duties:

(@) reviewed, with the management and the external auditor of the
Company, the 2022 annual results and the 2023 interim results of
the Group before their submission to the Board;

(b) monitored the integrity of such financial statements and the
accounting principles and policies adopted by the Group;

(©) oversaw matters concerning the external auditor including making
recommendations to the Board regarding the re-appointment of the
external auditor and approving their fees;

(d) reviewed the effectiveness of financial controls, risk management
and internal control systems of the Company as well as the
independence of the external auditor; and

(e) reviewed and was satisfied with the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget
of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions.

The attendance of each member of the Audit Committee is set out in the
section headed “Attendance Records of Meetings” of this report.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive Director, namely Mr.
Yu Bangping, and two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Fong Wai Ho and Ms. Cheung Suet Ting, Samantha. Mr. Yu Bangping is the
Chairman of the Nomination Committee.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

Board Committees (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

The primary responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the structure, size and composition (including without limitation, gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional experience, talents,
skills, knowledge, length of service, experience and other qualities of
Directors) of the Board at least annually and making recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy and assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) with the aim of enhancing the Board’s quality of performance as
well as achieving the Company’s sustainable and balanced development.
Board diversity has been considered from a number of perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge, and
length of service. All Directors’ appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. The current Board consists
of a diverse mix of Board members with appropriate skills and experience to
lead and oversee the business of the Company. Depending on the needs of
the Group’s growing business and the availability of competent candidates
to fulfill those needs, suitably qualified individuals will be considered in the
future for Board membership.

As at 31 December 2023, the Board comprised one female Director
(independent non-executive Director) and nine male Directors (comprising
six executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors),
representing one over ten of the Board’s composition. The Board targets
to maintain at least the current level of female representation, with no
immediate numerical targets as to the female director on the Board. The
management believes that setting numerical targets and timelines for
achieving gender diversity on the Board is a valuable enterprise goal.
However such setting is not currently feasible as the coal mining industry
has encountered challenges in attracting and developing female talent.
The Company is committed to promoting gender diversity and inclusivity
within its organization in the long run. The Board will continue to explore
opportunities to increase the proportion of female board members over time
as and when suitable candidates are identified.
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Board Committees (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

As at 31 December 2023, more than 12% of the Group’s global workforce
(including senior management) was female. Accordingly, the Company
considers that gender diversity is also achieved in its workforce generally.
The table below summarizes the share of women at different position levels
across the Group as at 31 December 2023.

Level

M2023F12A31H * AEE2KETHE (B
HEEREREAB)BB12% A - At - &
REIRREETIERBNMERIERZ T - K
AEER2023F 12 A31H » AEBARTRBAL
MBI LT -

R
Senior

Gender Director Management Manager Employee
451 = SREEE s BT
Male 9 5 46 3,229
B

Female 1 - 2 453
g i

Note: The above data is calculated based on the number of total employees of the
Group as of 31 December 2023.

The Board has also adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”)
to formally set out the criteria, process and procedures for the Nomination
Committee to recommend suitable candidates for directorship. According
to the Nomination Policy, the ultimate responsibility for selection and
appointment of Directors rests with the entire Board or the shareholders
in general meetings, as the case may be. The Board has delegated the
relevant screening and evaluation process to the Nomination Committee,
which identifies suitably qualified Director candidates and recommends
them to the Board. In assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate, the
Nomination Committee takes into consideration the expected contribution
of the candidate that would bring to the Board to ensure the Board has a
balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business, his/her commitment and devoting
sufficient time and attention to the Company’s affairs, fulfilment of the
independence requirements as set out in the Listing Rules (for independent
non-executive Directors) and diversity on the Board. After reaching
its decision, the Nomination Committee nominates relevant Director
candidates to the Board for approval of appointment and for consideration
and recommendation in respect of the re-election of the retiring Directors.
The Board will make recommendation to shareholders in respect of the
proposed re-election of Directors at general meetings of the Company.
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Board Committees (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Nomination Committee held
two meetings and performed the following duties:

(@) reviewed the structure, size, composition of the Board and the
Board Diversity Policy, to ensure that the Board’s composition
complies with the Listing Rules and reflects an appropriate mix
of skills, experience, and diversity that are relevant to Company’s
strategy, governance, and business and contribute to the Board’s
effectiveness and efficiency. The Nomination Committee is satisfied
with the implementation and effectiveness of the Board Diversity

Policy;

(b) assessed the independence of independent non-executive Directors;
and

(c) made recommendations to the Board on the re-election of the

retiring Directors and the appointment of new CEO.

The attendance of each member of the Nomination Committee is set out in
the section headed “Attendance Records of Meetings” of this report.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises one executive Director, namely
Mr. Lau Kai Ming and two independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Fong Wai Ho and Mr. Punnya Niraan De Silva. Mr. Fong Wai Ho is the
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee.
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Board Committees (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include, among
others, (i) making recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure
for all remuneration of the Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing policies
on such remuneration; (ii) reviewing and approving the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals
and objectives; and (iii) making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of executive Directors and members of senior
management.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Remuneration Committee
held two meetings and passed written resolutions in discharge of the
following duties:

(@) reviewed the revised terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee and recommended to the Board for approval;

(b) reviewed the remuneration of Directors and senior management
of the Group and recommended the Board to approve their
remuneration; and

(c) reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the proposed
remuneration package of the new CEO appointed during the year.

The attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee is set out
in the section headed “Attendance Records of Meetings” of this report.

Remuneration of the Members of the Senior Management by
Band

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, details of the annual
remuneration of the senior management by band for the year ended 31
December 2023 are as follows:

HiNEE

Remuneration band

Nil to HK$1,000,000

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year ended 31 December
2023 are set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Attendance Records of Meetings

Set out below are the individual attendance records of each Director at the
Board meetings, Board Committees meetings and AGM held during the
year ended 31 December 2023:

Attended/Eligible to attend

HE/SERILRE
Audit Nomination Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee
Name of Directors £ Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting AGM
gZg BREZEE REZEE yMzEE BRRBE
83 82 a5 a5 PN
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Yu Bangping (Chairman) RBERE(EE) 8/8 N/ATNEF 2/2 N/ATE 1/1*
Mr. Yu Zhilong (CEO) RXREE(TTBAH) 8/8 N/ATNEF N/ATNEF N/ATE 1/1*
Mr. Li Xuezhong FEREE 7/8 N/ANE N/ATE N/ANE 1/1*
Mr. Lau Kai Ming BIRRsesE A 7/8 N/ARE A N/ATNE A 2/2 1/1%
Mr. Yu Xiao RAAE 7/8 N/AT N/ATEF N/ATE A 171
Mr. Sun Dawei BRERE
(resigned on 1 April 2023) (72023F4 F1HEHMT) 2/2 N/ATNE A N/ATNEF N/ATNE N/ATNE
Mr. Wang Shize FREAE
(resigned on 12 March 2024) (R2024F3 F12HEHE) 7/8 N/AT i F N/ATEF N/ATE 1/1*
Independent Non-executive BUHHTEE
Directors
Mr. Fong Wai Ho FRREE 7/8 2/2 2/2 2/2 1/1%
Mr. Punnya Niraan De Silva Punnya Niraan De SilvaZt & 7/8 2/2 N/ATER 2/2 1/1*
Ms. Cheung Suet Ting, Samantha REF %+ 7/8 2/2 2/2 N/ATNEF 1/1*
Mr. Wang Xiufeng IHREEE 7/8 N/ATEH N/ATE A N/ATiE A 11
* Attended by electronic means LEFHALE
# Attended in person BEHE
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Auditor’s Remuneration

The remuneration paid or payable to the Company’s auditor, Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, for services rendered in respect of the year ended 31
December 2023 is as follows:

Audit services %R
Non-audit services IEZEARTE

Other services H bR
Total BEt

In considering the re-appointment of the external auditor, the Audit
Committee has taken into consideration their relationship with the Company
and their independence. Based on the results of the review and after
taking into account the opinion of the management of the Group, the
Audit Committee recommended the Board to re-appoint Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as the external auditor of the Company for the ensuing year,
subject to approval by the shareholders of the Company at the 2024
AGM. In addition, the Audit Committee is of the view that the auditor’s
independence is not affected by the non-audit services rendered.

1% 24 B 357 B

RRBE LB e B E R T ZTRTTH
HZE2023F12 A31 A L FE ARt RE B
PEFOMEAT

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT

2,341 2,147
1,877 29
4,218 2,176
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibilities in respect

of the Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for presenting a clear,
balanced assessment of the Group’s performance and prospects and
preparing the financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
Group on a going-concern basis. The management provides the Board with
the relevant information it needs to discharge these responsibilities. The
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 104 to 110 of this annual report.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard the Group’s assets
and the shareholders’ interests. The risk management and internal control
systems are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
of no material misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate
risks of failure in operational systems and achievements of the Group’s
objectives.

Main Features of Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems

Risk Management System

The risk management system comprises risk identification, risk evaluation
and risk management. The management is entrusted with duties to identify
and communicate risks associated with any activity, function or process
within its scope of responsibility and authority. Risks are evaluated by the
Board and management based on the severity of the impact of the risks on
the Company’s financial results and the probability that the risks will occur.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)
Main Features of Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems (continued)

Risk Management System (continued)

Based on the risk evaluation, the Company manages the risk as follows:

° Risk mitigation — management will implement risk mitigation plan to
reduce the likelihood and severity of the risk to an acceptable level.

. Risk retention — management will retain the risk if the risk rating is at
acceptable level and no action is required.

° Risk monitoring — management will monitor the level of risk
continuously and will take necessary action to reduce the risk to
acceptable level.

Internal Control System

The Company has put in place an internal control system which enables the
Group to achieve objectives regarding the effectiveness and efficiency of
operations, reliability of financial reporting and compliance with applicable
laws and regulations. The main features of the internal control system are
shown as follows:

° Monitoring — ongoing evaluations are conducted to ascertain
whether the internal control system is functioning.

° Risk assessment — a risk management system is established for
identifying and analysing risks to achieve the Company’s objectives,
forming a basis for determining how risks are managed.

° Information and communication - internal and external
communication are made to provide the Company with information
needed to carry out day-to-day controls.

Our internal audit department is responsible for assessment of the
effectiveness of the performance of the safety production measures.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)
Main Features of Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems (continued)

Internal Control System (continued)

The Board has an ongoing process for identifying, assessing, and managing
the significant risks (including environmental, social, and governance
(“ESG”) risks) encountered by the Group. As part of this process, the risk
management systems and internal controls are reviewed at least annually
and improved from time to time in response to changes in the business or
external environment. By identifying and evaluating the risks encountered
as well as designing, operating, and monitoring effective internal controls
to mitigate and control these risks, management assists the Board in
the design, implementation and maintenance of the Group’s policies,
procedures, and limits within the Board’s approved risk appetite.

The review covers all material controls, including financial, operational and
procedural compliance controls as well as the process for the identification,
evaluation and management of the significant risks (including ESG risks)
faced by the Group. The Board also reviews the Group’s accounting,
compliance, risk management, internal audit, and financial reporting
functions, as well as those pertaining to the Group’s ESG performance and
reporting, in terms of resources, employee qualifications and experience,
training programmes, and budget of the Group.

In order to ensure a sound and effective internal control system
underpinning the risk management framework, the Board, through the Audit
Committee, conducted an annual review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group with the assistance
of an independent internal control consultancy firm, Richard Poon &
Partners Risk Management Limited (“Richard Poon”), for the year ended 31
December 2023. Richard Poon submitted its internal control review and risk
assessment reports of the Group to the Audit Committee and the Board in
March 2024.

The above-mentioned review report with examination results and relevant
improvement recommendations duly enabled the Audit Committee and
the Board to assess the effectiveness of the internal control and risk
management systems of the Group. Any material failings or weaknesses
identified in the internal control system were dealt with through appropriate
remedial actions in a timely manner. All remedial actions shall also be
regularly followed up where necessary to ensure that the failings and
weaknesses have been mitigated or duly addressed.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)
Main Features of Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems (continued)

Internal Control System (continued)

During the review, the Board also considered the resources and staff
qualifications and experience of the Group’s internal audit, accounting,
financial reporting and business support functions, and found their training
and budgets adequate. The Board considers that the risk management
and internal control systems are effective and adequate and that the
Company has complied with code provisions of the CG Code relating to risk
management and internal control.

The Company is aware of its obligation under the SFO, the Listing Rules and
the overriding principle that inside information should be announced on a
timely basis and conducts its affairs in strict compliance with the applicable
laws and regulations. The Company has established disclosure mechanism
regarding the procedures of identifying inside information and preserving its
confidentiality until proper dissemination with the Board’s approval through
the electronic publication systems operated by the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

ESG compliance and governance

The Group has developed internal strategies aimed at creating sustainable
value for its stakeholders and minimizing its negative impact on the
environment. To carry out the Group’s sustainability strategy from top
to bottom, the Board holds ultimate responsibility for ensuring the
effectiveness of the Group’s ESG strategies.

Dedicated teams have been established within each business division
to manage ESG issues and monitor progress toward corporate goals for
addressing climate change. These teams are responsible for enforcing and
overseeing the implementation of relevant ESG policies throughout the
Group and have designated staff members to carry out these tasks.

The Group’s management and responsible teams regularly review and
adjust its sustainability policies to meet the evolving needs of stakeholders.
Detailed ESG risk and information on the Group’s management approaches
for environmental and social aspects can be found in various sections of
our ESG report. The Board is satisfied with the adequacy of the Group’s
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget relating to ESG performance and reporting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

Procedures and Internal Controls for the Handling
and Dissemination of Inside Information

With respect to the procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Group conducts its affairs with
close attention to the inside information provisions under the SFO and the
Listing Rules. The Directors and senior management are responsible for
determining whether any particular information is inside information and
overseeing and coordinating disclosure of inside information of the Group.
They are also responsible for taking reasonable measures to ensure that
proper safeguards exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure requirement
in relation to the Group from time to time and that disclosures are made
and/or announcements are published on a timely basis in accordance
with the applicable laws and regulations, and before such information is
fully disclosed to the public, they shall ensure the same is kept strictly
confidential. The Directors are also committed to ensuring that information
contained in announcements are not false or misleading as to a material
fact, or false or misleading through the omission of a material fact in view of
presenting information in a clear and balanced way.

Communication with Shareholders and Investor
Relations

The Board communicates with its Company’s shareholders and investors
through various channels. The Board members meet and communicate
with shareholders and investors at AGMs and other general meetings
where shareholders can obtain better understanding of the business and
operating performance of the Group. Corporate communications (such as
interim and annual reports, notices, circulars and announcements) are sent
to shareholders in a timely manner and are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Company has adopted the Shareholders Communication Policy,
which is available on the Company’s website and sets out the Group’s
objective of ensuring timely, transparent and accurate communications
between the shareholders and the Company. The Board reviewed the
Shareholders Communication Policy and the Group’s shareholders and
investor engagement and communication activities conducted in 2023 and
was satisfied with the implementation and effectiveness of the Shareholders
Communication Policy.

During the year under review, the 2023 AGM was held on 31 May 2023.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
ERERERE (E)

Dividend Policy
The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”). According

to the Dividend Policy, in deciding whether to propose a dividend and

in determining the dividend amount, the Board takes into account the

following:

@

()

The financial results of the Group;

The working capital requirements, capital expenditure requirements
and future expansion plans of the Group;

The retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company;

The general economic condition, industry cycles of the Group’s
business and other internal or external factors that may have an
impact on the business or financial performance and position of the

Group;

Any banking or other funding covenants by which the Company is
bound from time to time;

Any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by
the Group’s contracting parties;

The shareholders’ and investors’ expectation; and

Any other factors that the Board considers relevant.

The payment of dividends is also subject to compliance with applicable laws

and regulations including the laws of the Cayman Islands and the Articles.

The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy from time to time

and there can be no assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular

amount for any given period.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

Company Secretary

Mr. Chan Kwong Leung, Eric is the company secretary of the Company who
was nominated by an external service provider in respect of his appointment
as the company secretary of the Company. The primary corporate contact
person at the Company is Mr. Lau Kai Ming, an Executive Director and the
Chief Financial Officer of the Group. Mr. Chan has confirmed that he took
no less than 15 hours of the relevant professional training during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

Shareholders’ Rights

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for the shareholders
to exchange views directly with the Board. Subject to provisions of the
applicable laws in the Cayman Islands and rules and regulations of the
Stock Exchange, an AGM is held each year and at the venue as determined
by the Board. Each general meeting, other than an AGM, is called an
extraordinary general meeting (‘EGM”).

Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 12.3 of the Articles, an EGM shall be convened on the
written requisition of any one or more members of the Company holding
together, as at the date of deposit of the requisition, shares representing
not less than one-tenth of the voting rights, on a one vote per share basis,
of the Company which carry the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
company secretary at the principal place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong, which is presently situated at Unit 1003, 10th Floor, Tower
2, Lippo Centre, 89 Queensway, Hong Kong, for the purpose of requiring
an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition and signed by the requisitionist(s). If within 21
days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the requisitionist(s) (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting Forward Enquiries by Shareholders to the Board
Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for the attention
of the company secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
ERERERE (E)

Shareholders’ Rights (continued)

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals by Shareholders at
Shareholders’ Meeting

Shareholders are requested to follow Article 12.3 of the Articles for putting
forward a resolution at a general meeting. The requirements and procedures
are set out above in the section headed “Shareholders to Convene an
Extraordinary General Meeting”.

Significant Changes in Constitutional Documents

On 31 May 2023, the shareholders of the Company have approved at
the 2023 AGM the proposed amendments (the “Amendments”) to the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company by way of
adoption of the new set of Memorandum and Articles of Association in
substitution for and to the exclusion of the existing Memorandum and
Articles of Association in order to (a) reflect and align with changes to
the requirements under the amended Appendix 3 (which has been re-
numbered as Appendix A1 since 31 December 2023) to the Listing Rules
with respect to core shareholder protection standards; and (b) incorporate
certain housekeeping amendments. Details of the Amendments were set
out in the circular of the Company dated 26 April 2023. The latest Amended
and Restated Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company is
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

By order of the Board
Yu Bangping
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2024
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Reporting Principles and Scopes

With its main production facilities located in Guizhou Province, China, the
Group is mainly engaged in mine development, coal mining, as well as clean
coal production and sales. To a smaller extent, the Group is also engaged
in the sales of other related products including middling coal, sludge coal
and coalbed methane gas. This environmental, social and governance
(“ESG”) report (the “ESG Report”) mainly covers the Group’s principal
business and operation from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023, in
Hongguo Coal Mine, Baogushan Coal Mine, Xiejiahegou Coal Mine (includes
Xiejiahegou Coal Preparation Plant) and Songshan Coal Preparation Plant
in Guizhou, and the offices in Guizhou and Hong Kong. With the support
of the Group’s management team and the Board, the original consumption
data were collected and sorted from the Group’s internal documentation
and relevant utility bills, and submitted to an independent consultancy
company that calculated and quantified the Group’s ESG KPIs, complying
with the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG
Guide”) under Appendix C2 to the Listing Rules and following HKEX’s ESG
Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs and ESG Reporting Guidance
on Social KPIs. The preparation of this ESG Report mainly follows the
principles listed below:

1. Materiality: the channels of stakeholder engagement as well as the
process of identifying material ESG factors will be disclosed in the
sections to follow;

2. Quantitative: the reporting of emissions/energy consumption follows
HKEX’s ESG Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs and uses
calculation tools it recommends; any assumptions made in relation

to a specific calculation are disclosed in the relative sections;

3. Consistency: there were no major changes to the methods or
KPIs used, or any other relevant factors affecting a meaningful
comparison with the previous year;

4. Balance: by engaging an independent consultancy company, the
Group works to provide an unbiased picture of its ESG performance.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
R HERERWE (B)

A Message from the Board EEGE

As the governing body, the Board’s role extends to evaluating the Group’s EE2ERATERE HBERETMAEE
operations, addressing achievements, and identifying areas for improvement EEBIEN - REABIEENRIFIRE - bF
in terms of environmental protection, corporate governance, and social BBkt gLmE T ESENEMES
involvement.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, to cater to the increasingly REZE2023F 128318 ILFE - AwEHx

significant ESG requirements and the need for environmental transformation, BENRE G REBERASIRFEEY
the Company conducted a thorough review of its past business operations Bk AREHEBTERESHET T 2EE
and identified the key indicators that have the greatest impact and are & WHEETHERABXIBNESEER
highly valued by stakeholders. Building upon this foundation, the Board RIFRRIEE - ML AR - EFSSIATHE
has also introduced some new management protocols. Since the Group’s THHERRE AR AEEZTEEBAEER
principal business engages in the extraction of natural resources and ERFARRBIREREE - SEMBERRER

production of coal products, the emission of pollutants and use of resources EREAESEARNERAEENEEEZEER
are considered top priorities. The Group’s major goals are to reduce its o AEENFEZER AR SRAMBEMRE

pollutant emissions and resource consumption. The achievement of these RHERE - ZF B ENERIERBBIEMEIIRE
goals is assessed by relative environmental KPls. As a labour-intensive BB RUBIREI TR - (ERB N EEEXE

industry, the Group has always been committed to improving the working REBBRB NN ERE B TIERE RIRIE
environment and operational safety of its employees. With the assistance of 22 o fEANEBERBPIVHE T - REREHIE
the HR department, the Group has developed policies, conducted employee THE - FEEIEIIWLEIS —ERRK o bRl
training, and achieved certain results. In addition to activities related to the RNEE A EARREEEIN - RABTRBNNE
Group’s production, the company is also dedicated to giving back to the FEEMMR - BRBREEMEDFE N AR5
local community by providing support to disadvantaged groups through BEBIRMEY I MREZESETMNER -
donations and other forms of assistance, ensuring they have access to

better welfare.

5

K

Upon thorough review, the Board is pleased to confirm that this ESG Report

KRPEEN  EFEMARIBEIRE  Hg
aligns with the ESG Guide, covering all significant aspects mentioned earlier. RERAMEREGRE (g REBWRERE -
For the year under review, we wish to highlight the exceptional community BEXALAMWFBEERE®T - Y¥REIEF
involvement demonstrated during the reviewed year. Additionally, we B ZPRtaAREBEFERT SR
acknowledge and appreciate the relentless efforts devoted to containing 2081 o A - RPIARA WA ISR ER
Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emissions and air pollutants. BS(GHG)BERUR 22 &5 4 W1 05 E P i< (H B0 T 18

By

As the Board, we remain committed to guiding and supporting initiatives EBEESG - BMDBUIRIES R M

that make a positive contribution to our ESG objectives. We believe in the IR e RERBEEREGRERAEIEE
importance of transparency and accountability in our operations, and we & o BPVRMBRAE LEEHERMEEPD
appreciate the ongoing collaboration and support of our stakeholders. FEY  HENENRESIEEZRFIOFR

A o



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

Stakeholders Communication

The Group’s major stakeholders comprise its shareholders and investors,
government and regulatory bodies, customers, employees, communities,
and media. To ensure this ESG Report reflects their main concerns, the
Group has developed various channels that allow stakeholders to share
their demands and opinions on the Group’s operation and performances
regarding environmental, social and governance aspects. The table below
identifies the major stakeholders’ demands and expectations and outlines
our communication channels with each of them.

Stakeholders Major demands and expectations
BH0E FEERKHE
Shareholders and investors e Profit sustainability

e Corporate governance system

e Consumption of energy and
emission of pollutants

e Prevention of operational risks

BER NI EE o HEATEE

o BERERES

o BEURBRERTRMBER

o EBEBALERMR

Government and regulatory bodies e Compliance with regulations
e Consumption of energy and
emission of pollutants
e (Conservation of resources
BURT N B E B o EEM
o BEIRHREROSRAYHEL
e EREIR

Customers e Quality of products and services
e |nformation security
e Ease of communication
S o EmERBE=S
o AilZ®E
o JBR{ER

R HEREARE(E)

KFERE

AEBENEIZRNERFBERRLTESE - &
FREEE#E TP B HERKE- B
BRAIRE - HEREARE RRNE 20
TEEH ARBERIZERE - UERHE
DEREFERE HeNEAERHAEESE
EBERRBAMEREER - TREBJIEZERNE
MBEREHE - A RBERTRPIR S (B0 &
TTRBNRE -

Main communication channels
FTERBRE

e Company announcement
e General meetings
e Annual report and interim report

o RERE
o BEXE®
o FHLPHRE

e Supervision and evaluation
e ESG Report
e Inspection

. BEREK
o B HEREARE

o HE

e Business communication
e Customer feedback

o XMABB
s EFFR#E
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

RS g RERRE(B)

Stakeholders
BE

Employees

Communities

v

Media

Major demands and expectations
FEERKHE

e Job security

e Workplace safety

e Corporate governance system
e Employee rights and benefits
e Employee remuneration and welfare
e Career development

o FEMRE

o IEGMRE

o EERES

o [EERENEF

o EEHMEE AL

o WEURE

e |nvolvement in public welfare activities
e Emission of pollutants

e Community investment

e Providing jobs

o ZZHINZIEE

o ITRMBEN

o HERKRE

o IEftBE

e Transparent information
e Sustainable business development
e Production safety

o EHUEH
o WRHEBEBER
o LEHAE

The Group welcomes feedback on its ESG approach and performances.

Hearing from the stakeholders enables the Group to include all-rounded

opinions when preparing this ESG Report and formulating relevant policies

to address their concerns for the year to come. Should you have any

questions or recommendations on the Group’s ESG matters, please feel

free to enquire via the Company’s website.

Main communication channels

TERBBERE

e Staff meetings and activities
e Staff training

e Workers’ congress

e Recruitment process

e Communication with communities and
local government
e Charity activities

o HMENEMBATEE
o BEEDH

e Company’s website

e Company’s advertisements
e Business interviews

® Pressreleases

o NEAHUL

o RAEE

o MEBE

o CHTEIEM
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

Environmental Protection

Our General Environmental Policies

Generally speaking, the Group’s mining operation mainly consists of the
following key steps, all of which involve a certain level of environmental
impact:

Coal Mine
Development

BRAE R 3%

Coal Mining

i

In the course of coal mine development and mining operations, our
most significant impact is on the land environment. The coal preparation
stage demands a substantial quantity of water, necessitating appropriate
wastewater treatment. During product transportation, the emission of air
pollutants and carbon dioxide is attributed to vehicle exhaust and the use of
fossil fuels. Finally, we actively engage in land reclamation efforts, aiming to
restore and establish a new life cycle for the utilised land.

As the above-mentioned production cycles are based in the Panzhou area
of Guizhou Province of the PRC, our business operations shall comply
with local and national environmental laws. Overall, the most important
and relevant laws and regulations are the Environmental Protection Law
of the People’s Republic of China ((FFZE A R £ MBIIRIFRE L)), and the
Environmental Impact Assessment Law of the People’s Republic of China
(R EARLFMBEIREZLFEL)). When we have construction projects
for new facilities, we shall closely follow the Administrative Measures for
Inspection and Acceptance on Environmental Protection of Construction
Projects (2218 B & TIRFREB I E L IHE)). Meanwhile, both at the
national and provincial levels, there is a significant focus on promoting
the development of a greener and more environmentally sustainable coal
industry. This emphasis is particularly evident in Guizhou, where numerous
non-compliant coal mines are facing penalties and potential closures. There
were no environmental non-compliance cases during the year under review.

RE @ REAWmE(8)

RIBRE

RAMEERBER

—RiME - AREREFEEEEREN TR
P BESEGA SR - ERENREY
£

R RR % RREER BT - RIS
RENFERRIE - BRERFEZAEN
K BEEBEKETEENREE - REMER
o OAERR R AR ER S EKRERS
ROE —SACHIEDN - &1k - RIFFEGRETL
WRETE - §EREERBN LY REE
SRR B o

A il T AR EE IR ERIA A v B N A AN
g - MBEMNEBELRETE MBS
BER - BREME - SEENMBBEAERER
AP EARANMBRBEREE)M(PEAR
AMBRBEENEER) - EBEFREEREA
BE - BAAERBET(EZRARRTRRER
EBRWEBRIDE) - FE - BRREREEY
SEEREERE - BRRO T FHERRE
EMBR - EMNERIEALREE  FZEMR
BT IE T B R 51 R BABA O T BE 1 - MR SF
B RBELERFEREMN -



82

Perennial Energy Holdings Limited A = BERIZERER QA

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
BE - g RERHE(R)

We are dedicated to fulfilling our corporate responsibilities and contributing
to the national mission of environmental conservation. The unpredictable
nature of climate and extreme weather conditions poses a potential challenge
for businesses involved in outdoor operations, a concern particularly
relevant to us due to our outdoor and underground production processes.
Fortunately, during the reporting year, we successfully navigated the diverse
climate conditions, and no specific climate-related issues significantly
impeded our operations.

To minimise the environmental impacts caused by our operations, the
Group closely monitors its coal extraction and pollution control measures.
Relevant statistics are meticulously recorded to assess our performance
trends over the years. Through site examination, assessment, and planning
from time to time, the Group fully implements sustainable business models
in major decision-making processes. Existing procedures are updated as
necessary. Our environmental objectives for the reviewed year primarily
focus on resource conservation and the reduction of pollutant emissions.
Specific steps taken in each aspect will be disclosed in relevant sections
in the ESG Report while the list below outlines the major environmental
management procedures the Group takes.
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We implement a robust monitoring system to continuously track and assess the
environmental impact of operations. Regular updates were made available to stakeholders
through comprehensive reports, showcasing the company’s commitment to transparency
and accountability.

Continuous
monitoring and reporting
FRABERRE

HMERARANEZERGARFEER N HEEHRENTE - RMNEBGEREAFNE
REEHEMNEN  RRAREIERAE MHEE HIAHEGE o

We enforce stringent water conservation policies and ensure our machinery is modernised to
enhance water usage efficiency. Our coal mines are fitted with water treatment facilities,
sewage circulation systems, and recycling pools, which allow us to recycle and reuse a
portion of wastewater when safety protocols are met.

Water resources
conservation

KEFIRE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
RE - g RERWE(R)

Continuously researching the mining water treatment techniques and adhering to the latest
Wastewater discharge policies, the Group has adopted an advanced wastewater treatment solution to
management minimise the impact of mining water discharge. A combination of chemical and physical

BEXEE treatments must be applied to our mining wastewater until it meets relevant regulatory
standards for discharge.

A BT ET R FTRE KR IR AT - T RIEVPEMBOR - RAKENBEKEENR &
RADTRFRBERA & - AHRMIRERETARS N EERYIEZRE - B2 E2|HEEE
REEEIRZE o

Treated coal wastes from our mines are securely loaded onto trucks and transported to
Solid waste designated areas nearby. The designated areas are believed to have the capacity to securely

treatment contain over 10 years of waste produced by our mines.
E R YRR

KEHFESREERRERYBE REL2REEMITIEERIERE o & E R AT AR
105F LA L EEAEVEEERY) -

Low-concentration methane power generators are built in each of our coal mines to generate
Reduction of dust electricity from gas while significantly reducing the methane emissions from our coal mining

and air poIIuta_njcs productivity. We have also installed water sprinklers to control dust and maintain a safe work
WO BERZERS R environment.

D BANSERBEEERET I EEH - BRROLHTBREE - R AR D RFIEZRE
EEBRATLR - HPITE R REKRBENRENER AR TERELE -

Our noise control measures include the use of silencers, noise and vibration dampening,
Noise control englosure of noisy equipment, use of insulation materials, and ongoing equipment
1 2450 | maintenance.
=] ?I%J

)) - - BAREEGDEER/RERAESS  RERRE BEERRERE  EREEMHESEE
TR

We recognise the impact of mining activities on local ecosystems and implement measures
Biodiversity to enhance biodiversity conservation. We conduct reclamation activities according to the
conservation laws and regulations in the PRC, making our contribution to recovering and preserving

EYZHMURE damaged farmland, grassland, and forests so that current and future generations can

continue to benefit from these natural spots.

h) HMRBI RS HENERRGNTE - WREERINREYZHERE - RIOBRED
BUERROEMRETERED - BHMIIBROH - EMERMRERRE - ©ZZEA
ERFEESEARTHEN
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GHG Emission Reduction

The measurement of greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions has progressively
become a pivotal factor in determining a company’s environmental
friendliness. As a coal mining company, there are different steps in the
Group’s operations that cause greenhouse gas emissions. Fuel consumption
at the mining sites, vehicles used for coal transportation, and waste
treatment procedures directly generate greenhouse gas (GHG). Purchased
energy, mainly electricity, used to power our machinery and equipment,
such as scraper conveyors and shearers used in coal development, coal
mining, coal preparation, and other production processes, contributes
the most to its indirect GHG emissions. To a lesser extent, such indirect
generation also comes from power consumption in the Group’s offices in
Mainland China and Hong Kong.

To echo the determination of the policymakers to achieve carbon reduction,
the Group targeted to maintain GHG emissions at a relatively low level. The
Group has built low-concentration methane gas power plants at each of
Hongguo Coal Mine, Baogushan Coal Mine and Xiejiahegou Mine, which
utilises the methane emitted from the coal mining process and prevents it
from polluting the air.

In 20283, the Group’s carbon emissions have seen a slight increase
compared to the previous year, 2022. This could be attributed primarily
to the resumption of production activities following the lifting of pandemic
restrictions, leading to an increase in electricity consumption. However, it is
noteworthy that the carbon dioxide (CO,) emissions intensity per tonne of
coal products sold has decreased by approximately 10 kg. This indicates
a significant improvement in the Group’s production methods, reflecting a
greener approach to operations.

BERERBE
REREE(GHG)BEHRE A B E R #EARE R
AHRERERZENERAR - FR—FEK
FRAR] AREEETNTRIREEER
EREBHW - WALRHFER  KREBMA
EWMANEREEREHEERELRER
B2 - AERE) A AR AR (AR R B 3 - 1R
BRAK - KpOTEME M A E BT ERAN
AR B X AR M) T RER (EERE
1) BEZAEREHBALEKX - NEH
AP BEARERBEBRREEREETRIERE
BB AR P -

REBRERSEEBRBOREAORL - KEE
B ERAE R AR EERIEKE - AEE
RALRPETE ~ BAWURRERHFERES A
BAREREFREER - UENRBEERRE
TP P A BT (EEDS R ZER, -

20235 - ANEE M HRBERE &A1 —F20224F
BEEIGIN o b= 22 mAEIER SRR 1A £ B
SEBNIRE - BEFEBEEIN - AW EEBEE
HZ - BHEE HERIREMN SRR
ETHA10F R - WBARAEENEES R
BEWE  2EHAFRR -




. c0e
CRC N
Q o.0/c @ Annual Report 2023 £ 85

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
RE - g RERWE(R)

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12A31ALEE
2023 2022
2023F 20224

Total Total

emissions emission
of CO, Key emissions of CO,  Key emissions
equivalent intensity’ equivalent intensity’

=t -f 474 k=R (474

GHG emissions (kilogram in CO, BEREHNKE EEHN EEHENK
equivalent) (ZEtmEETR) #BE IEFREE @Em FEHREE
(kg) (kg/tonne) (kg) (kg/tonne)
(%) (F=,/H) (Fx) (F5e,/ME)
Direct (Scope 1) HiE(EE) 3,718,474 3.04 4,227,271 3.96
Indirect (Scope 2) % (& E2) 91,992,349 75.10 90,336,199 84.68
Total 4zt 95,710,823 78.14 94,563,470 88.64

Note: PIE

1) Key emissions intensity is calculated by kg of CO, equivalent emissions per (1) FTEHRTEREWE HERRERN =

tonne of coal products sold. SibiE PR (T8 -
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Air Pollution Control ZERSREH

The Group’s operation involves the emission of key air pollutants, primarily REBENSESREEERSEMN - £2
Nitrogen Oxide (NO,), Sulphur Oxide (SO,) and Particulate Matter (PM). The BRENLY - AL RBEFRT - BB/
use of mobile vehicles contributes the most to air pollutant emissions. ERRZER SRR GZAFHR -

During the year ended 31 December 2023, as mentioned above, due to REZE2023F12A31BLFE - 00 EXFT
more frequent production activities resulting from the lifting of COVID-19 it - A COVID-19E] SHAR R £ 4 EE B AN
lockdown, the Group’s usage of automobiles has increased, leading to a PR - REERBEASEIN - BRERSHR
corresponding increase in the emission of air pollutants. To address this VIPE I AEFEIE AN o AR RERE - ANEE
issue, the Group has established stricter vehicle usage policies and plans T ERRMEEEABCR - WREIARRER

to utilise vehicles with lower emissions, such as new energy vehicles, in the R T E S PR R RIS o
future.
The Group’s emissions of key air pollutants: REEMEE RS5O PRSI -

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12A31ALEE
2023 2022

20235 20224F
Total Key emissions Total  Key emissions
emissions intensity’ emissions intensity’
Key Air Pollutants TEZRFRY HEHE W ITEHHEE BEME IEHREE
() (g/tonne) @ (9/tonne)
(%) (%,/1) (52) (32./H8)
NO, AEUY 202,827 0.17 180,022 0.17
PM BFRLT 19,435 0.02 17,250 0.02
SO, ink=Kle7)] 379 0.000309 299 0.000280

Note: FGE

1) Key emissions intensity is calculated by gram (g) of respective air pollutant (1 TEHRRERERDHERRERNA

per tonne of coal products sold. RS (R )FTHE -
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Hazardous Wastes and Treatment

The main hazardous waste during the whole operation process is gangue, a
type of commercially worthless by-product, that poses adverse impacts on
the environment, including generating toxicity into the air and soil and taking
up otherwise fertile fields or spaces with agricultural and/or commercial
potential.

The Group’s gangue was transported to and stored on a designated field
near the mines where qualified local village cooperatives engaged by us
handle the treatment. The stored gangue is covered with a layer of soil that is
suitable for plantation, with the potential to restore fertile land. Furthermore,
the acquisition of stakes in China Power Construction Panzhou Low Calorific
Value Coal Power Generation Co., Ltd has offered a promising value-added
solution for gangue treatment. Given that gangue is a primary raw material
for this type of power generation, effective utilisation and management can
be achieved through this strategic investment.

As the Group’s coal production in Hongguo Coal Mine, Baogushan Coal
Mine and Xiejiahegou Coal Mine increased from the low levels of the
previous year, gangue generation in these three mines rose accordingly. The
Group has set a target to maintain the hazardous waste intensity at a lower
or similar level in the coming years.

A breakdown of gangue generation and intensity by mines:

RE - g kEemE(E)

BEBRMREERED A
EESERRTNEREEENETA——
BURHEEEORIESR - FLIRFER T
FE PEERSEERRAMLE  WERE
thRARERER " REEENOR L RHE
o

REB AT A E S ER MR E ST
mAEMERENE NS EENR A FLRIE AT
OHINEBERAREEN TIE - AR MIERE
REHENES © teHh - W EERMERE
REEERARSE  RTARERETEHA
RIS EIREMRTTE ST ORI RREN
TERK - BBRNRERETER AN
RERE -

RRASBEARERE  BRLKERHZFOTE
BEORERESR FFELAME - = @K
TR AELEREIEM - AEEGIERR
MR ARREF BB ZREREN T EERERERL
HEKRF L -

ES By A PR E R E AR

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12A31ALEE
2023 2022
2023F 20224
Hazardous Hazardous
Gangue waste Gangue waste
generation intensity’ generation intensity’
BEEEY BEEEY
HadRE BE! TaERE BE
(tonne)  (tonne/tonne) (tonne) (tonne/tonne)
(1) (W, (W) (Wg,/WE)
Hongguo Coal Mine RETE 1,125,262 0.92 605,096 0.57
Baogushan Coal Mine BALERE 913,716 0.75 575,659 0.54
Xiejiahegou Coal Mine AEONAETE 527,149 0.43 406,852 0.38
Total BE 2,566,127 2.10 1,587,607 1.49
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Note:

(1) Hazardous waste intensity is calculated by tonne of hazardous waste per
tonne of coal products sold.

Non-hazardous Wastes and Treatment

General production waste and domestic waste, which are sorted at source
and then handled by the local government, make up the Group’s major
non-hazardous wastes. These wastes are non-significant in amount, and
no quantified records were documented. For the year ended 31 December
2023, the Group continues to encourage its staff to recycle at work and
home, to minimise general waste and aim for a greener environment.

Energy Consumption

The Group relies on the purchase of electricity as its primary source of
power for its facilities in Guizhou and Hong Kong. Additionally, diesel
is employed to fuel power generation, mining fleets, mining machinery,
and equipment. Unleaded petrol is mainly utilised for land transportation
purposes. The usage of fuel and resources is assessed and audited by an
internal audit department, which serves as an indicator for evaluating the
effectiveness of the Group’s energy conservation measures.

To reduce reliance on fossil fuels, the Group remains abreast of the latest
technological advancements in the industry to ensure that its machinery
meets energy efficiency standards. To curtail electricity consumption,
employees are encouraged to switch off lights and electric appliances when
not in use, and to restrict air conditioner usage during the summer. These
proactive measures showcase the Group’s commitment to efficient energy
management, and the intensity of energy consumption can be expected to
witness a reduction in the coming years.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, with the continued resumption
of business activities in China, the usage of petrol and electricity saw an
increase while electricity used in Hong Kong had a mild decrease.

i

M EERENEEREMOHERKERD
BEREEY(M)FHE

BERRYRBBRERERE

BRAEETERZEEMN —REEFY R
WAZENR - IRFES BV R B HBUTA
ER—ETRE c ZEEEVNEETA - I
MmElraisk - H{ZE2023F 12 A31HILFE -
AEBEFESHE I E TERERNEERER
ME - UERERD—MEY) - BIREEIRIE -

RETRUH
AEBKBINEENEREMREERIENE
RENWR - W RaTARREE - RiE
BB - BRIEMR SRR AR - BTl
ERNE LB o R REROERBARE
FHEPFTETTRHE RERT - (FRRHA A KB
AR R -

R ADEHCR IR KRE - ANERE T BT T B
TEMRIRMER - FEREMIFEREERUR
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Diesel and unleaded petrol consumption and the intensity:

Diesel
Unleaded petrol

Note:

Q)

tonne of coal products sold.

R HERk

SOh K TR R REE

For the year ended 31 December

EramE (&)

BZ12A1ALEE
2023 2022
20235 20224F

Energy Energy

Energy consumption Energy consumption
consumption intensity’ consumption intensity
BERAEE  HEREERE feREE  RREETE

(litres) (litres/tonne) (litres) (litres/tonne)

) (Ft,/18) (71) (7+./H8)

E 1,394,897 1.14 1,594,862 1.49
IS D 25,769 0.02 20,341 0.02

B 5 -

Energy consumption intensity is calculated by litre of energy consumption per

A breakdown of electricity consumption by region:

Mainland China
Hong Kong

Total

Note:

Q)

RFEEGHE -

LA R Bl HREE 2R AR

For the year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLEEE

BRFEETEREWE HERREMNEE

2023 2022
20235 20226
Electricity Electricity
Electricity consumption Electricity consumption
consumption intensity!  consumption intensity’
HEE HEZE HrEE RERE
(kWh) (kWh/tonne) (KWh/tonne)
(FRE) (FTRE /M) (TEE, W)
LalEiYN 150,112,329 122.54 146,412,685 137.24
A 9,229 0.01 9,299 0.01
BE 150,121,558 122.55 146,421,984 137.25
5T

Electricity consumption intensity is calculated by kWh of electricity

consumption per tonne of coal products sold.

M
(FEEF)EE -

RETELREMOHERRERNEER
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Water Consumption FEKE
Having a dependable water source is essential for the Group’s production BERENKRERAEEEETIFEHEE
process. We ensure that each of the three mines has sufficient production Z o BMRR = EBRTEN 4 E R4S ARS8

and domestic water supply from the surface and underground sources. As a B FRK R T KESR B5KR - Hitt - B
result, there were no water-sourcing difficulties during the year under review. FREABERRTABRAKEENFN - A&

Underground water from the Group’s mine was extracted and filtered for BT 15 8 T KA IR EUR IR E AR R - 8
use at the coal preparation plant, fire-safety facilities, and as an anti-dust ek S FRYERTEERN - B REEAALL - MEEE

agent. The total water usage during the year under review saw a slight rise as MEBAKERE LA BEMEHEEKRER
compared to the previous year while its intensity per tonne of coal products FOKBE TR - REKERFAERA -

sold decreased, highlighting a higher water resource utilisation rate.

We target to maintain the similar level of water consumption intensity in next BMOBERRET —FEMNREKEERITH
year as in 2023. 2023F HERIKF ©
A breakdown of water consumption by workshop: T35 85 B FEK 24

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALEE

2023 2022
2023F 20224

Water Water

Water consumption Water consumption

consumption intensity!  consumption intensity’

FkE FRBE ke FkBE

(md) (m%/tonne) (md) (m?/tonne)

(ZFHK)  (ZFK W) LAk (LAK/1)

Hongguo Coal Mine R 603,950 0.49 669,300 0.63

Baogushan Coal Mine AR 763,579 0.62 733,904 0.69

Xiejiahegou Coal Mine RN 748 488,650 0.40 358,463 0.34

Songshan Coal Preparation Plant AL 195,703 0.16 202,515 0.19

Total fazt 2,051,882 1.67 1,964,182 1.85
Note: PI3E -

1) Water consumption intensity is calculated as cubic meters (m3) of water (1) FREERGPE HERRERNFEKE

consumption per tonne of coal products sold. (SLFKIEE -
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Paper Consumption and Packaging Materials

Paper consumption occurs at various locations including Hongguo Coal
Mine, Baogushan Coal Mine, Xiejiahegou Coal Mine, Songshan Coal
Preparation Plant, as well as offices in Mainland China and Hong Kong.
To regulate paper usage, the Group promotes the digital processing of
information whenever feasible across all departments. The Group’s total
paper consumption for the year ended 31 December 2023 increased
compared to the previous year due to increased business activities after the
ending of COVID-19 restrictions and the enlarged workforce employed by
the Group during the year.

Paper consumption and intensity:

Paper consumption (kg) FEHRE(TR)
Paper consumption intensity (kg of paper
consumption per tonne of coal products sold)

(kg/tonne)

Working Environment and Employee Development
The Group is dedicated to consistently improving its human resources
policies and maintaining effective employment management practices.
A fundamental aspect of this commitment is ensuring that all employees
in Mainland China are protected by the Labour Law of the People’s
Republic of China ({1 ZE A R 2 /B 45 8)%)), the Labour Contract Law of
the People’s Republic of China ({1 #E A R £ M 4 8) & 7 %)), General
Principles of the Civil Law of the People’s Republic of China ({ # % A &
HAE R % A)). Similarly, employees in Hong Kong are covered by the
Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) and Minimum Wage Ordinance (Chapter 608 of the
Laws of Hong Kong).

R HEREARE(E)

REERBEMR
HERMRNSBEMBREAREE 88 LE
- HFOMWBERE - DLEER - AR EH
RERBSENRAE - BRBMKER &
SEEEITER TR E BB E MBI
LRI - # 220236128318 LFE - AR
COVID-19[R I 45 R 18 245 /E By g A R AR &
BEENERLAE ) AEENEREER F—
FHATIEM -

REEREE :

For the year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLEFE

PR E (IR 85 B RRE M
R B (Tr)E) (T /1)

2023 2022

2023 20224

10,628 7,245

0.009 0.007
THEREREERE

AEEBNNHETEANERBRIL RS
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BPEAMEEB(FEARKMBELEE) -
(PEARKMBESEHERE) R(FEARK
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BIEBIESTE(RBIES) - BEEDIF485E
I RE R BRI )R EEEDI£E608%
(RETEGEBIDFTREE -
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To ensure the proper implementation of employment policies, the workers’ AERMEBRZAER  T8REX2ERE
union represents all employees and monitors their execution. Operating WEEEHAITIEN - AEEER T HRLE=
three coal mines in rural areas, the Group experiences a relatively high AR - ABRBERS @ HEITELERE
turnover rate, which is consistent with prevalent industry norms. In our B o ERFIITEF - ERBE IRKHE
sector, various factors contribute to workforce mobility, such as limited ERL - fInEMPERESER - FEHEEL
alternative employment opportunities, seasonal variations, and evolving AR EERETE L - AEEEHDIR
socio-economic conditions. The Group acknowledges the unique challenges RRITEEFHABRKBE SR E R
posed by the industry’s customary turnover trends in rural locations and PhEL - WIERE N B EZ Z BRI R o

actively works to implement strategies that address these dynamics.

The table below shows detailed employee statistics of the Group TREIIASEIZEL - BaE - MR - Fied
categorised by contract, job function, gender, age group, and employment R TYEHE 815 R AR 1E B 2%

location:
Number of employees
EEAE
As at 31 December
M12A318
2023 2022

20235 20224
By Job Function LSl D
Directors of the Company KABES 10 11
Administration and management THER 420 331
Accounting and finance R A 25 32
Sales and marketing SHE M iE 5 6
Production scheduling EERE 36 32
Production safety EERE 302 298
Mine production RIEEE 2,617 2,578
Coal preparation VERE 326 326
Supply and procurement e N R AR 4 5
By Gender RERIED
Male Xl 3,289 3,180
Female gegc 456 439
By Age Group RERARE S
<30 B0ERTIA T 663 682
31-40 31-405% 1,284 1,276
41-50 41-507% 1,155 1,071
51-60 51-607% 624 560

> 60 60A%EIA 19 30
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By Employment Location
Guizhou
Hong Kong

Total

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

RIEHEESD
M
6
Bt

The table below sets out the employee turnover rate by gender, age group

and geographical region:

By gender
Male
Female

By age group
<30

31-40

41-50

51-60

>60

By geographical region
Guizhou
Hong Kong

BHRIE D
St
egid

RERARE S
303%E AT
31-405%
41-503%
51-607%
60B%E A £

RiEE D
M

e

R HEREARE(E)

Number of employees

EEAZ
As at 31 December
128318

2023 2022
20234 20224
3,734 3,609
11 10
3,745 3,619

TRBSIRIR - FRAN RS SRS
o -

Employee turnover rate (%)
(BB 5 (%)
For the year ended 31 December
HZ12B318LEE

2023 2022
20234 20224
64.62 57.99
18.56 28.25
75.26 77.27
72.66 64.66
52.73 46.03
22.12 17.14
157.89 90.00
59.16 54.53
9.09 10.00
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Employment Standards

The Group’s internal documents clearly outline its employment standards,
which adhere to relevant local and national laws, regulations, and internal
guidelines. The Group strictly prohibits the hiring of certain groups, including
underage labour, individuals without legal identity, those prohibited by law
from working in the industry, current employees of the Company, individuals
unable to pass the required physical examination, and any other individuals
prohibited by law from employment.

Recruitment decisions are made based on the specific job requirements,
skills, and qualifications. The general manager of each subsidiary are
responsible for the employment practices within their respective company
and will be held accountable for any illegal employment, termination,
inappropriate punishments or incomplete social insurance. The Chairman,
or individuals authorised by the Chairman, are responsible for recruiting the
senior management team.

Due to strict internal hiring rules, no non-compliance cases were identified
during the year under review.

Equal Opportunities

The Group is dedicated to upholding equal opportunities for all employees,
without discrimination based on race, gender, age, religion, or disability.
Hiring decisions are based solely on the candidates, skills and qualifications
relevant to the positions they apply for.

During the year under review, the Group’s workforce primarily consisted
of individuals between the ages of 31 and 50, with a certain proportion
of individuals beyond this age range, reflecting the current labour market
trends. In terms of gender, it was observed that more men were inclined
to join labour-intensive frontline positions in Guizhou. As a result, the
Group employed a higher number of men compared to women. However,
there were no gender-based discriminatory considerations or any other
unequal hiring standards in place. Besides, equal access to training and
development opportunities and equal consideration for promotions and
other job opportunities are given to all employees. More about remuneration
and on-the-job training will be explained in the following sections.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group did not receive any
complaints in relation to unequal employment or workplace discrimination.
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Remuneration and Benefits

The group provide competitive wages and benefits, along with reasonable
working hours and paid leaves to our employees. We also offer bonuses
and other incentives to employees who demonstrate outstanding

professionalism.

As required by the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, the Group contributes to all employees’ mandatory provident
fund and retirement benefits scheme. As for Mainland China, we provide
pension insurance, medical insurance, unemployment insurance,
employment injury insurance, maternity insurance, and housing fund, widely
referred to as “Five Insurances and One Fund” in the region.

Occupational Health and Safety

The measures discussed in this section mainly apply to frontline employees
involved in mining process in Mainland China, since our back-office
employees are exposed to significantly fewer health and safety risks.
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group has complied in all
material respects with all applicable laws and regulations concerning health
and safety at our coal mines in China, in particular, Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Work Safety ({ 7 2 A R £ F B %2 2 4 = % )), and
the Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases Law of the People’s
Republic of China (& AR FMEIBERB4%)). During the year under
review, a dedicated unit of the management staff is assigned to each of the
Group’s mines to oversee the daily practices in preventing and controlling
occupational diseases. Though each mine has its own set of policies and
governing unit, these policies can be summarised as below:

1) All staff members at mines must comply with safety rules and
processes and wear personal protective equipment, including
masks, earmuffs, and safety helmets;

2 Standard ventilation equipment is established at work, and the level
of toxic gas in the mines is regularly monitored;

RE - g kEemE(E)
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3) Before operating the mining machinery, including excavators, drills,
explosives and trucks, workers are required to undergo relevant

training and obtain relevant qualification proofs;

4) Each coal mine has established its production safety management
department with designated heads to manage the safety affairs,
including inspecting the conditions of the mining area to ensure

safety of working conditions;

5) Each coal mine is assigned with over 30 officers from the production
safety management department who have received professional
training and are qualified. They are assigned to different teams and

key activities; and

(6) Prior to each team enter the mining area, a pre-shift meeting will
be held to maintain their safety awareness and take precautions to

prevent potential hazards.

The Group is committed to ensuring the safety of our workers. However
we are saddened to report two fatal incidents that occurred this year.
One incident involved a sudden death due to a disease outbreak in the
Baogushan Coal Mine, while the other incident was caused by a roof
accident in the Xiejiahegou Coal Mine. In the 2022, a single accidental death
incident was reported, occurring in the Hongguo Coal Mine. We extend our
sincerest condolences to the family and friends of deceased workers. Our
Group has investigated the accident and taken measures to prevent similar
incidents from occurring in the future. We strive to continuously improve
our safety procedures and maintain a safe working environment for all

employees.

Notably, under these ongoing efforts, the Songshan Coal Preparation plant
has achieved a record of no accidents or injuries throughout the year.
The Group’s total number of work-related injuries and the resulting loss of

working hours have decreased by half compared to the previous year.
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The table below summarises the number of injuries from the occupational
accident and related lost working days in the Group:

RE - g kEemE(E)

TREBATEERTEEEIMEBHZEA
BLAERBARTIERS

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12A31ALEE
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Number of Number of
Number of  Working days Number of working days
injuries from lost due to injuries from lost due to
occupational occupational occupational occupational
accidents injuries accidents injuries
ETEBEIMNG AIGEELX AIEEEIN EIBE%
BYZEAH THEEE SRXEAH IR
Hongguo Coal Mine RS LY 25 3,164 81 9,000
Baogushan Coal Mine BAILEE 26 3,877 38 4,738
Songshan Coal Preparation Plant AL 0 0 3 442
Xiejiahegou Coal Mine AFOEETE 30 2,506 44 5,651
Total st 81 9,547 167 19,831
Development and Training RN

Employee development and training are crucial components of a
thriving business. It is essential for us to ensure that our employees
receive adequate training and opportunities for growth, enabling them to
realise their full potential and carry out their responsibilities with utmost
competence. We also encourage our employees to take up new challenges
and responsibilities to enhance their vocational skills and showcase their
capabilities for career development.

The Group provides thorough training to new recruits so that they are
familiarised with their working conditions and necessary safety precautions,
while all workers and special operators are required obtain relevant
certifications by passing annual training prior to communing their work. In
addition, the Group offers professional on-the-job training based on the
needs of the different roles such as coal mining, supply and procurement,
administration, and accounting, this enables employees to enhance their
skills in their respective fields and provide them with opportunities for further
development.
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Adequate training courses are provided without discrimination based on BMIREEHFIRE - ToFhe - HRIRT

age, gender, and job level. However, courses related to production safety EEM - AT - BAEEL S REEETFMER
and mining conditions are considered the most important and are offered BERABHEE  WREFZRHR - %5
several times provided throughout the year. These courses were mainly AEFEDRRBEIARYE  BEFERER
provided to mining workers, who are predominantly male and willing to MABBEERTERFENEMETIA - %53
work in labour-intensive environments. The focus of these course primarily BEZEMNUBSERENTRELIA  F517%
targets male mining workers and align with industry norms. R o

The table below shows a breakdown of the number of attendances by TRES|IRESERNE DL ARAMA -
employee type:

2023 2022
20235 20026

Total Average The Total Average The

numberof  training hours  percentage of numberof  training hours  percentage of

attendances  completed per attendances attendances  completed per attendances

trained attendances trained trained attendances trained

(hour) (%) (hour) (%)

BUEHEIN BUEZENIN

BRI BERTSE bsdect Lo BRI BERTE BRI

BEAR B8 EEMAEDML EEAR K8 EENEDL

By categories BER (1h85) (%) (185) (%)
By gender RIERIED

Male St 5,278 48 97.76 3,802 48 99.58

Female g3 121 20 2.24 16 9 0.42
By job categories e

Administrative and management  {THEE 44 3 0.81 49 3 1.28

Accounting and finance ERL 18 3 0.33 24 3 0.63

Sales and marketing HEREHR 10 3 0.19 12 3 0.32

Production scheduling EEE 18 2 0.33 10 24 0.26

Production safety tERZ 65 36 1.20 158 24 414

Mine production REEE 5,236 48 96.98 3,555 50 93.11

Supply and procurement HERRE 8 3 0.16 10 3 0.26
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Supply Chain Management

To ensure the efficient and effective production and delivery of our products,
the Group actively and cautiously manages its supply chain. We procure
mechanical auxiliary materials from external parties, such as articulated
rollers, belt conveyors, bottom rollers, polyester composite pipes, rubber,
curing agents, support steel, fire-resistant belts, hydraulic supports, anchor
nets, and lifting boards. These machines play a crucial role in the efficiency
of our operations and the safety of our workers. Therefore, we have strict
requirements when selecting suppliers.

As a basic requirement, suppliers must have the necessary legal
certifications and comply with international and national regulations
regarding product and service quality. We also consider their production
capacity and track record of customer service. After conducting a
certification review, we request potential suppliers to provide product
samples for our internal inspection. The Procurement department maintains
a record of qualified suppliers. For large orders, relevant departments
are required to compare at least three suppliers based on factors such
as quality, price, delivery time, and services. Internal approvals must be
obtained before processing any large orders.

In addition to the necessary qualifications, we also consider the
environmental impact of our suppliers and strive to engage with companies
that share our ethical values.

During the year under review, the Group had 277 suppliers (2022: 285), all
located in Mainland China.
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Product Responsibility

Quality Control

The Group is dedicated to delivering to high-quality products to its
customers, recognizing the potential environmental risks and harm to end-
uses associated with substandard fossil fuel products. In a bid to elevate
our long-standing product standards, we have meticulously documented a
comprehensive guidebook, internally published at the beginning of the year.
This guidebook serves as a valuable resource for our personnel responsible
for quality control, providing clear and detailed policies, which can be
summarised as follows:

(1) All staff members at mines, plants and offices must comply with the
rules and take responsibility to ensure the quality of coal products;

2 The mining process is scientifically designed to prevent foreign
moisture, gangue and other impurities from entering the raw coal;

3) General market guidelines are adopted to manage the company’s
coal product standard, and advanced technologies are used to
ensure the quality of coal in the production process;

4) The storage process is under strict management, the safety and
hygienic conditions of the storage sites are regularly inspected, and
non-compliant products are prohibited from entering the sites;

5) The transportation process is strictly managed, with regular
inspections and cleaning of vehicles and ports involved in coal
product transportation;

(6) The international requirements for coal quality supervision and
testing are adopted, and a designated quality control laboratory is
set up in Songshan Coal Preparation Plant to conduct preliminary
testing;

7) A reward and punishment mechanism are established to encourage
high-quality coal production units and punish those who do not
comply with the established rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group did not violate or
breach any laws and regulations relating to product responsibility and did
not receive any product complaints or claims.
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Customer Services and Information Management

To deliver products and services that meet our customers’ needs, the
Group has assembled a dedicated sales team prepared to address any
inquiries or concerns from clients. Well-versed in the latest industrial and
technological knowledge, the Group’s sales team actively engage with
our customers, which are mainly coking enterprises, iron and steel or
chemical manufacturers, power plants, etc. They negotiate with customers
to determine the selling price by considering production cost, market
demand, specification and quality, and prevailing market rates. The team
is also responsible for providing customers with accurate and up-to-date
information about the products offered by the Group.

In alignment with our customer relations management policies, we
emphasise strict compliance with relevant laws and regulations regarding
customer information and privacy. All customer information is recommended
to be stored digitally behind our antivirus firewall, overseen by our sales
managers who manage the printing of customer documents and the filing
of hard copies. Both hard copies and electronic files containing customer
information are only accessible by relevant and authorised staff. Our IT
department is responsible for setting up authorised accounts while the
human resources department ensures the implementation of our customer
privacy policies. Staff in breach of the rules above may be subject to fines
or termination of employment.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group did not receive any
reports or customer complaints on violation of the laws and regulations
relating to customer services and information management.

Intellectual Property Management

A comprehensive intellectual property management system that includes
the registration of patents, trademarks, and copyrights, as well as the
protection of trade secrets and production techniques has been established
by the company to ensure zero violation on related matters. All intellectual
works created by our employees to complete work assignments using
physical materials provided by subsidiaries of the Group are considered
the intellectual property of the relevant subsidiary. The Group’s intellectual
property management system strictly follows relevant laws and regulations,
and our legal team is responsible for monitoring the use of these properties
with the assistance of designated personnel from each department. When
partnering with outside parties, confidentiality terms may be added to the
engagement contracts to protect the intellectual properties of the Group
and other concerned parties.
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During the year under review, the Group has obtained a total of 15 patent
certificates, recognising our dedication to technological advancement in
mining processes. Furthermore, no breach of intellectual property laws and
regulations was found during the year under review.

Anti-corruption

The Group is dedicated to conducting business in a manner that upholds
ethical and responsible standards. To reinforce this commitment, the Group
has established an Anti-fraud Code, which serves as a guiding document
for promoting ethical business practices and combating corruption. This
code is regularly reviewed and revised to align with evolving laws and
regulations, as well as the Group’s steadfast dedication to integrity. As a
listed company, we also comply with the Code of Corporate Governance
Practices, set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules, as a guideline for
formulating the internal rules and regulations for integrity discipline and
clean administration.

The Board and its Audit Committee guide and monitor the Group’s
anticorruption practices with assistance from the auditing department.
The Group also opened whistleblower channels including telephones and
emails that can provide employees with a safe and secure way to report
any suspected violations without fear of retaliation. In case of any breach
of internal anti-corruption rules, the progress and results of the corruption
investigation will be submitted directly to the Board. If non-compliance
cases of governing laws were found, we would report to the authority and
hold respective staff accountable. The Group also arranges regular training
sessions for all employees to remind them of the anti-corruption policies.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group was not involved in
any corruption litigation and has not received any suspected corruption
report.
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The following table shows the number of anti-corruption training sessions
provided by the Group:

Number of anti-corruption training sessions held £ % &5 55 5| ZRI2 N 2K
Number of employees receiving anti-corruption

training

Community Investment

The local subsidiary of our Group has achieved a commendable position,
ranking 9th among the top 100 private enterprises in Guizhou. This
represents significant improvement from our previous ranking of 14th. As a
private enterprise deeply rooted in the Liupanshui area of Guizhou Province,
we are committed to the well-being of the local community. Therefore, we
have dedicated our resources primarily towards poverty relief, medical
assistance, and educational initiatives.

During the year under review, the resources we took part in community
work are summarised below:

° Donation of RMB100,000 to Yangchang Town Government in
relation to the rural revitalization;

° Donation of RMB930,000 to Songshan Village Residential
Committees, Hongguo Subdistrict (41 R #7 #& M U /& £ € ) to
contribute to the Rural Cooperative Medical Scheme (21 & {FE&);

° Donation of RMB420,000 to people who facing various forms of
hardship and financial difficulties;

° Donation of RMB150,000 to impoverished university students for
their tuition and living expenses.

Our dedication extends beyond mere financial contributions. We actively
engage with local authorities and communities to understand their specific
needs and collaboratively offer sustainable solutions. Through ongoing
dialogue and partnerships, we aim to foster a positive and lasting impact
on the betterment of the communities that have been an integral part of our
journey.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
VR Gl

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF PERENNIAL ENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
ARIERRIZERER AT
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Deloitte

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Perennial
Energy Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 111 to 200, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policy
information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.
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Key Audit Matter (continued)

Key audit matter

BSE SR

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
BIAZBEN RS ()

FAEE TS IE (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMNERNMEERRETSE

Depreciation of mining structures included in property, plant and equipment and amortisation of mining rights

FTAYF - B KR BRI FRIB BRI HT B R R AR 1S

We identified the depreciation of mining structures included
in property, plant and equipment and amortisation of
mining rights (“mining related assets”) as a key audit matter
due to the involvement of significant estimation and the
management’s judgement in determining the total proven and
probable reserves of the coal mines.

B R B R E & B 1 [ R B R S 48 = N E P
THIER - RS AYE - BERRENTEBEDITER
R ([ SRIBRR B E | ) BT AR RS F 1 -

As explained in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group determines depreciation of mining
structures included in property, plant and equipment and
amortisation of mining rights by using the units of production
method based on the actual production volume over the total
proven and probable reserves of the coal mines concerned.
MANERE SRR M 4rT - EREREBABEREEE L
BREARENEREERAEEBMEETTAYE  BELIR
HEVERIE B ST E DA R IR TSR o

The estimated reserves are the estimates of the quantity
of coal that can be economically and legally extracted
from the Group’s mining properties, which are determined
by management of the Group according to applicable
independent technical review report prepared by external
specialists, with the consideration of most recent production
and technical information of each mine. In addition, a
variation on recovery rates or unforeseen geological or
geotechnical perils may cause the management to change
the production plan resulting from a revision to the estimates
of coal reserves.

hEtREEAE BESERBEMEAALERGN A ERK
WEREEMFTHT B ESEEEERBIMNIEREEN
BRB R ERSRE MEREES SO PEE REMTER
REETE o UWEAHD - EIEREFF YA AR A E SE L RIEH AT
B ERERR KR AT BT ST M A A

Our procedures in relation to the depreciation and
amortisation of mining related assets included:

BN EREEREEEMNITE M HEF B

e Understanding the process performed by management
of the Group on estimation of total proven and probable
reserves with reference to applicable independent
technical review reports prepared by external specialist;

e TH EXEEEEZ2ZIVERGHNEMRBULRKME
Bl ST B E MR AKENBIE

e Evaluating applicability of the independent technical
review reports adopted by management of the Group on
estimation of total proven and probable reserves;

o b ESEEREERMNBURMEBRREMEAEEK
AR ENEAMN ;

e Assessing the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the external specialist who prepared the independent
technical review reports in current year;

o MEARFEREBUEMEMBRENIIBERNER - 82
NREFEI

e Obtaining an understanding from the external specialist
about the techniques applied in estimation of total proven
and probable reserves of the coal mines, the basis of
calculation, key inputs and data used in the estimation
prepared in current year;

o MANEPERTMMTEBEERBNBAFKESMERNK
T RAFERAEGAMANGERE TERABER
B
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
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Key Audit Matter (continued)

R E T EIE (@)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BRELTSEIE BB NEEERERESSE

As set out in notes 14 and 16 to the consolidated financial e
statements, depreciation of mining structures and the
amortisation of mining rights for the year ended 31 December
2023 amounted to RMB39,244,000 (2022: RMB25,192,000)

and RMB40,589,000 (2022: RMB37,324,000), respectively.
MAERE IS IRE M E14 R 16FTt - B ZE2023F12A31H 1k
FE - SRBEHBEYITE RIRGEEEED B R A K #39,244,000

JC (20224 © AR #25,192,0007T ) & A K # 40,589,000 70
(20224 : AR#37,324,0007T) °

Assessing the reasonableness of key inputs used in
calculation of depreciation and amortisation of mining
related assets, by examining the annual production
summary provided by the management of the Group
and checking the consistency by comparing it against
estimated production volume throughout the useful lives
of the mines included in the estimated coal reserves
(comprising total proven and probable reserves), based
on the applicable independent technical review report
prepared by external specialist;

SHE AR ET EIRIEARRE & E T E R VAR I A BUR
BEMY  FEAMEAEEERERENFELEERE -
WIRBINTERFEEHERB RN E S R BIBLLE L
BERREEEC PSRN ETES P BE LR
E(HEE MR ARHSAEN) N —IE

Testing actual production volume by checking to delivery
and settlement documents on a sample basis;

BRMEZAIMN REE X AAEREES

Testing the integrity and arithmetic accuracy of the
calculation of depreciation of mining structures and
amortisation of mining rights for the year ended 31
December 2023;

BB ZE20235F12 431 B IFFERIEEEYIT EMRIEE
st E R A M TR R E e
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors of the Company

and those charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

B 2B E (48)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
BIAZBEN RS (F)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of

users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on

the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures

made by the directors of the Company.

BB LB AR S I SRR A
ENELE

BB ER SR M BRRERRE A
R IREF A FR M B M E A RS &
BRE - WIRBRMAHENRBERERZE
BRHABEBMIERWOZEENRE - Rk
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WEZANBRHEMEMALE ESREEMNE
- AEREFZFRFORE - ETERER
REBEENETHESR  EX - ERER
BRI AL IR o FRRRIRIM FT A A EREF =X
HHERS| R - INRA IR TE A H BB B R R AT
BERERA VTS MARERERBZREMBRER
FRYEH RV EDRTE - RIA REROSA SRR T 145
fEERX °
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among

other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that

we identified during our audit.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

B 2B E (48)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
BIAZBEN RS (F)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken or safeguards applied to eliminate threats.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Zhu Chen.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

21 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
reBakHMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

2023 2022
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE ARET T ARET T
Revenue g 5 1,715,623 1,784,033
Cost of sales SHEE R AR (771,333) (666,398)
Gross profit EF 944,290 1,117,635
Other income HAb YA 7 35,661 52,798
Share of losses of an associate PaN it ik /NI ok (3,037) =
Fair value change of contingent RS AREB AT EZS)
consideration payables 30 - (20,409)
Other gains and losses H bl es & E518 8 (17,395) (4,940)
Distribution and selling expenses DIEREER (97,441) (72,515)
Administrative expenses TR (134,038) (110,882)
Other expenses HEAY (86,792) (77,211)
Finance costs BhE R AN 9 (36,044) (28,928)
Profit before taxation BrELRT R A 10 605,204 855,548
Taxation charge | 11 (101,011) (111,593)
Profit and total comprehensive income P03 I 2 2 T U A 4258
for the year 504,193 743,955
Earnings per share (RMB cents) BREBANARED)
Basic R 13 31.51 46.50
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e AR R R

As at 31 December 2023

72023F12H31H

2023 2022
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
PiisE ARMTT ARET T
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BE k& 14 2,162,544 1,897,205
Investment properties AW 15 47,200 51,500
Mining rights R 16 828,778 828,867
Interest in an associate N NGl 18 95,011 =
Restricted bank deposits PR BRI TIE 19 21,658 17,239
Deferred tax assets EETIBEE 20 46,626 40,129
Rental deposits Hekse 23 432 426
Deposits for purchase of property, plant B E¥¥% « FiERRENLS
and equipment 23 4,348 2,819
Other receivable F At e d R IE 23 9,300 -
Deposits for acquisition of mining rights USRS 23 90,566 90,566
3,306,463 2,928,751
Current assets mEEE
Investment in a debt instrument BEFTAKRE 17 36,248 =
Inventories 78 21 57,834 49,444
Trade and bills receivables B 5 e WRIE M B R IR 22 789,003 871,550
Deposits, prepayments and other e BARIEREAERGIE
receivables 23 45,987 28,202
Cash and cash equivalents HeMREEEY 24 93,712 202,057
1,022,784 1,151,253
Current liabilities mEEE
Trade payables B S ENRIA 25 139,422 109,304
Other payables and accrued charges HAb B RIERIERTEA 26 334,054 212,391
Contract liabilities SHEE 27 - 1,639
Lease liabilities HEARE 28 1,299 1,275
Tax payable FERTFRIR 43,812 35,270
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER 29 683,854 695,972
Contingent consideration payables JERSARE 30 - 395,186
1,202,441 1,451,037
Net current liabilities REBEEFHE (179,657) (299,784)

Total assets less current liabilities HEERABERE 3,126,806 2,628,967




Non-current liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Lease liabilities

Bank and other borrowings

Provision for restoration costs

Other payables and accrued charges

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

FRBEE
ERETIRBE

RITREMER
B A R
HAL R IR Bt B A

BEFE

BERRHE
B
i

E

=
T

B

The consolidated financial statements on pages 111 to 200 were approved

and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21 March 2024 and

signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Yu Bangping
RAFEE
DIRECTOR

BEF

ARk (&)

As at 31 December 2023
72023F12A31H

2023 2022

NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
B R ARET T AREET T
20 15,051 28,017
28 = 1,299
29 230,000 90,000
31 73,943 47,008
26 19,636 -
338,630 166,324

2,788,176 2,462,643

32 14,136 14,136
2,774,040 2,448,507

2,788,176 2,462,643

HR B E200E MG E T BHRARERE
EFEHR2024F3 F21 B A& M IRHETIEE - Wi
UTALEE :

Mr. Li Xuezhong
ZERESE
DIRECTOR

BEE

Annual Report 2023 £ £ 1 1 3
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mEERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE2023F12A31H IFFE

At 1 January 2022

Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year

Dividend recognised as distribution
(note 12)

Transfer to statutory surplus reserve

At 31 December 2022

Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year

Dividend recognised as distribution
(note 12)

Transfer to statutory surplus reserve

At 31 December 2023

120221 518
FRGEHEEERALE

REDKLBE (HiE12)

BREETRHHE

202212318
FRGEMREERALE

BRADIR BB (HE12)

BREETRHHE

72023F12A31H

Attributable to owners of the Company

NNGTE 2PN
Statutory
Share Share Other surplus Retained

capital premium reserve reserve profits Total

EERER
BRE  RPEE  HiRE mE REEN st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT AR®TE ARETT ARETT ARETR

(note (i) (note (ii))

(PaE@) (PG
14,136 390,605 212,664 115,425  1,034914 1,767,744
- - - - 743,955 743,955
- (49,056) = = - (49,056)
- - - 76,374 (76,374) -
14,136 341,549 212,664 191,799 1,702,495 2,462,643
- - - - 504,193 504,193
- (178,660) - - - (178,660)
= = - 53,120 (563,120) -
14,136 162,889 212,664 244919 2,153,568 2,788,176
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Notes:

(i)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (Continued)

Other reserve as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 represented
the aggregate amount of (i) the aggregate profit of RMB130,191,000 in
respect of operations of the Mining Business (as defined in note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements of the annual report for year ended 31
December 2019) carried out by Old Operating Entities (as defined in note 2
to the consolidated financial statements of the annual report for year ended
31 December 2019) prior to the Assets Transfer (as defined in note 2 to
the consolidated financial statements of the annual report for year ended
31 December 2019) and the profit was legally belonged to Old Operating
Entities and non-distributable by the Group; (ii) net historical transfer from
non-controlling interests of RMB222,669,000; (iii) the credit of RMB5,664,000
arisen from historical derecognition of assets and liabilities of Old Operating
Entities; (iv) historical distribution of profits of a subsidiary of RMB145,860,000
to the then Shareholders (except for Hong Kong Resources (as defined in
note 2 of consolidated financial statements for year ended 31 December
2019)).

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations of the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”), before distribution of the net profit each year, the
subsidiaries established in the PRC shall set aside 10% of their net profit after
taxation for the statutory surplus reserve fund (except where the reserve has
reached 50% of the subsidiaries’ registered capital). The statutory reserve
fund can only be used, upon approval by the board of directors of the relevant
subsidiaries and by the relevant authority, to offset accumulated losses or
increase capital.

Bz

(i)

AR EHR(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B %2023F12A81 B ILFE

7202312 A 31 5&2022¢12ﬂ31 =Nz 0]
HiFEEATISENERN : (HELEER
B(ERREZE 2019&12)%315&@*#&
ERZEAVBRRNE) EEAEER(TE
EREZE2019F12A3N A EFEREF 2
REMISIRARMI ) AT RIEER (F
£ BEF2019F12A31B L EEREF 2
RAEMBHRENE) EENRFBEAR
#130,191,0007T ' % m A AR LBRE
BEER  AEETAUDK (VBAEE
B I A o F 58 A R #5222,669,0007T
(iR ItERELS EEENEERABESE
K8 AR5,664,0007T : K (v)BERAE
RHRF(BEERER(ERRLEE2019
F12ABIEFEREP ZHKEMBRE
HizE2) BR AN 2k — R B A Bl A AR BE
145,860,0007C °

M E ARH %D(FEPJMEE%;‘H%&
ERFTRTA EAtE DIRAEM AT - R E
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RERERARAA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n‘/-.ﬁ Iﬁzﬁl}lbi%‘%

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F12 A1 B IEFE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Amortisation of mining rights
Finance costs
Fair value change of contingent
consideration payables
Loss on disposal/written-off of property,
plant and equipment, net
Share of results of associates
Exchange difference
Fair value change of investment
properties
Interest income

Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital

(Increase) decrease in inventories

Increase in trade and bills receivables

Increase in deposits, prepayments and
other receivables

Increase in trade payables

Increase in other payables and accrued
charges

Decrease in contract liabilities

Cash generated from operations
Income tax paid

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

KEEH

BR A AT A

SLATIRE (EHFHE
Y% - BERRBITE

SRR 8
BER A
FER SR EATES

HE WEME - BERRENER -

R

PaK (T /N
ME N EHE
WEMERNTEEE

FEWA

LEETEDANEERERE

TR RS

H 5 ORI R IR B N
e BNREREMEKHE
Lyl

5 R 3R

AR BOR R B & AN

BRBERD

HEmERE
ERAEH

KREEBREREFHE

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T
605,204 855,548
121,999 99,135
40,589 37,324
36,044 28,928
- 20,409

8,914 2,554
3,037 =
632 =
4,300 100
(1,595) (1,264)
819,124 1,042,734
(8,390) 1,715
(620,199) (924,203)
(1,476) (7,618)
104,118 85,004
33,772 64,676
(1,639) (7,558)
325,310 254,750
(111,932) (74,008)
213,378 180,742
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INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payment for purchases of property, plant
and equipment

Purchase of mining right and related assets

Investment in an associate

Purchase of debt instruments

Placement of restricted bank deposits

Interest received

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
and equipment

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividend paid

Interest paid on bank borrowings and
lease liabilities

Repayment of lease liabilities

New borrowings from factoring of
bills receivables

Bank and other borrowings raised

Repayment of bank borrowings

NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
END OF THE YEAR,
represented by bank balances and cash

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
RERERER(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

EE202312A31H L5 E
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT
REEE
XNEEYE « BERRENRIE
(315,861) (474,473)
WEEER TR RABRE A = (413,186) (256,854)
R—EEE QR E (98,048) =
BEBBIA (36,880) =
S PR I ERTTE 3K (4,419 (4,499)
A &RIEEN 1,595 1,264
HEME - BE KRESRIE
2 —
REZEBFMARSFHE (866,797) (734,562)
RS
ERRE (178,660) (49,056)
IRITERRAEEENEAFLE
(31,619) (19,367)
BEAEERE (1,279) (1,252)
ER R TRIEFER
509,558 644,698
BEEMIRITREAMMER 503,070 =
EBIRITER (256,000) -
REEETSIREFE 545,074 575,023
BeRRESEEYORD)EMFEE
(108,345) 21,203
FHEERREZEEY
202,057 180,854
FREERVESEEY -
BERITASRRIE S
93,712 202,057
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRERME

b =]

For the year ended 31 December 2023
EZ20235F12A81 B ILFE

General Information

The Company was incorporated and registered as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Act Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands on 7 June 2017.
The shares of the Company were listed on the company Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock
Exchange”) on 12 December 2018 and its parent and ultimate
holding company is Spring Snow Management Limited, a limited
liability company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”).
The address of the Company’s registered office and principal
place of business is P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1104, Cayman Islands and Unit 1003, 10th Floor, Tower 2,
Lippo Centre, 89 Queensway, Hong Kong, respectively.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the exploration
and mining of coking coal and coal refinery in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC” or “China”).

The controlling shareholder of the Company is Mr. Yu Bangping (“Mr.
Yu”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”) which is also the same as the functional currency of the
Company.

—REF

RAFR20176F6 A7HIRIEH S5
ERANEEREERSHSEMMA
UREBRREBERAGF o RABKMG
R2018F12 A 12HEB BB ER S
FAERAR(TBERP]) ERETT
i H & 2 &) M ik SR E IR X B & Spring
Snow Management Limited ' %22 &
RREBRERES((HBRELRES])
EMAZEBRAR o AR F R M
PERERFELEMB MU R
P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands
REEEEIR NBEHLE2E10
1£1003% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Application of New and Amendments to

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time, which
are mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual period beginning
on 1 January 2023 for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements:

HKFRS 17 (including the October 2020  Insurance Contracts
and February 2022 Amendments to

HKFRS 17)
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction
Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform - Pillar Two
Model Rules

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Disclosure of Accounting
Practice Statement 2

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial positions and performance for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

A MR M E(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B %2023F12A81 B ILFE

FERFE] BB IR ELE
BI([ &BMBRELER )
RAZET A
RARFE RS E RG] BB
B EER RIEFT A

RAFE  AEEEXEAESS:T
MAg((EESFEAE ) BEMAEIA
TR BBV MEEL RIEFTA
ZEEFTRASEA2023F1 A18H
TAE BRI SA B A - ARRERALR
EIHRE

BERBMSENET  RRAY
3 (2120209108 &
20222 AMBE RIS
EEAEITHR(EEIR))
BEGHREAEST DR

(BFIA)
BBEEAF125 BE-RHELH
(BFA) EENREES
MR
BBEEAF125 BB B E -2
(BFA) = ERIR

BREHEARIRRES CHBRBE
MBRSENEHRA
F2R(EFTA)

BT XA &SN - ANEE AR E
BUBREERREFTAHARER
FREMBEFENM BN R EE
&/ RZEGEEWBRERAENRE
WEEANZE



120 Perennial Energy Holdings Limited X % 383

RERERARAA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR B TSI A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023

S

2.

202312 A31BILFE

Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 12 “Deferred Tax
related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction”

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in the
current year. The amendments narrow the scope of the recognition
exemption of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets in
paragraphs 15 and 24 of HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” so that it no
longer applies to transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

In accordance with the transition provision:

(i) the Group has applied the new accounting policy
retrospectively to leasing transactions that occurred on or
after 1 January 2022;

(i) the Group also, as at 1 January 2022, recognised a deferred
tax asset (to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
difference can be utilised) and a deferred tax liability for all
deductible and taxable temporary difference associated with
right-of-use-assets and lease liabilities.

The application of the amendments has had no material impact on
the Group’s financial position and performance, except that the
Group disclose the related deferred tax assets of RMB46,626,000
and deferred tax liabilities of RMB15,051,000 on a gross basis in
Note 20 but it has no impact on the retained earnings at the earliest
period presented.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies”

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in the
current year. HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements is
amended to replace all instances of the term “significant accounting
policies” with “material accounting policy information”. Accounting
policy information is material if, when considered together with
other information included in an entity’s financial statements, it can
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users
of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy information may
be material because of the nature of the related transactions, other
events or conditions, even if the amounts are immaterial. However,
not all accounting policy information relating to material transactions,
other events or conditions is itself material. If an entity chooses to
disclose immaterial accounting policy information, such information
must not obscure material accounting policy information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements (the
“Practice Statement”) is also amended to illustrate how an entity
applies the “four-step materiality process” to accounting policy
disclosures and to judge whether information about an accounting
policy is material to its financial statements. Guidance and examples
are added to the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments has had no material impact on
the Group’s financial positions and performance but has affected the
disclosure of the Group’s accounting policies set out in note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
EZ20235F12A81 B ILFE

H
[==]

2.  Application of New and Amendments to 2. FERFIBBUKRELE
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards BI([ &BMBRELER )
(“HKFRSs”) (continued) RASET 7N (@)

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective B BB 18 R E RN E B IR
SEAEIT A

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments REBIWHEIZEFIER T2 BMHE RN

to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective: REMFE] B AP RE LR R &

AIAS
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets between an ERMHHREELE REEEEMENTHA
HKAS 28 Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture' 10 REEES ERECENEELE

RRFBK(ET]  FEA
x)

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback? AR REENSE EA0ENHEERR?
165 (E314)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non- EReHERE1% BaEsBEARDTIE

current and related amendments to Hong (BETK) R REBRBESR
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)2 (2020F )M REEIERT
P

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants? EALERE1% e dErsa &2
(B3T)

Amendments to HKAS 7 and Supplier Finance Arrangements? ERGERETR MHERRELHER

HKFRS 7 REBMBRE

ERIETH(1EF]
)

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability® ERSHERIE2S B a s
(E3T7)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be L RFE B EAsk 2 1% MR & E B

determined. R e
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. 2 R2024F1 A1B R 2 BFBHNE
AR -
g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025. g R2025F1 A1 2 B HIEHE

ERARAERL -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Application of New and Amendments to

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(continued)

Except for the amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below, the
directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all
other amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the

consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020) (the “2020 Amendments”) and Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-
current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022 Amendments”)

The 2020 amendments provide clarification and additional guidance
on the assessment of right to defer settlement for at least twelve
months from reporting date for classification of liabilities as current
or non-current, which:

o clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the option of
the counterparty, result in its settlement by the transfer of the
entity’s own equity instruments, these terms do not affect
its classification as current or non-current only if the entity
recognises the option separately as an equity instrument
applying HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation.

° specify that the classification of liabilities as current or non-
current should be based on rights that are in existence at the
end of the reporting period. Specifically, the amendments
clarify that the classification should not be affected by
management intentions or expectations to settle the liability
within 12 months.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE

2.

202312 A1 B ILFE

Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation
5 (2020) (the “2020 Amendments”) and Amendments to HKAS 1
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022 Amendments”)

(continued)

For rights to defer settlement for at least twelve months from
reporting date which are conditional on the compliance with
covenants, the requirements introduced by the 2020 Amendments
have been modified by the 2022 Amendments. The 2022
Amendments specify that only covenants with which an entity
is required to comply with on or before the end of the reporting
period affect the entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting date. Covenants which are
required to comply with only after the reporting period do not affect
whether that right exists at the end of the reporting period.

In addition, the 2022 Amendments specify the disclosure
requirements about information that enables users of financial
statements to understand the risk that the liabilities could become
repayable within twelve months after the reporting period, if the
entity classify liabilities arising from loan arrangements as non-
current when the entity’s right to defer settlement of those liabilities is
subject to the entity complying with covenants within twelve months
after the reporting period.

The 2022 Amendments also defer the effective date of applying the
2020 Amendments to annual reporting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2024. The 2022 Amendments, together with the 2020
Amendments, are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2024, with early application permitted. If an entity
applies the 2020 amendments for an earlier period after the issue
of the 2022 Amendments, the entity should also apply the 2022
Amendments for that period.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at 31 December
2023, the application of the 2020 and 2022 Amendments will not
result in reclassification of the Group’s liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Application of New and Amendments to

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 Supplier Finance
Arrangements

The amendments add a disclosure objective to HKAS 7 Cash Flow
Statements stating that an entity is required to disclose information
about its supplier finance arrangements that enables users of
financial statements to assess the effects of those arrangements on
the entity’s liabilities and cash flows. In addition, HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures was amended to add supplier finance
arrangements as an example within the requirements to disclose
information about an entity’s exposure to concentration of liquidity
risk.

The term “supplier finance arrangements” is not defined. Instead,
the amendments describe the characteristics of an arrangement for
which an entity would be required to provide the information.

To meet the disclosure objective, an entity will be required to
disclose in aggregate for its supplier finance arrangements:

o The terms and conditions of the arrangements;

o The carrying amount and associated line items presented in
the entity’s statement of financial position, of the liabilities
that are part of the arrangements, and the non-cash changes
in the carrying amounts of these financial liabilities;

o The carrying amount, and associated line items for which the
suppliers have already received payment from the finance
providers;

° Ranges of payment due dates for both those financial
liabilities that are part of a supplier finance arrangement and
comparable trade payables that are not part of a supplier
finance arrangement; and liquidity risk information.
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Application of New and Amendments to

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 Supplier Finance
Arrangements (continued)

The amendments, which contain specific transition reliefs for the first
annual reporting period in which an entity applies the amendments,
are applicable for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024. Earlier application is permitted.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have impact
on the financial position or performance of the Group but may affect
the disclosures of liabilities, cash flows and the Group’s exposure
to liquidity risk related to the supplier finance arrangements entered
into by the Group. The impacts of application, if any, will be
disclosed in the Group's future consolidated financial statements.

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial

Statements and Material Accounting Policy

Information

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”).
For the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, information is considered material if such
information is reasonably expected to influence decisions
made by primary users. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include the applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
B %2023F12A81 B ILFE

mRGE M BERERNELE
REZRESTHERER@®

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial 3.
Statements and Material Accounting Policy
Information (continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial 31 mREGZESVHEBRERPELE
statements (continued) (#8)
As at 31 December 2023, the Group had net current liabilities M2023F 12 4318 » KX &
of RMB179,657,000 and outstanding capital commitments MRS EBEFEAEARK
payable within twelve months of RMB294,000,000. During 179,657,000 7t % f&E i + =
the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recorded net &8 A A2 A B R A B AR
profit for the year of RMB504,193,000 and the net operating A A R # 294,000,000 ° &
cash inflow of RMB213,378,000. In order to mitigate the F£2023F12A31HLEFE -
liquidity risk, the Group had prepared cash flows forecast REBHESFAFRNAR
for 12 months from end of reporting period and obtained 504,193,000 7T 2 48 & IR &
sufficient short and long-term bank facilities. During the mAE R A R #213,378,000
year ended 31 December 2023, the Group has obtained T RFERBESER - &K
total facilities of RMB790,000,000 and unutilised portion is SEDHEEMEHARERT12
RMB282,306,000 as at 31 December 2023. In addition, the BAAMIBERETEN - WES
management will undertake close monitoring process to TEMNEHARRBRITAHE ©
control the timing of the expected cash outflows associated REE2023F12 A31HIEF
with the mining operation and the payment of capital B AEEDESHNREREE
expenditures. In this regard, the directors of the Company A A R # 790,000,000 * &
consider that the Group’s liquidity risk has been significantly £2023F 12 A31 H A P
reduced and they are satisfied that the Group will be able to o & AR 282,306,000 7T °
meet its financial obligations in full as and when they fall due Uhoh - BRERETEYE
for the coming twelve months from 31 December 2023. 2o DAY I BRER TR 2R 7S ] B R
T HAFAEENTERR SR
R e BttmE - ARRIES
RE - REENREE R
BERIETEE - RAREEREE
BRENBHEITH BE2023512
A31BEFARK+—EAAE2
BRI TS 75 o
3.2  Material accounting policy information 3.2 FESHBEREHR
Basis of consolidation rEEE

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial 3.
Statements and Material Accounting Policy
Information (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (continued) 3.2 FEZTBERERGAE)
Basis of consolidation (continued) Are B (4E)

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes
an associate.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with
the associate are recognised in the consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the associate
that are not related to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Material Accounting Policy
Information (continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers

Information about the Group’s accounting policies relating to
contracts with customers is provided in note 5.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be

received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they become receivable.

Leases
The Group as a lessee
Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in “property,
plant and equipment”, the same line item within which the
corresponding underlying assets would be presented if they
were owned.
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Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Material Accounting Policy
Information (continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is
classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

Rental income of leasing the investment property is included
in other income.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

SRR

RV E R

REZESTHERER @)

3.2

SETBERER ()
FHE (%8)
REBEREBA ()
HERE
NIEERE A - REBRZ
AR e E AR E TR &
FAAEHERE - REEHER
ARER - HMEER X
HUEE  AAKE®EAE
E %A B HIR R B AR KA X5
o

REBEREEA
HESBLFE
REBERHHEANEED R
RRMENKEHEE - EHER
R EREE B R R
KA B Ko B 3R T F
AR SRS BRRENEE -
MERMEESASEEM

=

=

KETEENES WA TR
HEFHABERER BT g

n«mu"

HEREDENHSWATTA
HAA -

¥ BERE

ME - BELRRB(ERZIR
BROMNIBRARE L RFHTE
REZZREBER(AE)R
FAMBARRRINE -




Annual Report 2023 £ £

131

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
RE MRS R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B %2023F12A81 B ILFE

ARG E N BHMRAVELE
REZESTHERER @)

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial 3.
Statements and Material Accounting Policy
Information (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (continued) 3.2 SETBERER (&)
Property, plant and equipment (continued) ?Z%%“ s K iR 1 (48)
Properties in the course of construction for production, ERAEEE RITHAZNY
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less FEBARAE M B HRREE

any recognised impairment loss. Costs include any costs
directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management, including costs of
testing whether the related assets is functioning properly
and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets, other than construction in progress and mining
structures, over their estimated useful lives after taking into
account their estimated residual value, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of the reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted
for on a prospective basis.
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The mining structures are stated at cost less subsequent IR LY IR EE R
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated EH)?%&E&%%?@ME%E@J
impairment losses. Depreciation is provided to write off the o FIEBEM DR ENIE R
cost of the mining structures using the units of production k%);%,\f‘fé}xi% IARE B KR
method based on the actual production volume over the total BMEENEEBEGRERN

proven and probable reserves of the coal mine concerned.
Reserve estimates are reviewed when information becomes
available that indicates a reserve change is needed, or at a
minimum once a year. Any material effect from changes in
estimates is considered in the period the change occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
EZ20235F12A81 B ILFE
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3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial 3.
Statements and Material Accounting Policy
Information (continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Mining rights

Mining rights are carried at cost less subsequent
accumulated amortisation and subsequent accumulated
impairment loss. Mining rights include the cost of acquiring
mining licenses. Amortisation for mining rights is provided
using the units of production method based on the actual
production volume over the total proven and probable
reserves of the coal mine concerned.

A mining right is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of a
mining right, measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Material Accounting Policy
Information (continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (continued)
Impairment loss on non-financial assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its non-financial assets to determine
whether there is any indication that these assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position include cash on hand and
demand deposits and those cash equivalents which held for
the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather
than for investment or other purposes.

Bank balances for which used by the Group is subject to
third party contractual restrictions are included as part of
cash unless the restrictions result in a bank balance no
longer meeting the definition of cash. Regulatory restrictions
affecting use of bank balances are disclosed in note 19.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
EZ20235F12A81 B ILFE

3. Basis of P

reparation of Consolidated Financial

Statements and Material Accounting Policy
Information (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when

a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions

of the instrument.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

(ii)

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except
for financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and
is included in the “other gains and losses” line item.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Material Accounting Policy
Information (continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets which are
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-looking
information.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Contingent consideration payables are classified as at FVTPL
and measured at fair value.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities, including trade payables, other payables
and accrued charges, and bank borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial 3.
Statements and Material Accounting Policy
Information (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (continued) 3.2
Provision for restoration cost
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facilities, abandoning sites and restoring the affected areas. B o

A provision for restoration cost is recognised when the
Group has a present obligation (legal or construction) as a
result of exploration, development and production activities
undertaken, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and the
amount of the provision can be measured reliably. The
estimated future obligations include the costs of removing
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The amount recognised as the provision for restoration cost
is the best estimate of the present value of the expenditure
required to settle the present restoration obligation at the
end of the reporting period, based on current legal and other
requirements. Future restoration costs are reviewed annually
and any changes in the estimate are reflected in the present
value of the provision at the end of the reporting period.
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Changes in the estimation of the restoration provision that
result from changes in the estimated timing or amount of
cash flows, including the effects of revisions to estimated
lives of operation or a change in the discount rate, are
added to, or deducted from, the cost of the related asset
in the period it occurred. If a decrease in liability exceeds
the carrying amount of the asset, the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss. Unwinding of the effect of
discounting on the provision is recognised as finance costs.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit scheme and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered

service entitling them to the contributions.

RAREREAR
FEREENRKRBENEE K
swHEAEE A B ([REEE
2 ) EL A SRR B R AR
M Al F 8 1 R R
% o



Annual Report 2023 £ £

137

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
RE MRS R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
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RS RERMERE
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Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial 3.
Statements and Material Accounting Policy
Information (continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (continued)
Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the
benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries) after deducting any amount
already paid.

Taxation
Taxation represents the sum of current and deferred income

tax expense.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
2023512 A31HILFE

S

3.

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Material Accounting Policy
Information (continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period when the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale, except for freehold land, which is
always presumed to be recovered entirely through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Material Accounting Policy
Information (continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE

4.

202312 A1 B ILFE

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key

Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the management of the Group is required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimates is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if
the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the management of the Group have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies
and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on undistributed profits of subsidiaries
At 31 December 2023, the Group provided for deferred tax liabilities
of approximately RMB15,051,000 (2022: RMB28,017,000) in relation
to the tax impact arising from the expected to be distributed from
certain subsidiaries.

Deferred tax liabilities have not been provided on the distributable
profits of subsidiaries amounting to RMB2,042,812,000 (2022:
RMB1,777,456,000) which is the retained profits arising from
previous year that the Group plans to retain in the respective entities
for their daily operations and future developments. The Group
expects distributions from certain subsidiaries do not exceed 30%
of their profits generated by those subsidiaries on that year. In case
where the actual distribution of profits from those subsidiaries are
larger or smaller than expected or changes in the Group’s future
development plan which affects the expected timing and amounts
of future distributions, material tax liabilities will change, which
will be recognised in the profit or loss for the period in which such
profits are distributed or the future development plan of the Group
changed, whichever is earlier.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following is the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.

Depreciation of mining structures included in property,
plant and equipment and amortisation of mining rights
As explained in note 3, mining rights and mining structures are
amortised or depreciated using the units of production method based
on the actual production volume over the total proven and probable
reserves of the coal mine concerned.

Proven and probable coal reserves estimates are estimates of the
quantity of coal that can be economically and legally extracted from
the Group’s mining properties, which are determined according
to applicable independent technical review report prepared by an
external specialist, with the consideration of most recent production
and technical information of each mine. However, the mining rights
were granted for terms of 20 (2022: 20 years). The management
of the Group is of the opinion that the Group will be able to
continuously renew the mining rights and the business licences
without significant costs. Accordingly, the Group has used the
proven and probable reserves as a basis of estimation for the useful
lives of its mining rights.

Fluctuations in factors including a variation on recovery rates
or unforeseen geological or geotechnical perils may render the
management of the Group to change the production plan, resulting
from a revision on the estimates of coal reserves.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE

4.

202312 A1 B ILFE

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)
Depreciation of mining structures included in property,
plant and equipment and amortisation of mining rights
(continued)

Because the economic assumptions used to estimate reserves
change from period to period, and because additional geological
data is generated during the course of operations, estimates of
reserves may change from period to period. Changes in reported
reserves may affect the Group’s financial results that depreciation
and amortisation charged to profit or loss may change where such
charges are determined by the units of production basis, or where
the useful economic lives of assets change. The carrying amount of
mining rights was RMB828,778,000 (2022: RMB828,867,000) and the
carrying amount of mining structures included in the property, plant
and equipment was RMB1,162,283,000 (2022: RMB881,422,000)
as at 31 December 2023. The amortisation of mining rights and
depreciation of mining structures for the year ended 31 December
2023 amounted to RMB40,589,000 (2022: RMB37,324,000) and
RMB39,244,000 (2022: RMB25,192,000), respectively.

Estimated useful life of machinery included in property,
plant and equipment

Machinery included in property, plant and equipment are depreciated
over their useful economic lives after taking into account their
estimated residual values. The assessment of estimated useful lives
is a matter of judgement based on the experience of the Group’s
management, taking into account factors such as technological
process, conditions of machinery and changes in market demand.
Useful lives are periodically reviewed for appropriateness. The
carrying amount of machinery included in property, plant and
equipment was RMB587,857,000 (2022: RMB609,056,000).

ERSEHE R AT T8
EREZEMNEEZRR @)
FTAMIZE - 5 R AR BV ERIERE
SEYNITE R SR E R 8 ()

EEEAWHHJ%FEJ&%EM#‘%WWH Fcd
BRE KA SRR EEEIMNIES
%F CHEENGEAETRER TR
HEHIREE - IMEENESHE
VERNEBEMNMBESE  FFABER
MITERBHEIEEE  MZREN
ERBHREESBNEEREESY
B A B F T o 702023 F
12 A31 B FBEENEEMEAA
R 828,778,000 7T (2022 FF : AR
#& 828,867,000 7T ) M ar A2 -
MEREENREEEYHERE
7#$1,162,283,000 ( 2022 F : A R ¥
881,422,0007T) ° # £2023 F12 A
BB IEFE - FHREES R REREE
¥4 & 7 7l 540,589,000 (2022 4F :
A R # 37,324,000 7T ) % 39,244,000
(20224 : AR#25,192,000 JT) °

FTAMIZE - RERBREHEEH
fhET A E A HA

KETREFAYE - BB R E R
AT RIREREE - HRELERE
PR EITE o (et Pl {EAF AT
BEAEEEEELHMEAE - I
TR BT TE - #eRMKR RS E K
SHEAE - 0] HF TSR
NHEESEEA - 5T AME - BE
REENOKEBNERESNIAAR
& 587,857,000 7t (2022 FF = AR
609,056,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)
Remaining useful lives of mining rights

The Group’s management determines the estimated remaining
useful lives of 20 to 43 years (2022: 21 to 43 years) for its mining
rights based on the proven and probable reserves. However, the
mining rights were granted for terms of 20 years (2022: 20 years).
The management of the Group is of the opinion that the Group will
be able to continuously renew the mining rights and the business
licences without significant costs. Accordingly, the Group has used
the proven and probable reserves as a basis of estimation for the
remaining useful lives of its mining rights.

Provision for restoration costs

Provisions for the Group’s restoration costs are based on estimates
of required expenditure to restore the sites of Group’s mines in
accordance with PRC rules and regulations. The Group estimates
its liabilities for final reclamation and mine closure based upon
detailed calculations of the amount and timing of the future cash
expenditure to perform the required work, escalated for inflation,
then discounted at a discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
liability such that the amount of provision reflects the present value
of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
Estimates are regularly reviewed and adjusted as appropriate for
new circumstances. The carrying amount of provision for restoration
costs as at 31 December 2023 was RMB73,943,000 (2022:
RMB47,008,000).

A MR M E(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B %2023F12A81 B ILFE

BAETTHE R AT TE
ERZNEERIE @)
PRUERE R A 52 A 2
AEEEREEREIZERMBHEEE
EHFEEN GG AR FEHA20%
43%F (20224 : 21434 )  JhT » £
BRI R BA20 4 (20224F « 204F) ©
AEEEEERA $’§lﬂﬁaﬁzﬁﬁ
BEERBEEREENR  MEAX
REBREAE - Eltt AK%ILANEE
e EEE A MM R REENERASF
HR ELAE o

ERNARE
NEBIE R AR TR IR IR R B
ERRAERIREAR S EEEAEA S
HEESE  c NREBHKRERRE
LR B EEITHER - HXaH
FTEHITEIENRKR ST HA
SHERER - WREAE MR EET
ﬂ’%%ﬁﬁ&%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁ

%ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ# B AT A BRIR
RHEITRLIR - ﬁ@%ﬁiﬁ&%m

.

E‘{Ea“kﬁ#ﬁﬁﬁiﬁmfﬁﬁ HHE
ETEHES  WREFBRETE
FAEE o }A2023F12 A31H » B
AN E R IREE A AR 73,943,000
JL(2022% : AR#47,008,0007T) °

R

Bk
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

S

5.

202312 A1 B ILFE

Revenue and Segment Information

Revenue

Revenue represents the fair value of amounts received and
receivable from the sales of goods and services provided by the
Group to related party/external customers, net of related taxes, for
the year.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

Sales of coal products and coalbed methane gas

For sales of coal products and coalbed methane gas, revenue is
recognised when the control of goods is transferred, being when the
goods are delivered to the customer’s specific location. A receivable
is recognised by the Group when the goods are delivered to the
customers as this represents the Group’s right to consideration
becomes unconditional, as only the passage of time is required
before payment is due. The customers have neither rights of return
nor rights to defer or avoid payment for the goods once they are
accepted by the customers upon receipt of goods.

The Group sells coal products to customers. Payment received
in advance that are related to the sales of coal products not yet
delivered to customers are deferred and recognised as contract
liabilities which were disclosed in note 27. Revenue is recognised
when coal products are delivered to customers.

Wzt & o EER

g

WS AR EBM R FE R m 5, SN
BRHEEEMRREREHE M RE
WHIBE) A TE(FIBRFERATRIR) ©

KEEF &R a7
SHE R E m MR E R
F/ﬁﬁ‘é’%mﬁéﬁa&ﬁﬁﬁﬁé © Wz
REREHEERE(ERCERXER
FRIEEHLE) KR - AKERE
MR TEPREREKE - RE
AU ER ORI SR U B YR A
REMRME Z@ﬁ?}rﬁ%’xn‘l,ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁzﬂﬁﬂ
Ao EPRBRER TSRO FEES
BRINEK

AEBRAEFPHEKKREmM - HIHE
HARN FEPHNRKEREBNE
WHBDREEYERARANAE &
BRMIFE27H EE - Wat & BRI E M
RN FEPEHER o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Revenue and Segment Information (continued)

Revenue (continued)

All revenue contracts are for period of one year or less. As permitted
by HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied
contracts is not disclosed.

Types of goods and services ERkEHER

RR—BFETRI R

Recognised at a point in time:

Sales of coal products: SHE R REM
- Raw coal — R
— Clean coal i
- Middling coal —h
— Sludge coal — ekt
Sales of coalbed methane gas HERER
Geographical market buE R
The PRC =8

Segment information

The Group’s operation is solely derived from the production and
sales of coal products and coalbed methane gas. For the purpose
of resources allocation and performance assessment, the chief
operating decision maker (“CODM?) (i.e. the chief executive officer)
reviews the overall results and financial position of the Group as a
whole prepared based on same accounting policies of the Group.
Accordingly, the Group has only one single operating segment and
no further analysis of this single segment is presented.

Geographical information

The Group’s revenue are all derived from the PRC based on
the location of the customers and the Group’s non-current
assets, excluding financial assets and deferred tax assets, of
RMB3,227,151,000 (2022: RMB2,868,215,000) are located in the
PRC and of RMB1,296,000 (2022: RMB2,742,000) are located in
Hong Kong, respectively, by physical location of assets.

5.

A MR M E(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B %2023F12A81 B ILFE

Wz K o EBE R (E)

U (88)

FiE RS HAE — E XA - RE

B TR RIS A HE -
B EZERBETE NN S BRI
ﬁ@o

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREET T
2,468 3,541
1,620,390 1,687,745
64,925 71,216
22,741 16,711
1,710,524 1,779,213
5,099 4,820
1,715,623 1,784,033
1,715,623 1,784,033

D EBER
AEBEBEREEERHERRKE
REEER - HERLERXRTE
mE  TEEERRE(EBLER
®E D) (TR AR BHRAEER

AEARRARENAEERBEER
MBIRR - Bt - AEEEE—EF
—EESHH  AUERFIRE—HE
B — DA o

Wi E R
RNEBERE P AT E IS 2 502Kk
BHRE - MASEREEWEVEE
DHEIERBEE (TRIESREENLE
ERIEE E) B A K% 3,227,151,000
gL (2022 FF : A R % 2,868,215,000
JC) 2 A R B & A R 51,296,000 7T

(20224F : AR¥52,742,0007T ) (A E
7 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR B TSI A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BIEFE

5. Revenue and Segment Information (continued)
Segment information (continued)
Information about major customers
Revenue from customers of the corresponding year contributing
over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are as follows:

Customer A EFPA
Customer B ZFB
Customer C =FC
Customer D XFD
* The revenue of relevant customer did not contribute over 10% of the

total revenue of the Group.

Wz 2 3 BB E# (@)

D EPE R ()
BT EEFHIEH
RAEBE Y B EE10% A Er9HE
EEEEPWKESMT
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREET T

N/ATiE F 610,138
719,358 525,848
225,344 N/ANE >
175,485 N/ATE ™

* MRS BB EB AN EE
HUEREI10% A L -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R BTSRRI A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B %2023F12A81 B ILFE
6. Directors’ and Employees’ Emoluments 6. ESRESHM
(@) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (@) EEBERITHEARIMH
The emoluments paid or payable to the directors of the HASEENERED MR E
Company by entities comprising the Group are as follows: RATESHFHMAT -
Executive Directors Independent Non-executive Directors
gz BUFES

Mr.Punnya  Ms. Cheung
Mr.Sun  Mr.Wang Mr.Li Mr. Yu Mr. Yu Mr.Lau  Mr.Fong Niraan  SuetTing,  Mr.Wang

Mr. Yu Dawei Shize  Xuezhong Zhilong Xiao  KaiMing Wai Ho DeSilva  Samantha Xiufeng Total

Punnya

Niraan
REE BARRE THERE PETEE KUERE  RBAE  HRMEE  AERAE DeShait: RERLZL IFBAE &5t
RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARMTT ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARNTR ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARETR
(Note (i)  (Note(i))  (Note (i)
(E0) ) (W)

Year ended 31 December ~ £Z2023F12A31H

2023 I3
Fees s 108 2 108 108 108 108 108 324 324 324 200 1,847
Other emoluments: RtogH -
Salaries and other benefits %74 [ g7 893 81 893 1124 1,030 393 1,137 - - - - 5,551
Retirement benefits RINEHIE B
schemes contributions 2 - 2 2 32 19 2 - - - - 137

Total emoluments HHeE 1,022 108 1,022 1,254 1,170 520 1,267 34 34 34 200 753




148 Perennial Energy Holdings Limited & 3= 3B 80 RIEMER A & ) L.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR B TSI A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HZE2023F12A31ALLFE
6. Directors’ and Employees’ Emoluments 6. EEBEREEFHFMN@)

(continued)

(@) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (@) ESBRITBEAHEMHE)

(continued)
Executive Directors Independent Non-executive Directors
bl £ BUHNIEE
Mr. Lam Mr. Punnya Ms. Cheung

Mr.Sun  Mr. Wang Mr.Li Chik Shun, Mr. Yu Mr.Yu  Mr.lau  Mr.Fong Nraan ~ SuetTing, ~ Mr.Wang
Mr. Yu Dawei Shize  Xuezhong ~ Marcus  Zhilong Xiao  KaiMing WaiHo ~ DeSiva Samantha  Xiufeng Total
Punnya
Niraan
REE BABRE IHERE FPREE MEERE AXERE  ABEL WEERE PEREL DeShahE REBRT IAERAE it
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARRTR ARBTR ARMTR ARNTR ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARNTR ARMTR ARBTR ARETT ARETR

(Note()) ~ (Note(i)  (Note (i) (Note (i) (Note (i)
(k) (W) (M) Pz (PG
Year ended 31 December /22022512831
202 I35
Fees e 103 103 103 103 43 103 103 60 309 309 309 200 1,848
Other emoluments: HipEd -
Salaries and other benefits & R E /87 902 902 902 1,072 938 402 402 876 - - - - 6,39
Retirement benefits BIRRRIEEIRR
schemes contributions 21 - 21 21 9 19 19 18 - - - - 128
Total emoluments HasE 1,026 1,005 1,026 1,196 990 524 524 954 309 309 309 200 8,372
Notes: BitsE
(i) On 31 March 2023, the board of directors approved the (i) 72023F3A31H ' &F

SHAERBFRETBE
EARRATHAAR (1T

relinquish of Mr. Yu Bangping from the roll as the Chief
Executive Officer (the “CEQO”) of the Company with effect

(ii)

(ii)

(iv)

from 1 April 2023, while Mr. Yu Bangping will remain as
the chairman of the Board and an executive Director of the
Company and the chairman of the nomination committee of
the Company. And Mr. Yu Zhilong, an executive Director,
was appointed as the new CEO with effect from 1 April 2023.

On 31 March 2023, the board of directors approved the

resignation of Mr. Sun Dawei from executive Director.

On 1 June 2022, the board of directors approved the
appointment of Mr. Lau Kau Ming as executive Director.

On 12 March 2024, the board of directors approved the
resignation of Mr. Wang Shize from executive Director.

#aF]) - 8 2023 F 4 A
1 BREER  RFEFLE
BHREETARRESS
EFE - RITESRAQA
REZEBEEE - Y7
ERYEAEEZT AN
EITHEE - B 2023 F
4 81 BRBER-

(ii) M202343H31H ' £%F

FHAERKERERER
TEE -

(iii) 1202266 A1H ' EEE

AR ERIRREREERH
TEE -

(iv) 202438128 - £F

FHE 2L EBER
TEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

6. Directors’ and Employees’ Emoluments

(continued)

(@)

(b)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(continued)

The emoluments of executive directors stated above were
for their services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Company and the Group. The emoluments of
independent non-executive directors stated above were for
their services as directors of the Company.

There was no arrangement under which a director of the
Company waived or agreed to waive any remuneration in any
of the year. No remunerations were paid by the Group to the
directors of the Company as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office in any
of the year.

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the
year are all directors (2022: all directors), details of whose
emoluments are set out in note 6(a) above.

HK$1,000,000 to HK$1,500,000

A MR M E(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE2023F12A31H IFEFE

6. EEREEHMNE

(@)

(b)

1,000,000/ 721,500,000/ 7T

ES RT3

LRBRTEZFTHEREEE
BARRRRAEEEBH RS
s fi o EBIFITES
FHNERREERARRESR
B AR T S A o

WMERIFE - WEELEAAR
BB E B RE A5
R - REEIWEFARF
BEENFHMIEARSI AR
S B DA SR BB B 22
A RBERAE

12 5 %
FAREE 2 RSH ALY
REE(2022F : 2HES) -
BRAEFMOFITEIIN EX
fizt6() °

2023 2022
Number of Number of
employees employees
EEA™ EEAH

5 5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR B TSI A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023

EE2023F12A31H L FE
7. Other Income 7. HfblkA

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT
Government grant (Note (i) B B (B EEG)) 15,721 15,842
Sale of electricity BAHEERA 13,929 26,782
Rental income (Note (ji)) i ONCEEE (D)) 1,773 3,780
Bank interest income RITH BULA 1,595 1,264
Others Hiftb 2,643 5,130
35,661 52,798

Notes: PIEE
0] During the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, government (0] @§2023¢‘&202Z¢12H31 Ei
grant mainly represents grants received by the Group upon meeting FE - BT ERIEARERE
production volume target of coal products and coalbed methane gas PR MR T PR SZ A B IR E dm SR
and safety requirement set by the local government. BREEBERRZEHRTRTKER

HRED

(ii) The amount includes (i) lease payments of fixed office building of (ii) EZ@%E@%U)TEE@E%*EEQ ki
RMB1,101,000 (2022: RMB1,101,000) received under operating FENBERRERBRAR(E
leases from a related party, Guizhou Bangda Energy Development MFBE] - 5 Bl R FF 58 £ Rk
Co., Ltd (“Guizhou Bangda”), an entity was owned as to 90% and ?BﬁXﬁ‘Ei%E})O%&W%B’\]%’T%ﬁ%)
10% by Mr. Yu Bangping and Mr. Yu Bangcheng, respectively. WERH [E E 3 AR E N RAR

#1,101,0007T (2022 F : AR¥E
1,101,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R BTSRRI A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B %2023F12A81 B ILFE

Other gains and losses 8. HflhsmREE
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETTT

Fair value change of investment properties % & %K A T EEZS) (HFE15)

(note 15) (4,300) (100)
Loss on disposal/written-off of property, HE MEEmE - BE REREN
plant and equipment, net [E518 - JF R (8,914) (2,554)
Net exchange loss PE 3 18558 (4,181) (2,286)
(17,395) (4,940)
. .
Finance Costs 9. RERAK
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBET T AREETTT

Interest on bank and other borrowings HRITREADERFLE 27,997 19,306
Unwinding of discount on restoration costs 1828k A< 8527 # 0] 3,381 2,034
Interest on discounted bills AR EERRF S 2,479 7,527
Interest on supplier finance arrangements L ERELE ZHEAO T B 1,630 =
Imputed interest arising from payables for U B ERTEHE R E N FIE R

acquisition of mining right HER S 519 =
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENFE 38 61

36,044 28,928
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
iR ISR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F12 A1 B IEFE

10. Profit before Taxation

BRBL AR A

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT
Profit before taxation has been arrived at BB RS AASHER (BT A) -
after charging (crediting):
Auditor’s remuneration: MM -
Audit services AR 2,341 2,147
Non-audit services Iz BRTE 1,877 29
Directors’ emoluments = EH 7,535 8,372
Other staff costs: EAth B TR -
Salaries and other allowances e M H MR, 394,169 347,374
Retirement benefits schemes RKE R B
contributions* 72,534 59,063
Less: Capitalised in construction in W ERIRERNME
progress (150,661) (148,859)
Less: Capitalised in inventories o FEERME (238,871) (179,431)
Total staff costs (included in administrative, 8 TAXAN48EE (FFATTEL » D&
distribution and selling expenses and SHER S REAMFS)
other expenses) 89,706 86,519
Depreciation of property, plant and Y% - WEREEITE
equipment 121,999 99,135
Less: Capitalised in inventories B FEEREE (104,969) (86,148)
Total depreciation of property, plant and FFATTBRIE M B - BE
equipment included in administrative RiBITEETE
and other expenses 17,030 12,987
Amortisation of mining rights PR 40,589 37,324
Less: Capitalised in inventories B FEERE (40,589) (37,324)
Inventories recognised as an expense REASIHNGEE 771,333 666,398
Research and development expense EEF S (G AR )
(included in other expenses) 58,536 30,520
Rental income from investment properties & MEREIWA (FIFR A 2BEF )
net of negligible outgoing expenses (1,101) (1,101)
Penalties arising from operations LEEERMEIRGEARMRS)
(included in other expenses) (24,718) (2,951)

*

existing level of contributions.

No forfeited contributions may be used by the Group to reduce the

AEETEHERWH H TR K
REHRFKF -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Taxation Charge

PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”):

- current year —AFE
— under (over) provision in prior years
— A0

EIET IR S (M15E20)

— withholding tax
Deferred tax credit (note 20)

BIAS H

Taxation charge

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
subsidiary in Hong Kong has no assessable profits for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on EIT and Implementation Regulation
of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries is
25%. Subject to certain conditions on preferential tax treatment,
the applicable tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 15% for the year
ended 31 December 2023. On 26 May 2021, Guizhou Jiutai Bangda
Energy Development Co., Ltd. E /M A FHZERHAE B R A A
(“Jiutai Bangda”) obtained an approval notice from the relevant
authority, which approved Jiutai Bangda as being engaged in
encouraged industry in the western region. Furthermore, the income
derived from its coal refinery business accounted for more than 60%
of its gross income in 2023 as stipulated in the Announcement of
the Ministry of Finance, the State Taxation Administration and the
National Development and Reform Commission on Continuing the
Enterprise Income Tax Policies for the Large-Scale Development
of Western China (“Announcement No. 23 2020”). The profits are
therefore subject to preferential tax treatment and the applicable tax
rate for the calendar year ended 31 December 2023 was 15%.

B EMSH(TREMSR]) -

—BEFERETR(ERER)

A MR M E(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE2023F12A31H IFEFE
BIE H
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREET T
97,184 140,014
3,121 (968)
20,169 1,470
(19,463) (28,923)
101,011 111,593

RN BB B A AR W EFE D EE
ABOE A - B FE NS AR
B o

BEFBMEEMEEERDEMS
BOEBE MG - ANEESREHE AR
MR B25% - EHAEE TEES
BEBKRET - FRNBRATREE
2023F12A31 AL FEZHAMER
15% ° H2021F5H26H @ EIMAZE
R RABAERAR([ARBE]D
WEIEMERIERN  REASR
BEANEHIHEOSEEESE -
BEAN - 20234 - BN T E UK
MMEBUAB0% A L - FFE B EED -
BMsRE BRFEREZHERLE
ABARABECEMETERENRE
([20205 5823558 1) 2 #7E ° ALt - FT
BERNAIZEEENBEE  #HE
2023F12 A3 B ILEFHNEARE R
15%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
iR ISR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F12 A1 B IEFE

11. Taxation Charge (continued) 11, HIEXZH @)
The taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit FATRIA HERB AT B ERAT

before taxation as follows:

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T ARBTT

Profit before taxation BRA% A A 605,204 855,548
Taxation at PRC EIT rate of 25% BPBARAEHRRNE25%5TH
THIE 151,301 213,887
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for AAMBFAZORETE
tax purposes 13,719 10,071
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BARRBANT B E
purposes - (473)
Additional tax benefit on research and 25 R S R BB I A 1B 2R (FT (i)
development expenses (Note (i)) (14,634) -
Tax effect of share of results of an associate JE(E—EEi& A RIEE 2 HETE 759 =
Under (over) provision in respect of prior RATFERETE (BERH)
years 3,121 (968)
Income tax at preferential tax rates REBVRTERNMEH (60,458) (89,537)
Withholding tax on distributed profits of a e A R 2R FE A TR IE
subsidiary 20,169 1,470
Decrease in opening deferred tax assets RN R EERERRET A E =
resulting from decrease in applicable A
tax rate = 3,603
Deferred tax charge arising on undistributed 7 B8 Ff{ B /2 &) & 707K 1B S £ O IR AE
profits of PRC subsidiaries HIESE (12,966) 18,540
Recognition of deductible temporary RSB AR A I R £ 58
differences previously not recognised - (45,000)
Taxation charge for the year FARIBLZ 101,011 111,593
Note: ik
i) According to the relevant laws and regulations promulgated by (i) BRI REBRBEMHAE
the PRC State Administration of Taxation made effective from 2023 F MBAEMMAEAERIEM -
2023 onwards, enterprises engaging in research and development RERFEINCEEETZFE
activities are entitled to claim up to 200% of their qualified research HIERTBURFEE - ARESEEERN
and development expenses incurred as tax deductible expenses A GO N &R=200%
when determining their assessable profits for that year. The Group FHERTIBIAY - ZEBBEHRASE
has made its best estimate for the additional deduction to be claimed ERNETEHE2023F412A°
for the Group’s entities in ascertaining their assessable profits during 318 L FE R FERTR TR 8

the year ended 31 December 2023. DNEH0RRVE S S T ©
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12.

13.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Dividends

Proposed final dividend of HK5.00 cents

(2022: HK12.50 cents) per share (20224 : 12.507#11l)

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2023 of HK5.00 cents
(2022: HK12.50 cents) per ordinary share, in an aggregate amount
of HK$80,000,000 (2022: HK$200,000,000), has been proposed
by the directors of the Company and is subject to approval by the
shareholders in the forthcoming general meeting. The final dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2022 has been paid
during the year.

Earnings per Share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the following
data:

Earnings: &R

12.

RS R HAA B 85,0078 11l

13.

Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings FR T E S EAEF & EF

per share (profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company)

Number of shares: RHEE :
Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of calculating

basic earnings per share

IntEF

No diluted earnings per share was presented for both years as there
were no potential ordinary shares in issue for both years.

(ARREE ANEIEFRER)

AR ESRERRN N EER

A MR M E(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE2023F12A31H IFEFE

fE
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T AREET T
72,496 178,660

R|ERZ%E - RARESEERM
#H £2023F 12 31 H |- F E k2 K 5
F% B 5 A% 3 8 % 5.00/5 11l (20224 :
12.5071l) - & & %8 /80,000,000
7 7T (20224 : 200,000,000 7T )
BRBREREREBRREAS EHE - 5t
HZE2022F12A31HIEFEMENR
HANE EE R FE IR o

BREBR
ADRREE ABESRER R ER
MRS 5B HH

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBT T
504,193 743,955
’000 ’000

TR T
1,600,000 1,600,000

HAMEFESY EDHTEELT R
I - MARESESL B2 GREE
ERF -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR B TSI A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HZE2023F12A31BIEFE
14. Property, Plant and Equipment 14. Y% - BMERZME
Office and
Construction Mining electronic Motor  Leasehold Leased
inprogress  Buildings  structures  Machinery  equipment  vehicles land  properties Total
AR
HRIE BT REREY BE ETRE HEPEH  HELfh  RENE H
RMB'000  RMBO00  RMB'000  RMBIOO0  RMB'000  RMBOO0  RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
CosT s
At 1 January 2022 720201 1R 132284 188746 713731 84750 24046 28400 41977 8901 1,985,655
Additions E 36327 13877 59 108175 1378 5,798 - - 486154
Transfer 2 (395937) 91713 262,693 39,055 2476 = = = =
Disposal/written-off e /i - (1,235) = (4,104 (608) (367) = = (6,314)
At 31 December 2022 12000512314 Q674 203101 977023 990696 27292 33831 41977 8901 2465495
Additions e 325,326 1260 25638 55502 10450 2833 886 - 421904
Transfer ag (327.904) 21942 204467 11,495 - - - - -
Disposal/written-off HE /i - (12109 - (39989) - (65) - - B21%)
At 31 December 2023 202351273318 90096 30427 1207128 1017707 37742 36599 42,863 8901 2,835,243
DEPRECIATION it
At 1 January 2022 720001 A1A - 3697 70400 325491 13182 17555 4,266 5075 472915
Provided for the year Ende - 7406 5192 58970 2,640 2,8% 818 125 99135
Eliminated on disposal/ HE /i
written-off - (222) - (2.821) (509) (208) - - (3,760)
At 31 December 2022 2020512318 - M170 95601 381640 15263 20,182 5084 6350 568,290
Provided for the year Rk - 9383 30244 65506 2,982 2763 826 1215 121,99
Eliminated on disposal/ e /MR
written-off - 219 - (171319) - (55) - - (1759
At 31 December 2023 12003F12A31H - 53334 134845 429850 18245 22890 5910 7625 672699
CARRYING AMOUNTS KR
At 31 December 2023 2020351271318 0006 250873 1162283 587857 19497 13709 36953 1216 2162544

At 31 December 2022 R202%12A318 92,674 248,931 881422 609,056 12,029 13,649 36,893 2,551 1,897,206
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14.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress and mining structures, are depreciated on
a straight-line basis after taking into account their estimated residual
values, at the following rates per annum:

3.33% to 5%
6.7% to 20%
10% to 20%
10% to 20%
Over the shorter of estimated

Buildings
Machinery
Office and electronic equipment
Motor vehicles
Leasehold land

useful life and the lease term
Leased properties Over the shorter of estimated

useful life and the lease term

The leasehold land represents the payments for land use rights
which are under medium-term lease (i.e. 40 to 50 years) in the PRC.

The buildings are situated on the leasehold land in the PRC.

The mining structures include the main and auxiliary mine shafts and
underground tunnels. The construction in progress comprises mainly
the main and auxiliary mine shafts and underground tunnels in the
course of construction and machinery under installation.

Depreciation are provided to write off the cost of the mining
structures using the units of production method based on the actual
production volume over the total proven and probable reserves of
the coal mine concerned. The mining structures have estimated
remaining useful lives of 20 to 43 years (2022: 21 to 43 years) based
on the proven and probable reserves of the coal mine concerned.

The legal titles of the buildings, with aggregate carrying value of
RMB209,499,000 (2022: RMB205,895,000) as at 31 December 2023,
have not been granted by the relevant government authorities and
the relevant titles are still under application. In the opinion of the
management of the Group, taking into account of the PRC lawyer’s
legal opinion, all the risks and rewards of ownership of the buildings
have been transferred to the Group.

A MR M E(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B %2023F12A81 B ILFE

14. Y% - BENKRZRE @

Kt R EtRER - LAYE - BE
RETEE (R TIE RIREBEY R
SN ABBROEIRA T FRITE -

BF 3.33% =5%

s 6.7%Z=20%

WAREFHRE 10%E20%

T ) =8 8 10%Z20%

HELH fhErAIE A B R
THnERE

HEmE st Al fE A B R
A REE

HE PR HEE(B405 =
504 )8 T L b AR

v

ZERFRRPEEE L

p=Ill

RIEBEY BRI HE, R TE
BoHERETRIBEGEEEITHOIEH
B N3t TR B IA M e R eyt -

REBERENFE K ARERE
EREENLEEEMENIENER
# - DAMSHERIBRE SRR - 1218
FHERBRNBERREEFTE - &
BT P FE A FHR20E 435
(20224F : 21F434F) »

M2023F12A31H - REBEAA
R #209,499,0007T (20224 : AR
205,895,0007T ) K& F AR SR M AR
R BTHEI A - MBI
FEHRFEP - &t TP BEEMAEEE
R-FEEEBERE BFHhAE
WETEER K EHE SR EAEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMEwAME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE2023F12A31H IFFE

14. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

The Group as lessee

Right-of-use assets (included in the property, plant and equipment)

As at 31 December 2023

Carrying amount

As at 31 December 2022

Carrying amount

For the year ended

31 December 2023
Depreciation charge
Capitalised in inventories

For the year ended

31 December 2022
Depreciation charge
Capitalised in inventories

Total cash outflow for leases
Additions to right-of-use assets

72023%F12H831H
BRE(E

72022%12H31H
BREE

B ZE2023F12A31H
IHEE

WEER

FEARL

B £2022F12A31H
IHEE

TEER

FEERE

HER SR
EREEERE

14. Y% - BMERZRE @
REBERFEA
BRREEHAYE  BERSE)

Leasehold Leased

land properties Total
HELT HEWEE 5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARETFT ARBFIT
36,953 1,276 38,229
36,893 2,551 39,444
826 1,275 2,101
(826) - (826)

- 1,275 1,275

817 1,275 2,092
(817) - 817)

- 1,275 1,275

2023 2022

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBFIT

1,313 1,313

886 -




Annual Report 2023 £ £ 1 59

14.

15.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

The Group as lessee (continued)

Right-of-use assets (included in the property, plant and equipment)
(continued)

For both years, the Group leases various offices for its operations.
Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of three years
(2022: three years). Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
In determining the lease term and assessing the length of the non-
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a contract and
determines the period for which the contract is enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns several buildings. The Group is the
registered owner of these property interests, including the underlying
leasehold lands. Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire
these property interests. The leasehold land components of these
owned properties are presented separately only if the payments
made can be allocated reliably.

Investment Properties

The Group leases out office premises under operating leases with
rentals payable monthly. The leases typically run for an initial period
of 3 years (2022: 3 years), with unilateral rights to extend the lease
beyond initial period held by lessees only.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of the
lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in the respective
functional currencies of group entities. The lease contracts do not
contain residual value guarantee and/or lessee’s option to purchase
the property at the end of lease term.

NS
7202291 A1H

FAIR VALUE
At 1 January 2022
Fair value changes recognised to profit or loss

At 31 December 2022

Fair value changes recognised to profit or loss JiNei=End

At 31 December 2023

12022412 A31H
RO AT EEZE)

$2023F12F31H

14.

15.

REOATFELD

A MR M E(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B %2023F12A81 B ILFE

Y E Y S L1 )
AEBIEAABA (HE)
EAEEE (GIAYE - BERLE)
(##)

RRETE  AEEREESHEBZ
BRAE - FFEIZAEAHNNE TR
H A= 4F (20224F : =4F) - AAE
FIRERBERAERETE  UHESE
TRME SR R AG M o PAEE & TR R AT
TR S HAR A HABR B - AR E R
AHMTERILETE SN AGIBITA
HARS o

N AEBERETRT - AKH
RRENEER(BREEREELT)
MEBREAA  CHRKREZEMERE
BIEM—RERNK - ZEBBYEDN
HELWE D EECDIEL MREER 5
DENERTBILESY -

REY=

AREBBESCLHSEARAETME
YEHEAKBAE - ZEHE—RVF
ABE=F(2022F : =F) - EAHEA
BHEEFEBHABTEEVIRTELE

HAMAEEHNEEERE BN
EEEE  BAKBYAREBRHEHE
RHFTEHMSNERKR - HEA OB
TEERGEEERE SAEAR
HHERREEA MY EREE -

Owned
properties
BEWE
RMB’000
ARBFT

51,600
(100)

51,500
(4,300)

47,200
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
iR ISR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F12 A1 B IEFE

15.

Investment Properties (continued)

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted for
as investment properties. All changes in fair value are recognised
through profit or loss.

The fair value of investment properties as at 31 December 2023
and 2022 have been arrived at on the basis of valuation carried out
by Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory Limited, independent qualified
professional valuer not related to the Group.

The fair value of investment properties was determined based on
the direct comparison approach assuming sale of each of these
properties in existing state and by making reference to comparable
sales transactions as available in the relevant market and adjusted
for differences in the location and condition. There has been no
change on the valuation technique used during the year ended 31
December 2023.

In estimating the fair value of the investment properties, the highest
and best use of the properties is their current use. At the end of
the reporting period, the management of the Group works closely
with the independent qualified professional valuer to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs into the model. Where
there is a material change in the fair value of the assets, the causes
of the fluctuations will be reported to the management of the Group.

15.

REVZE @)
AREERBELHEFEURNAS
SEERILERNEMEREERA R
FEERFE  TOBERARBRE
ME - IB A TFEEHTRIBET E
720234 202212 A31H  {&EY
FE NV (ED iR i B & E 0 A B A
B A BB LA LIRS
BIAARAREITHEERE -

BREMFLNTFEERBEEZELEER
BURBREHESEZEWERE
B2 E MR T 5 A S 8 R B LR
ERGETE UHMNERKIAHER
FLAFHE - HE2023F12A31 A ILF
B FTRAS A ER e -

REEHR B E R TER - MERK
REREaREERSE - NEREH
R AEHEEERBIABEREE
HEMBEEAIE  URIEERY
HEDERBARE - WEEATE
BHEBEREY  KBERBEAAEE
EEERS -
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15.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
RE MRS R M ()

Investment Properties (continued)
Information about fair value measurements using

significant unobservable input

The following table shows the valuation techniques used in
the determination of fair values for investment properties and

unobservable inputs used in the valuation models.

Level 3  Direct comparison approach

Fair value
Date of valuation Fair value hierarchy
fHERH AYE ATEER
RMB’000
ARETT
31 December 2023 47,200 Level 3
2023F12A31H 47,200 E=&
31 December 2022 51,500
2022F12A31H 51,500 E=

The carrying amount of the Group’s investment properties is a level
3 fair value measurement. There were no transfers into or out of level
3 fair value measurement during both years.

The owned properties are stated in the PRC.

Valuation techniques

fhERHN

Direct comparison approach

ERUEE

ERIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B %2023F12A81 B ILFE

15. REWHE @)
BRERBAE AR B RE AR
ET A EFENER
TRBI AR T E YL DTG
B R T T A A 2 B PR RO R AT
228 A BUE o

Unobservable
inputs

FUBRGABE

(i)  Discounting
factors on
location and
condition

) AERAMRE
BRZ

(i) Adjusted
transaction
price

i) EAERS
B

()  Discounting
factors on
location and
condition

i) A RAMREE
BRZ

(i) Adjusted
transaction
price

i) EHRAERS
B

Range of
significant inputs

EXBARBEE

Discounting factors
ranging from 2%
t027%

BERENT
2%%27%

RMB2,687-
RMB73,000
per square meter

BEHRARK
2,687 LEARE
73,0007T

Discounting factors
ranging from 2%
to 40%

RARRNT
2%%40%

RMB3,160-
RMB6,354 per
square meter

FEHKARY
3,16070%
AERH6,3547

Relationship of
inputs to fair value
BABBH
NHEMER

The lower the
discounting
factor, the higher
the fair value

BERRZWE - A
ATESS

The higher the
adjusted
transaction price,
the higher the fair
value
LIS
ATEES

The lower the
discounting
factor, the higher
the fair value

HRAZWIE - 8
ATEEE

The higher the
adjusted
transaction price,
the higher the fair
value

THER S
EREE -
ATEES

AEBRANEOEAEERE=RA
FEHE - RAESE - EEBAL
W= RATENE -

BEMEMRPHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
iR ISR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023

The mining rights represent the rights for the mining of coal reserves
located in Hongguo Town and Yangchang Village, Panzhou County,
Guizhou Province, the PRC. The mining rights have average
remaining legal lives of 16 years (2022: 17 years) but in the opinion
of the management of the Group, the Group will be able to renew
the mining rights and business licences without incurring significant
costs.

Amortisation are provided to write off the cost of the mining rights
using the units of production method based on the actual production
volume over the total proven and probable reserves of the coal mine
concerned.

The Group has pledged mining right with carrying amounts of
RMB99,960,000 (2022: RMB53,313,000) to secure bank and other
borrowings granted to the Group.

BZE2023F12A31H L FE
16. Mining Rights 16. BRIEHE
RMB’000
ARBF T
COST BRAR
At 1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 202241 B1H K%2022F12 A31H 985,327
Addition RE 40,500
At 31 December 2023 20234124318 1,025,827
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION B
At 1 January 2022 202241 A18 119,136
Charge to profit or loss EEEEREAITS 37,324
At 31 December 2022 #R2022F12831H 156,460
Charge to profit or loss BiE&= kR 40,589
At 31 December 2023 20234124318 197,049
CARRYING AMOUNTS BREE
At 31 December 2023 2023412 A318 828,778
At 31 December 2022 7202212 A31H 828,867

BRUE RS B ER AL 1 P B & M A B
S RARFSBOERFEENE
A o RIBEFHH AT FRAB166F
(20224 : 17%) - BASEEEREER
B REE RS IG ERTEAE K AT
A EEMBBEEEAKA

RAEBRBENEE MR AFERE
BERESENEES(DATIREE - U
S5 RABREHOPKAS ©

AEED G EREE A R %99,960,000
T2 FEERE(2022F ¢ AR
53,313,00070) I LAMEA R FTAER
SR1T R ELAD S SRAOHELR o



Annual Report 2023 £ £

163

17.

18.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

A MR M E(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE2023F12A31H IFEFE

Investment in a Debt Instrument 17. EBRIEARE
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREET T

Investment in a debt instrument (Note) BT EEE (M) 36,248 -
36,248 -
Note: The debt instrument was acquired from an independent third iz : BEBEIADNE—EBIAFE=HE

party. The credit risk is assessed as minimal. Subsequent to end of
reporting period, the investment was disposed of to an independent
third party at the carrying amount with no material profit or loss.

Interest in an Associate

A e SERBRTEREE - 1R
SHREK - ZRECKERELS
FEHBYE=T  WEEASEA

Bzs o

il

18. REEARMER

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT

Unlisted investments: REMIRE :
Cost of investment in an associate FREEE R B IR E R 98,048 =
Share of post-acquisition losses and FEMEU SR B IE R M2 ERAE
other comprehensive expenses (3,037) -
95,011 -
Particulars of the associate as at 31 December 2023 is as follows: 1K2023F12 A31 HA A B EMFIBN
™
Place of
establishment/ Percentage of ownership
principal place interest and voting rights
Name of company of business held by the Group Principal activities
BB FEERENRER
NGRS FTEEBIE R FRREELL FEXEK
2023 2022
% %
China Power Construction Panzhou Low Mainland China 49% N/A  Power generation, power plant
Calorific Value Coal Power Generation Co., HEA TiE A under construction as at 31

Ltd
PERBMNEREREEERAF

December 2023
BE - P2023F12A31HER
KB E R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR B TSI A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
EZ20235F12A81 B ILFE

18. Interest in an Associate (continued) 18. REEZE N RIMRER (@)

AEEYEE T ERBMNERER S
BERAR ([HMEEE )49%HPT
BreRE MREE - ZEEANEE
W R SR SRR AR SN HEW
RS - AAREERRAEE

EHRMBEEREATEN I&t
HRD B AREE N E)

Note: The Group has 49% ownership interest and voting right in China P%E -

Power Construction Panzhou Low Calorific Value Coal Power
Generation Co., Ltd (“Panzhou Power Generation”). By considering
that the Group has no sufficiently voting right to direct the relevant
activities of Panzhou Power Generation, the directors of the Company
conclude that the Group only has significant influence over Panzhou
Power Generation and therefore it is classified as an associate of the
Group.

Summarised financial information of the associate as follows: BEE N B 2 AR ET -

31 December

2023
20235
12A31H
RMB’000
ARETFT
Current assets mBNEE 31,490
Non-current assets FEMBNEE 344,671
Current liabilities mEAE 190,622
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 80
Total comprehensive expenses for the year FAEEAZ LR (6,199)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial LB E R Z B AR A B IS IR R 2
information to the carrying amount of the interest i N Rl AR B B8R
in the associate recognised in the consolidated
financial statements:
Net assets of Panzhou Power Generation BINEENEETE 185,459
Proportion of the Group's ownership interest REE TR R RGN EBHLLG
Panzhou Power Generation 49%
The Group's share of net assets of Panzhou Power N5 @[ {5 82 )N 2 B 00 B B FE
Generation 90,875
Goodwill [EES 4,136
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in Panzhou — ZR&EE AN 3 EREFHREE
Power Generation 95,011
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19.

20.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

A MR M E(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B %2023F12A81 B ILFE
Restricted Bank Deposits 19. ZRFVBITER
The restricted bank deposits are amounts held in a bank under the PR SR 1717 IR 58 P B AR B U
requirement of the relevant government authority of the PRC in BERATERRBRENRITFENS
respect of environmental rehabilitation. The amounts will be released o 2HEZHBERLULNRFIRET
at the cessation of mining activities or closure of mines if and only EREBURESR - BIZZ BN
if the environmental rehabilitation work of the relevant mines meets IR ERTEE Bh sl B PR LU B AR RR © %
government’s requirements. Such deposits are classified as non- EEFEOBRIERDEE - XR
current assets. The restricted bank deposits carried interest at Hl R T SRIRIBIT 5 E M F0.20E
prevailing market rate of 0.20% (2022: 0.25%) per annum. (20224 : 0.25F) °
Details of impairment assessment for the year ended 31 December BHEAEE20234F 2022F12 A31H 1
2023 and 2022 are set out in note 38. FREBER AFIEETIN M8 -
Deferred Tax 20. RIEBIIE
The following are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised AT RRAREE KRBT RERHEAS
by the Group and the movement thereon, during the current year EEANFEREHEEE(AE) R
and prior reporting period. H#g) o
Fair value
adjustment on
Accelerated  property, plant
tax  and equipment,
depreciation leasehold  Adjustment on Undistributed Revaluation
and land and acquisition of profits of of investment
amortisation mining rights mining right subsidiaries properties Total
% BER
R HELH
MERERE  URFEEN WEEFER RABH
Rk ATERE fRZ  WELREN  RENEEGR @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
(Note ) (Note (i)
(Pzr()) (P i)
At1 January 2022 o001 A1 (35,776) 30,369 - 0477) (1.927) (16811)
Credit (charge) to profit orloss 8%t A (1) 2,704 (266) 45,000 (18,540) 2% 28,923
At 31 December 2022 2022123318 (33,072) 30,103 45,000 (28,017) (1,902) 12,112
Credit (charge) to profitor loss ~ AEZE A (1) 7,992 (266) (1,874) 12,966 645 19,463
At 31 December 2023 0023512331 8 (25,080) 20837 13126 (15,051) (1.25) 31,575
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR B TSI A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
EZ20235F12A81 B ILFE

20. Deferred Tax (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

The temporary difference from the fair value adjustment on property,
plant and equipment, leasehold land and mining rights are mainly
arisen from acquisition in 2016 that these assets were transferred
to Jiutai Bangda with reference to their fair values estimated by an
independent qualified professional valuer not related to the Group.
Such fair value adjustments result in an increase in tax bases of Jiutai
Bangda. For the preparation of the consolidated financial statements,
the Group did not recognise such fair value adjustments as these
assets are measured at cost model. Thus, a deductible temporary
difference is arisen from the difference between the carrying amount
of these assets and their tax bases.

The temporary difference from adjustment on acquisition of mining
right is mainly arising from finalisation of contingent consideration
of acquisition of mining right. Such contingent consideration results
in an increase in tax base of the mining right. For the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements, subsequent measurement of
contingent consideration was recognised in profit or loss. As a result,
the deductible temporary difference is arisen from the difference
between the carrying amount of the mining right and its tax base.

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of

financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have

been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances

for financial reporting purposes:

Deferred tax assets BETHIEEE

Deferred tax liabilities

20. RIEFRIE (&)

GEX

(i)

(ii)

W - BEREE - HELHIAR
REENATERREREEEE
EM2016FHESEIAESL - M
ZERERDE RN EY E R
B A AR B EMEMGZE
BAENNFEREETARIE -
BN TEABEHAREND
EIEI o WAR B A SRR -
HRZEBEERRARAGE - &
REEW EERBAAFEFE
At - AINHEREEREZEE
ERRREESEEGEZ MMEHE -

R R My R B A T 5| B R =
£ I ERHNREREYERE
BZHARBMES - AAKAK
BEBREE 2 AL - PR3
REMTBMRE - IRREBZHER
FTEERERTER o B - BRH
BERTMNREERISFEER
BEZ RMERMEL -

ARERAMBRAKRNEIME © &
TEERAEEENBBEDERE - A
TREAEMBRE BN IETEHIRE
RO

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBT T
46,626 40,129
(15,051) (28,017)
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20.

21.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Deferred Tax (continued)

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiary
from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been
provided for in these consolidated financial statements in respect
of temporary differences attributable to certain retained profits
of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to RMB2,042,812,000 (2022:
RMB1,777,456,000) as at 31 December 2023, as the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future. As at 31 December 2023, a deferred tax liability
of RMB15,051,000 (2022: RMB28,017,000) has been recognised in
respect of undistributed profits of subsidiaries in the PRC amounting
to RMB150,510,000 (2022: RMB280,170,000).

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost of inventories are determined on the weighted average cost
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale. Costs necessary to make the sale
include incremental costs directly attributable to the sale and non-
incremental costs which the Group must incur to make the sale.

BRI EE fh
R S A

Coal products
Auxiliary materials and spare parts

20.

21.

A MR M E(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B %2023F12A81 B ILFE

AR FE R TH ()
REREMEMESRE © 52008451
A18# - KB B2 E T BE
EAEIROREFMNTEND - GRE
BRERI AFMN20235F12 A31 A
M ElE TARR M A S| A E s =
%8 A R #2,042,812,0007T (20224 :
AR #1,777,456,0007T ) £ H R FE T
HEE - BIRASE R i s ey
TR MUREEATETE
RA]TE R REE - 72023512 A 31
B ANEBEFFBEKBRRRD RS
A R¥150,510,0007T (20224 = A
R %280,170,0007T ) FERIE LR IH B
& AR #15,051,0007T (20224 : A
[R#28,017,0007T) °

&
FETRR AR ER] B HE 2 RKE
SRR o FERRA TR I F AR AE
BE - A#RFEEFENMGE
{BRLFT A ff AT TTROAR AR B 88 &5 P 7R A
Ko EITHEMBTRABREIEERR
FEIGHIEER AR AEBE RETHE
MBAEERIFBERA

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREET T
17,270 11,841
40,564 37,603
57,834 49,444
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMEwAME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2023
EZ20235F12A81 B ILFE

22. Trade and Bills Receivables

Trade receivables
Bills receivables

Total

B 5 RUR
e

As at 1 January 2022, trade receivables from contracts with

customers amounted to RMB137,042,000.

The Group allows credit period of 0-30 days to its trade customers.

All bills receivables are matured within one year (2022: within one

year). The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables, net of

allowance for credit losses, presented based on the invoice date at

the end of each reporting period. For customers who used bank bills

to settle their trade receivables upon the expiry of the initial credit

period, the ageing analysis of bills receivables at the end of the

reporting period was based on the date of the Group’s receipt of the

bills from the customers.

22. BEEWHIENEKREE

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T ARBTT
348,479 272,625
440,524 598,925
789,003 871,550

R2022F1 A1H » BREAHFTELRN
B 5 fE WA & A R 137,042,000
ﬁ: o

REEGETHESEFPHEEHRIE
308 - FTARKEERHAN —FREH
(20226 : —FA) - L TTARSWE
HARBERZAHHEYE S EKZE
HBREEBEBEREEORRD T - 3t
FRRITEBREEVREERRED
BORBHRENTFME @ RE®RE
HREWREENRRDIMIZRANEER
BRPWEER B HTHE -
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22.

Trade and Bills Receivables (continued)

Trade receivables
0-30 days
31-90 days
91-180 days

The following is an analysis of bills
receivables, net of allowance for credit
losses, presented based on number of
days to bills maturity from the end of
each reporting period:

Bills receivables
0-30 days
31-60 days
61-90 days
91-120 days
121-180 days
181-365 days

Total

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R BTSRRI A ()

B 5 EWRIA
0%30H
31ZE90H
91%180H

AT AR REPRREREE
FHBENRBEINERRIE
R EEBIRREBROIN

PR RIR
0Z30H
31£260H
61%90H
91%£120H
121£180H
181%365H

22.

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B %2023F12A81 B ILFE

B 5 RIGRE R ERRE

&)

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
260,155 164,582
66,615 81,198
21,709 26,845
348,479 272,625
25,584 86,600
37,000 83,651
82,700 120,509
20,500 59,828
274,740 110,100

- 138,237

440,524 598,925
789,003 871,550
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
iR ISR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE

22.

202312 A1 B ILFE

Trade and Bills Receivables (continued)

Before accepting any new customer, the Group will assess the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines its credit limits. Credit
sales are made to customers with a satisfactory trustworthy credit
history. Credit limits attributed to customers are reviewed regularly.
Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired have good
settlement records.

As at 31 December 2023, included in the Group’s trade receivables
balance are debtors with aggregate carrying balance of
RMB88,324,000 (2022: RMB108,043,000) which are past due as at
the report date. As at 31 December 2023, out of the past due date
balances, RMB12,568,000 has been past due 90 days or more and is
not considered as in default since the management of the Group are
of the opinion that the balances are still considered recoverable due
to the management’s historical experience. None of the balance as
at 31 December 2022 is past due 90 days or more.

The Group applies simplified approach to provide for ECL prescribed
by HKFRS 9. To measure the ECL of trade and bills receivables,
trade and bills receivables have been assessed individually. Taking
into account the financial condition of the customers and historical
settlement pattern with no history of default in the past and the
forward-looking information (such as future coal price and gross
domestic product growth (“GDP”) in the PRC), the management of
the Group considers the trade and bills receivables are at lower risk
under internal credit rating assessment and the probability of default
of the counterparties was low. The Group applied ECL rate of 0.1%
(2022: 0.1%) on trade and bills receivables. Thus, the loss allowance
provision of the trade and bills receivables as at 31 December 2023
and 2022 was insignificant. There were no credit-impaired trade
and bills receivables as at 31 December 2023 and 2022. In this
regard, the management of the Group considers that the credit risks
on trade and bills receivables are significantly reduced. The gross
carrying amount of trade and bills receivables as at 31 December
2023 was RMB789,003,000 (2022: RMB871,550,000).

Details of impairment assessment for the year ended 31 December
2023 and 2022 are set out in note 38.

22.

BZEWE
(%)
REMRERMH TS 2H - AEEKE
AEEEEPNEEERYRELERE
ER#E - AASTAMBENAEREERT
BOEFPAERERE - RTEPHN
EERBAEHNER - BEAH IR
EHE 5 RKIRAR RIFEER
4% o

AN BN RE

M2023F 12 A31H » st ARNEEE
SREWRELEHNEAAHRBREA
[R#88,324,0007T (20224 : AR
108,043,000t ) Z FEUBR K - Ty R
< A HARFE EY o 722023F 12 A318 -
mHERE TR - ARM12,568,0007T
Eﬁ%%aiut HERARAERE
BERA  HREEEBERAELR %
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HREEREERA0.1% (20224
0.1%)MEHEEBEE - At * N
20234 K 2022412 F31H - B5JE
Wk B R W E B R BB R g T E
A o R20234 2022412 A31H -
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ZE Bt AEEEEERA
U FIB K EREENEERR Ejz
1B FE{K - R2023F12A31H 5
FEURERENZENREAEAA
R #789,003,0007T (20224 : AR
871,550,007T) °
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22.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Trade and Bills Receivables (continued)

Transfers of financial assets

The followings were the bills receivables as at 31 December
2023 and 2022 that were transferred to banks by discounting
bills receivables on a full recourse basis. As the Group has not
transferred the significant risks and rewards relating to these bills
receivables, it continues to recognise the full carrying amount of
the bills receivables and has recognised the cash received on the
transfer as secured bank borrowings (see note 29).

These financial assets and financial liabilities are carried at amortised
cost in consolidated statement of financial position.

EEREEREE
BRI A ERRmEE (P RE)

Carrying amount of transferred assets
Carrying amount of associated liabilities
(Note)

Note: At 31 December 2023, the amount of RMB241,784,000 (2022:
RMB434,972,000) represents bank and other borrowings arising
from discounting bills receivables with resource as the Group has
not transferred the significant risks and rewards relating to these bills

receivables.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, bills receivables of
RMB509,558,000 (2022: RMB644,698,000) were discounted
with recourse have been presented as “New borrowings from
factoring of bills receivables” in consolidated statement of cash
flows. Corresponding borrowings of RMB434,972,000 (2022:
RMB384,263,000) were discharged without cash outflows upon bills
matured with full settlement by original issuers.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, other borrowings of
RMB323,358,000 (2022: nil) raised through pledge of bills receivables
have been included in “Bank and other borrowings raised” in the
consolidated statement of cash flows. Corresponding borrowings of
RMB267,774,000 (2022: nil) were discharged without cash outflows
upon bills matured with full settlement by original issuers.

22.

A MR M E(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B %2023F12A81 B ILFE

B RIRREREWREE
(#&)

EESMEE

M20234F 2202212 A31H - AT
B R EIZ 2 B R EAED BRI I
ERAFAEETIRT - ARAEEL
BERHZEZERKEREANE AR
fp Rl - MAEERRZSEWE
BRI EEREE - W5 =TI
IR SR AAEMRITER(RME
29) °

ZETRMEENERAGBREE MK
AR IBZHE AR AT B o

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
241,784 435,913
(241,784) (434,972)

MisE: M2023F12A31H @+ AR
241,784,0007T (2022 F : AR¥E
434,972,0007T) BEH ABER
R RERNEREENRITREME
o RRAAEEVESEEZSE
EREEERNERNRR RER

HZE2023F12A31AEFE - A
BFERRENEUMERKEEAR
509,558,000 7T (2022 F = AR
¥ 644,698,000 ) B M fir & R &
MEERRNEIN A ZHEEWER
REFER] - HEBRARE
434,972,0007T (20224 : AR¥E
384,263,0007T ) A =I5 E|HR1& I A
REIT AR FRRER - WER
SR o

HE2023F12A31HILEE - &
BERKEEERSEEMHHAMMER
A B 323,358,000 7T, ( 2022 4F -
BB ARABSRERANNIR
TREMER] - HEBRARE
267,774,000 (20224 : )R E
BEHEBITHEREREITADBEE SR
7k - WEBESRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR B TSI A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
EZ20235F12A81 B ILFE

23. Deposits, Prepayments and Other Receivables  23. %% - FA{IFIE R HAnfE

WFRIE
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT
Deposits to suppliers of purchasing BEEWH BN HENES
auxiliary materials and spare parts 2,539 13,280
Government grant receivables JE LSBT 48 B 1,470 1,470
Other receivables, prepayments and Hib EWRIE - B RIERIES
deposits 24,352 13,452
Deposits for purchase of property, plant BEYXE  BERRENES
and equipment 4,348 2,819
Deposits for acquisition of mining rights U BB ER TR A3 & (BT RE())
(Note (i) 90,566 90,566
Other receivables due to disposal of REEYEREREELRN
property and equipment HAtb fEUGRIA 14,806 =
Rental deposits Heke 432 426
Finance lease receivable (Note (ii)) © FAE & WoskaE (B (i) 12,120 =
150,633 122,013
Classified as: DR
Non-current ERB 104,646 93,811
Current e 45,987 28,202
150,633 122,013
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23.

24,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Deposits, Prepayments and Other Receivables
(continued)

Details of impairment assessment for the year ended 31 December
2023 and 2022 are set out in note 38.

Notes:

(i) On 9 December 2020 and on 24 May 2021 respectively, Jiutai
Bangda, an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a closure quota transfer agreement in respect of the
production quota of Guizhou Chinalco Hengtaihe Mining Co.,
Ltd. Shuicheng County Panlong Township Panlong Coal Mine
(BEMFEEREREEER A RIKNRIE RN EREKE) (“Panlong Coal
Mine”) with Guizhou Ruomuzi Investment and Development Co., Ltd
(“Ruomuzi”), independent third party to the Group, at a total cash
consideration of RMB96,000,000 (value-added tax inclusive), which is
fully paid in prior years.

The deposits are not refundable and the transfers of related mining
right certificates are subject to final approval by the relevant
government authorities as at 31 December 2023. Management of the
Company expects the final approval will be granted in 2024.

(ii) The amount represents financial lease receivables of RMB12,120,000
as proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment with net
book value of RMB21,845,000. Of total financial lease receivables,
receivables of RMB9,300,000 is scheduled after one year from 31
December 2023 and presented as a non-current asset.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held and short term bank
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less. As at 31
December 2023, the bank balances carried interest at prevailing
market rate of 0.20% (2022: 0.0% to 0.25%) per annum.

Details of impairment assessment for the year ended 31 December
2023 and 2022 are set out in note 38.

23.

24.

A MR M E(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B %2023F12A81 B ILFE

ZE -  EAREREME
I‘I&/T)\IE (#)
HZE2023F % 2022612 A31HILFE
BB (B ST SIS A 338 -

it

(i) 72020412 A9 A ) 202145 524
A ARAEEZ2EWNBRATA
RREMRAEEBIE = FEMNE
ARFEERBEERET AR (EAR
FREMNFIBERAEEERD
A) 7K I 55 5 e 40 0 BE SR TR ([ 4 AE
BAE ) M EEIRIRE] L BB IR IR
HEGdE o BESREAARE
96,000,0007C(&EER) + ERBE
HFEERHIN -

M2023F12A318 » & AT
RIE - BAERBEEE AR
BB SR BER - F{ERE -
QR E IR B TE A 18 2024 G 8
1SERIRBLE -

(ii) ZeBELHEREFEAARE
21,845000 T ¥ ¥ - B E &
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¥ 12,120,000 T ©+ HF AR
9,300,000 7T 9 FE Y2 5k H 1% 7 B
2023F12 A31 Bzt —FE R W@
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RERRAESZEY
RekBeSENEEMEERERK
REHE A=A AN EERTT
TE5k o 1202312 A31 1 » B174
RIRITI5F I 50.20/E (20224F :
0.0EZ=0.25E )t -

AREE2023F K% 202212 5318 1+
FERENEOFIBET R FESS



174 Perennial Energy Holdings Limited X F 3B Z 8RR AR A H ) L.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR B TSI A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
EZ20235F12A81 B ILFE

25. Trade Payables 25. ESEIFIR
2023 2022
RMB'000 RMB’000

Trade payables 2 SN FRIE

As at 31 December 2023, included in trade payables are
RMB2,717,000 due to Guizhou Yue Bang Integrated Energy Limited
Liability Company (“Guizhou Yue Bang”), an entity was owned to
48% by Guizhou Bangda.

As at 31 December 2022, included in trade payables are
RMB1,390,000, RMB190,000 and RMB1,452,000 due to Guizhou
Bangda, Panzhou Hongda Integrated Energy Co., Ltd. (“Panzhou
Hongda”) and Guizhou Yue Bang, respectively. Panzhou Hongda is
an associate of Guizhou Yue Bang.

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90 days. The
following is an ageing analysis of trade payables presented based
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

0-30 days 0£230H
31-60 days 31260H
61-180 days 612180H
181-365 days 1812365H
Over 365 days BiA365H

ARETT AREET T

139,422 109,304

202312 A31H * ESEMAFIER
FEENENEHGAERBRELA
AI(TEMEF] - BEMNFEHEEI8%
M EEE) M ARE2,717,0007T °

M2022F 12 A31H - EHREMNFIEER
FEoRIEMAEMNFE - BINTAER
BEERBR AR ([BMAE]) REM
BHr AR%A1,390,0000T © AREE
190,0007T & A £ #£1,452,0007T °
MAERE MBI 2 HE QT o

BEERNTHEREHROA - N&
REHPRREZAHZINE HEN

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT

15,350 24,669
27,473 31,607
52,282 30,224
26,516 11,012
17,801 11,792

139,422 109,304
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26.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Other Payables and Accrued Charges 26.
Payables for acquisition of property, B - RS I st FE T 3R
plant and equipment
Staff costs payable JERTE TR
Other tax payables H e HiE
Transportation cost payable JERHBHK A
Payables for acquisition of mining rights WS ERAEHE & (< 7108
Government grants received in TEUR R A D (BT &%)
advance (Note)
Accrued repair and maintenance fee EETHIERREER
Other payables and accrued charges H b e RIE R EET B A
Classified as: DER
Current i
Non-current FEME

Note: As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, government grants received
in advance represent grants received with unfulfilled conditions on
meeting production volume target of coal products.

A MR M E(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B %2023F12A81 B ILFE

Htt R RIR R BT EH

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT

177,969 93,986
47,481 39,257
42,656 30,150
33,882 5,934
23,019 10,635
17,192 23,654

1,315 1,373
10,176 7,402

353,690 212,391

334,054 212,391
19,636 -

353,690 212,391

Mi3E : 20234 K%2022412 4310 « B
B BNE MR EE R ESE BIZ
O I B 2 URER B0 4 B ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR B TSI A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023

EZ20235F12A81 B ILFE
27. Contract Liabilities 27. EHAEE
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBFIT
Contract liabilities — current SHEE-RE
Sales of coal products HREmEE = 1,639
As at 1 January 2022, contract liabilities amounted to RMB9,197,000. M20226F1H18 - 6HAEBEAARKE
For the contract liabilities as at 31 December 2022 of RMB1,639,000 9,197,0007T ° FL& £20224 12 A 31
the entire balances are recognised as revenue during the year ended AItFE 2588 EARK1,639,000
31 December 2023. TT - REPEATED NEIE 2023512 A 31
HIEFERRAMNE
The Group sells coal products to customers. Payment received REBEREFFHEERKER - BER
in advance that are related to the sales of coal products not yet RIS TFEFPHEREDHEE R BENE
delivered to customers are deferred and recognised as contract WHRIBARE SN ERAENEE -
liabilities. Revenue is recognised when coal products are delivered WA IR E MR TR RER

to customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R BTSRRI A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE2023F12A31H IFEFE
28. Lease Liabilities 28. HEARE
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
202345 R20224F
12A31H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBTT

Lease liabilities payable: JERTEERRIE
Within one year —FR 1,299 1,275
Within a period of more than one year but A —F A HE R ZAMEIEA
not more than two years - 1,299

1,299 2,574
Less: amount due for settlement within 12 & : 12188 N&&EE K&
months shown under current liabilities (B BREIEE) (1,299) (1,275)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 1218 B2 &&E R (F A3EREN B &)
shown under non-current liabilities = 1,299
Carrying amounts of lease obligations are denominated in currencies HEAEROEASEERBNEER
other than the functional currencies of the group entity. AN EHEEHE -
The incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities is 1.8% HEEAEBEMERABEERMNES

(2022: 1.8%). 1.8%(20224F : 1.8%) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fRE IS ERERMTEE(4E)
For the year ended 31 December 2023
EZ20235F12A81 B ILFE
29. Bank and Other Borrowings 29. RITREMER
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT
Bank and other borrowings ER1T R E MK 672,070 351,000
Other bank borrowings from factoring of ~ {RIZAZHEEBREEKEZER
bills receivables with full recourse FTEE IR TE K 241,784 434,972
Total secured BHEA B 913,854 785,972
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETTT
The carrying amounts of the above EREFRZ REEZER N5IHR
borrowings are repayable*: EE:
Within one year —FLA 683,854 695,972
Within a period more than one year but —FLA MRS AT A
not exceeding two years 20,000 90,000
Within a period more than two years but ~ FRFLA_ERF LT HRE
not exceeding five years 210,000 -
913,854 785,972
Less: amounts due within one year shown & : —F AR Z|EIFIE -
under current liabilities HEREBE (683,854) (695,972)
Amount shown under non-current liabilities  FI{EFERE) & & 708 230,000 90,000
* The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out * N E SR RIRE R RS TEE K

in the loan agreements.

R BE -
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20.

30.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Bank and Other Borrowings (continued)

Secured bank borrowings carry fixed interest rate of 5.5% per
annum for both years. Secured other bank borrowings from factoring
of bills receivables with full recourse refers to discounting of bank
acceptance bills received from the customers of the Group with fixed
interest rate while the significant risks and rewards from the bills
receivables are substantially retained by the Group. The effective
interest rate of the secured other bank borrowings from factoring of
bills receivables with full recourse is approximately 1% to 2% (2022:
1% to 2%) per annum during the year ended 31 December 2023.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group settled other
payable of RMB74,000,000 through bank loans under supplier
finance arrangements.

Contingent Consideration Payables

On 4 November 2019, Jiutai Bangda, an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into sale and purchase
agreement with #2 & = 35 40 & &K 1 /& # #& (Panzhou County
Yangchang Village Xiejiahegou Coal Mine) and EMEEREBRE A
Al (Guizhou Dejia Investment Co., Ltd.) (collectively referred to as
the “Vendors”) pursuant to which, Jiutai Bangda has conditionally
agreed to purchase, and Vendors have conditionally agreed to sell
a target underground coal mine located in Panzhou City, Guizhou
Province (the “Target Mine”), together with assets related to the
Target Mine at a total consideration of RMB1,100,000,000 (the
“Acquisition”) with a profit guarantee arrangement. The Acquisition
was completed on 1 January 2020.

29.

30.

A MR M E(E)
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B %2023F12A81 B ILFE
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E2%) o

HZE2023F12A31HILFE » KEEH
RIBFHEEREZTHBRRITERS
EH b 3B A R #74,000,0007T ©

B ARE
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mAMREE o WiEEIEE 7202041 A1
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30.

Contingent Consideration Payables (continued)

In respect of the Acquisition, cash considerations of
RMB180,000,000 is agreed to be paid in each of the three years
ended 31 December 2023, totaling RMB540,000,000 (the “Remaining
Consideration”). In addition, Jiutai Bangda and the Vendors have
entered into a profit guarantee arrangement, pursuant to which
the Vendors guarantee to the Jiutai Bangda that each of the
audited net profit of the year ended 31 December 2020, 2021
and 2022 generated by the Target Mine shall not be less than
RMB150,000,000 (the “Benchmark Profit”). In the event where
any of the audited net profit of the year ended 31 December 2020,
2021 or 2022 is less than the Benchmark Profit, the Vendors shall
pay compensation(s) to Jiutai Bangda, subject to an overall cap of
RMB300,000,000. Likewise, in the event where any of the audited
profit of the year ended 31 December 2020, 2021 or 2022 generated
by the Target Mine is greater than the Benchmark Profit, Jiutai
Bangda shall pay bonus(es) to the Vendors, subject to an overall cap
of RMB300,000,000.

The contingent consideration payable is measured at fair value at 31
December 2022 based on the actual present value of the Remaining
Consideration adjusted by any excess or shortfalls between the
Benchmark Profit and the actual/or projected net profit generated by
the Target Mine using discounted cash flow method.

The contingent consideration payable is fully settled during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

#2022F1 A1H

sem py

&K

As at 1 January 2022

Repayment

Fair value change of contingent consideration
payable recognised in profit or loss

20224128318

yem =+
BN

As at 31 December 2022
Repayment

As at 31 December 2023 R2023F12F31H

30.
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31.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Provision for Restoration Costs

At the beginning of the year REH)
Additional provisions in the year FRFEINEE
Unwinding of discount BRIR R

At the end of the year RER

In accordance with the relevant PRC rules and regulations, if any
damage is caused to cultivated land, grassland or forest as a
result of exploration or mining activities, mining enterprises must
restore the land to a condition appropriate for use by reclamation,
re-planting trees or grasses or such other measures, as appropriate,
after the mining has been completed. The Group provides for the
present obligation of the costs of the restoration.

The provision for restoration costs has been determined by
the management of the Group based on their estimates for the
restoration upon the closure of the mine sites.

A MR M E(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B %2023F12A81 B ILFE

31. EERAEE

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT

47,008 44,974
23,554 =

3,381 2,034
73,943 47,008

RIBHBEMERBRAFOER - WA
E 30 S AR R B R X PR R By T B 2
EARE - ARBEEENBRRIES
RIZBBHZE - SHEERAKELF
Sl H 038 & 18 b S 1 R = AT AR
B o REEFERKANBEREER
TR -

BERABRFEDHAREEREKRE
SRR K FHEROMGEHETE -
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EZ20235F12A81 B ILFE
32. Share Capital 32. AR
Details of the Company’s shares are disclosed as follows: RABRRNOFFIBREAT ¢

Number Equivalent
of shares Amount amount
RDEE L] HER
HK$’000 RMB’000

TR ARETTT

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each &ERE(E0.018TH) T iRAX

Authorised: ETE
At 1 January 2022, 7202251 A1H « 20225

31 December 2022 and 2023 K%2023%F12H31H 10,000,000,000 100,000 87,208

Issued and fully paid: BETRAE
At 1 January 2022, 7202241 A1 8 - 20224F
31 December 2022 and 2023 K%2023%F12H31H 1,600,000,000 16,000 14,136
33. Retirement Benefit Schemes 33. RIREFETE

The employees of the Group companies in the PRC are members REBHFHERAEEES BT BRATE
of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the EHRARERRKEBFFEINOKE -
local government. The Group is required to contribute a certain AEBARERKRENTEZEES ©
percentage of their payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to RARE—B D ETHR - URE
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to FREE S - AEEFLRKEFFE
the retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified contributions. M —EEAERFTRENEK -
The Group also participates in the MPF Scheme established under AEB 2 EBERGEATESFTE
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of GBI @B 2T 8 - e EHE
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group, in BEHRASEEESHBER  BHX
funds under the control of trustees. The Group contributes at the SABRGSINESEES c AEEZKEA
lower of HK$1,500 per month or 5% of the relevant payroll costs to 1,500 7T 548 B 5 & A AN 95 % (BARR
the MPF Scheme. K& BE)FRED A EIHR -
The contributions to the retirement benefit scheme of the Group REBPE E20234F K% 2022F12 A31
during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 are disclosed A IEFERRRE R ET B 5 BIR

in notes 6 and 10, respectively. FizE6 M 10% 5z -
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34.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Related Party Transactions
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions with its related

parties during the year:

Name of related companies

kNS

Guizhou Bangda
BN

Guizhou Yue Bang
SMNEH

Panzhou Hongda
BMATE

Nature of transactions
REME

Logistics service expense
Wim AR TS 38 %

Rental income

HE WA

Coal washing processing expense
PR RN TR sZ

Sale of electricity
=S

Sales of coalbed methane gas
WERER

Purchase of electricity

WE

Sales of coalbed methane gas
HWERER
Purchase of electricity

e

The above transactions were transacted at prices agreed between

the parties.

34.

A MR M E(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE2023F12A31H IFEFE
B RS

REAHBRESTREEN - RA
Tl AEBEEEBTAIATRS -

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT
4,153 3,515
1,101 1,101

- 1,552

- 11,000

3,869 3,345
7,310 4,216
1,230 1,475
6,967 8,477

LAz 5 LARE TS T M BAR ST ©
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34.

Related Party Transactions (continued)
Compensation of key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Group included 7 executive
directors of the Company (2022: 8 executive directors of the
Company). Details of whose emoluments are set out in note 6(a).
Other members of key management personnel included 6 employees
(2022: 6 employees) for the year ended 31 December 2023. The
remuneration of these 6 members (2022: 6 members) during the year

is as follows:

Short-term employee benefits EHREEET
Bonus TEAT
Post-employment benefits B2

Financial guarantees

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s bank borrowings of
RMB95,000,000 (2022: RMB351,000,000) are jointly guaranteed
by Mr. Yu Bangping and Guizhou Bangda; bank borrowings of
RMB250,000,000 (2022: nil) are jointly guaranteed by Mr. Yu
Bangping together with his wife and Guizhou Bangda; bank
borrowings of RMB283,694,000 are jointly guaranteed by Mr. Yu
Bangping together with his wife, Mr. Yu Bangcheng (the brother of
Mr. Yu Bangping) and Guizhou Bangda (2022: nil).

34.

B R 5 (&)
FHREEEAERHE
AEAHERTEABREARTL
ZITEE (20224 : AAF\AH
TER) - HENFHFBHRIW T
6(a) > 2 E2023F12A31A L& -
FREEABNEMBKEREARE
B (20225 : N&RE) - FA - &N~
Z Rk B (20224 : AR E) K% B0
™

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT
1,507 2,029

486 688

66 73

2,059 2,790

B ER

MN2023F12 A31H » KEEMIRTT
f& A K # 95,000,000 7T (2022 4F :
351,000,000 7T ) J5 H 7R FBF 5 4 &k
EMBEERER  RITERARE
250,000,0007T (20224 : Z) Jy@E &
BEFLECEREZT) REMIBEHL
FHER  RITEFRAR 283,694,000
TL(2022%F : T) AR FLE(E
REZETF)  RAKEECGRBFELEE
M) K& N FPE L RIER o
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35.

36.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Operating Leasing Arrangement
The Group as lessor

Minimum lease payments receivable on leases are as follows:

Within one year —FR

A MR M E(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE2023F12A31H IFEFE

35. KeEMHE
REEFERBHBA
PSR R BB EFORT ¢

Within a period of more than one year but A —% I HERZAMELRRE A

not more than two years

Leases are negotiated for lease term of three years.

Capital Commitments

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT

1,101 1,101
2,202 -
3,303 1,101

A AR = F BT LA o

36. EARIE

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT

Capital contribution to an associate (Note)  [A—MEEE A RLNEE (M) 416,500 =
Capital expenditure in respect of the B - BERBEHERTD
acquisition of property, plant and BRI E IS RTRATIRBENE
equipment contracted for but not N
provided in the consolidated
financial statements - 3,525
416,500 3,525

Note: Payments for committed capital injection in the associate of
RMB147,000,000, RMB147,000,000 and RMB122,500,000 are
scheduled on 31 March 2024, 30 June 2024 and 31 March 2025,
respectively.

GEE

RE S RAWMEAREIEA
K ¥ 147,000,000 ;T * A R
# 147,000,000 T & A B ¥
122,500,000 7T #& 7 5l 72 2024 F 3
A31H : 202446 A30H 2025
#3331 BN -
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37.

38.

Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return
to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt balance and
equity balance. Equity balance consists of equity attributable to
owners of the Group, comprising share capital and reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure on an
on-going annual basis. As part of this review, the management of
the Group considers the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
management of the Group, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, new capital injection as
well as the issue of new debt.

Financial Instruments
Categories of financial instruments

ERMEE

Financial assets
Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial liabilities Eal=l =R
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities at FVTPL

BfE

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and bills
receivables, deposits and other receivables, restricted bank
deposits, cash and cash equivalents, trade payables, other payables
and accrued charges, bank and other borrowings, lease liabilities
and contingent consideration payables. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below.

REHERATEZERMEE

REHKATTE 2 2 RBIE
BAVEFEREEIT ARG ISR

37.

38.

EXEREE

REEEHREER  UHERAEERE
WIFELE - RBEBELEER

HEEHATSEREFREAD
o MBS AR BB
BT o

AEENEARBRIEERERIE
mAER  BRARBAREEE AR
IEREERAER - BRI o

FEBERERBESFRAMERE
B ERZERNIN—#D » AEE
EREEEEARAREZREARN
R - RIBASEEIEENHERS
EFE o AEEBINABRE  EAFE
ARBEITHER - B FEELREE]
RIRHE -

TRITA

SRl T BAER
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBETT
971,478 1,094,474
1,299,637 1,014,606
- 395,186

TREREERBEREEK
FEENTESRTAREE ZRNK
FANEWRE - 2E REARERK
A XRGBITER  ReRREF
BY  BEZRMNR - EfENKIEA
REFER - RITREMER BE
BEANMENIARE - ZFERT
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T AR ER N f E#EZ SRR
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38.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to its
lease liabilities (note 28) and bank and other borrowings (note 29).
The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to its restricted bank deposits and bank balances (notes 19 and 24).

The Group currently does not have interest rate hedging policy.
However, the management of the Group closely monitors its
exposure to future cash flow interest rate risk as a result of change
on market interest rate and will consider hedging changes in market
interest rates should the need arise.

No sensitivity analysis is provided on restricted bank deposits and
bank balances as the management of the Group considers that the
interest rate fluctuation on bank balances are minimal.

Foreign currency risk

Certain bank balances, deposits and other receivables, other
payables, lease liabilities and other borrowings are denominated
in HK$, the currency other than the functional currency of the
respective group entities, at end of the reporting period. Other than
disclosed below, the Group has limited foreign currency exposure as
both sales and costs were denominated in the functional currency of

respective group entities.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management of the Group monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

38.

A MR M E(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2023
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38.

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s HK$ denominated monetary
assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period as
follows:

Investment in a debt instrument EETAEKRE

Bank balances IRITHERR

Deposits and other receivables e REMEYIE
Other payables HoAth FETFRIE

Lease liabilities HEBR

Sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analysis of strengthening 5% in functional currency of the
Company (i.e. RMB) against HK$ resulted in a decrease in post-tax
profit of RMB1,601,000 (2022: RMB63,000) during the year ended
31 December 2023. For a 5% weakening of RMB against HK$, there
would be an equal and opposite impact on the results.

5% is the sensitivity rate used and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange
rates.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and bills
receivables, deposits and other receivables, restricted bank deposits
and bank balances as at 31 December 2023 and 2022. The carrying
amounts of financial assets at amortised cost stated in subheading
of “categories of financial statements” of this note represented the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties.

38.
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2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBFIT
36,248 =
4,679 6,239

966 146
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(1,299) (2,575)
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38.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Trade and bills receivables

At 31 December 2023, the Group had a concentration of credit risk
as the top three trade debtors accounted for approximately 67 %
(2022: 61%) of its total trade receivables. The management of the
Group regularly visits these customers to understand their business
operations and cash flows position and follows up the subsequent
settlement from the counterparties. In this regard, the management
of the Group considers that this credit concentration risk has been
significantly mitigated.

In order to minimise the credit risk on trade and bills receivables,
the management of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the management of the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual debt at the end
of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. The Group applies simplified
approach and always recognises lifetime ECL for trade and bills
receivables on individual basis. Taking into account the financial
condition of the customers and historical settlement pattern with
no history of default in the past and the forward-looking information
(such as future coal price and GDP in the PRC), the management of
the Group considers the trade and bills receivables are at lower risk
under internal credit rating assessment and the probability of default
of the counterparties was low. The Group applied ECL rate of 0.1%
on trade and bills receivables. Thus, the loss allowance provision of
the trade and bills receivables as at 31 December 2023 and 2022
was insignificant. There were no credit-impaired trade and bills
receivables as at 31 December 2023 and 2022. In this regard, the
management of the Group considers that the credit risks on trade
and bills receivables are significantly reduced. The gross carrying
amount of trade and bills receivables as at 31 December 2023 is
RMB789,003,000 (2022: RMB871,550,000).

38.
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38.

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Deposits and other receivables

For deposits and other receivables, the management of the
Group makes periodic collective assessment as well as individual
assessment on the recoverability of other receivables based on
historical settlement records and past experience. The management
of the Group believes that there is no material credit risk inherent in
the Group’s outstanding balance of deposits and other receivables.
For the purposes of internal credit management, the Group uses
past due information to assess whether the credit risk of deposits
and other receivables has increased significantly since initial
recognition. There is no overdue balances on deposits and other
receivables as at 31 December 2023 and 2022. In the opinion of the
management of the Group, the risk of default by the counterparties
is not significant and the Group assesses that the ECL on these
balances are insignificant. Thus, the Group assessed 12m ECL on
deposits and other receivables. The loss allowance provision of the
deposits and other receivables as at 31 December 2023 and 2022
was insignificant. There were no credit-impaired deposits and other
receivables as at 31 December 2023 and 2022. In this regard, the
management of the Group considers that the credit risk on deposits
and other receivables is significantly reduced. The gross carrying
amount of deposits and other receivables as at 31 December 2023 is
RMB67,105,000 (2022: RMB3,628,000).

38.
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38.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Restricted bank deposits/bank balances

The credit risk on restricted bank deposits and bank balances of
the Group is limited because the counterparties are banks with
good reputation and no history of default in the past and no loss
allowance provision for restricted bank deposits and bank balances
was recognised. The Group has limited exposure to any single
financial institution. The Group recognised 12m ECL on restricted
bank deposits and bank balances and the gross carrying amounts of
restricted bank deposits and bank balances as at 31 December 2023
are RMB21,658,000 (2022: RMB17,239,000) and RMB93,712,000
(2022: RMB202,057,000), respectively.

There were no significant increase in credit risk on these financial
assets and credit-impaired financial assets as at 31 December 2023
and 2022.

Other than the credit risk management policy stated above, the
Group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of
asset and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk
on an ongoing basis. To assess whether there is significant increase
in credit risk, the Group compares the risk of default occurring on
an asset at the end of the reporting period with the risk of default
at the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

The Group accounts for credit risk by appropriately providing for
ECL on a timely basis. In calculating the ECL rates, the Group
considered historical loss rates for each category of receivables and
adjusts for forward-looking macroeconomic data.

38.

A MR M E(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B %2023F12A81 B ILFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
iR ISR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B ZE2023F12H31B ILFE
38. Financial Instruments (continued) 38. £@mIAEu@m)
Financial risk management objectives and policies SRR EE B ZERECR (&)
(continued)
Liquidity risk RE)E TG
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected NEBWEK & HE R E BT M TEH
liquidity requirements and its compliance with borrowing covenants BB & & T SR A R 8RB A (40
(if any), to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and BIETER - MERAERREE
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial institutions AR eHEERREEEZESHKIER
in order to meet the liquidity requirements of the Group in both short RREAFERERE  HMmELAER
and long terms. WERRARBSESFF
In order to mitigate the liquidity risk, the Group had prepared cash ARERBDECRER  AEECDHEE
flows forecast for 12 months from end of reporting period and BiREHREFT12 AN RETE
obtained additional banking facilities to maintain sufficient working Al - WEESREIMRITRE - ER
capital to support daily operation. TEMEEES ARTIEETEEE -
The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual TRAMRNEETESHA RN
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables have TERNIEER - ZEREIIRER
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial SEBEENFORERE  Zema
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be BERARMRBEESTERE - TRBEHRE
required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash FERESREMRE o
flows.
Effective Total Total
interest 1-3 412 1-5  undiscounted carrying
rate months months years cash flow amount
=z mz =i AARRE
L yES =R =R ik ikt HHaE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
As at 31 December 2023 12023512A31H
Trade payables BHEMTR NATER 139422 - - 139422 139422
Other payables and accrued charges ~ EMETFUARE T ER
(interest-free) (%8) NIATER 203,342 - - 203,342 223,342
Other payables and accrued charges ~ EHEMFUAREHER (5
(interest bearing) 49 - 4,500 22,500 27,000 23,019
Bank and other borrowings KOREER 53 799 456,673 251,847 716,515 672,070
Lease labiltes i 18 328 986 - 1,314 1,209
371,087 462,159 214347 1,107,593 1,059,152
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38.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

A MR M E(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B %2023F12A81 B ILFE

38. €mI A
SREREE B EREE(#)

nBEz R (&)

Effective Total Total
interest 1-3 4-12 -5 undiscounted carrying
rate months months years cash flow amount
-z nz - RAEERE

ERA= =fAA @A ik REET BHEE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT

As at 31 December 2022 R2022%512A31H
Trade payables BARNTE NATER 109,304 - - 109,304 109,304
Other payables and accrued charges ~ E B FUARE T ER N/ATER 119,330 - - 119,330 119,330
Bank borrowings HER 55 50,389 218411 96,862 365,662 351,000
Lease liabilties L 18 239 1,074 1313 2,626 2,574
Contingent consideration payable FAEARE N/ATER - 395,186 - 395,186 395,186
279,262 614,671 98,175 992,108 977,394

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

Some of the Group’s financial instruments are measured at fair value
for financial reporting purposes. The management of the Company
determines the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair
value measurements.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-observable data
to the extent it is available.

EMTRZAVEE

AEBETERIARMBRENS
BAFEANE - ARRERERTEE
B ERI B ABIBIEAHERE -

a2 FER - AREER ERNE
B LTS A B EE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMEwAME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2023
EZ20235F12A81 B ILFE

38. Financial Instruments (continued)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(continued)

38.

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial liabilities that are measured

at fair value on a recurring basis

Financial liabilities Fair value as at
at FVTPL 31 December
BRATETtEEHE
AEXCeman M2A31BZAFE
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBTT
Contingent = 395,186
consideration
payable
FERTSAKAE

Fair value
hierarchy

DNHEER

Level 3
E=

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements is set out

in note 30.

R T A @@
SWMIE> AFEHE )

0] AEBREHRATEFEZ

=NV S
Valuation
technique Key input
fRER T F @ AEIE
Discounted cash Actual/or
flow method was projected
used to capture revenues and
the present value profits (Note)
of the expected ~ EFX kI8
future economic WS R s )
benefits that will (B3

flow out of the
Group arising from
the contingent
consideration
payable, based
on an appropriate
discount rate.

RIES @RI R E A
BNIRIR @7 A
BERSARES
Rt AEE
Z TR R AR
w2 IRE e

E=MRFEFEZHEREHRN
BfIzE30 -
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38.

39.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)
Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(continued)

(i

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are
not measured at fair value on a recurring basis

The management considers that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair
values.

Share Option Scheme

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 15 November 2018
for the primary purpose of providing incentives to any directors

(including executive directors and independent non-executive
directors), full-time or part-time employees and potential employees
of the Group and any suppliers, customers, consultants, agents and
advisers who the directors of the Company considers, in its sole
discretion, has contributed or shall contribute to the Group (“Eligible
Participant”).

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Share
Option Scheme:

(i)

On and subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme
and the requirements of the Listing Rules, the directors of the
Company shall be entitled to, at its absolute discretion and
on such terms as it deems fit, grant options to any Eligible
Participant.

The maximum number of options in respect of which might
be granted under this Share Option Scheme must not exceed
10% of the aggregate of the shares in issue on the date
the shares commence trading on the Stock Exchange. The
maximum number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted was 160,000,000 shares, respectively 10% of
issued share capital of the Company on the date the shares
commence trading on the Stock Exchange. The overall limit
on the number of shares which shall be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted, and yet to be exercised,
under the Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 30% of the
shares in issue from time to time.

38.

39.

A MR M E(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B %2023F12A81 B ILFE

£RT B @)
SWMIE> AFEHE )
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EHRTAREE S BE T
PN BN 10% o A ped B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
iR ISR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F12 A1 B IEFE

39. Share Option Scheme (continued)

(i

(iv)

The total number of shares issued, and to be issued, upon
exercise of the options granted to each Eligible Participant
(including both exercised, cancelled and outstanding options)
in any twelve months period shall not exceed 1% of the
shares in issue.

The period within which the shares shall be taken up under
an option shall be a period to be notified by the directors of
the Company to each grantee at the time of making an offer,
which shall be determined by the directors of the Company
in its absolute discretion at the date of grant of the relevant
option, but such period shall not expire later than 10 years
from the date of grant of the relevant option.

An option shall remain open for acceptance by the Eligible
Participant concerned for a period of the date on which
the letter containing the offer is delivered to the Eligible
Participant. HK$1 is payable by the grantee to the Company
on acceptance of the offer of the option.

The subscription price shall be such price determined by
the directors of the Company at its absolute discretion and
notified to the Eligible Participant in the offer at the time of
the offer, and shall be no less than the highest of:

a. the official closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant of the relevant option;

b. the average of the official closing prices of the shares
as stated in the daily quotations sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the relevant option;
and

@ the nominal value of a share.

No share options were granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under

the Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2023

and 2022 nor outstanding as at the end of the reporting period.

39.

IR T &l (#)
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(iv)
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40.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

A MR M E(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B %2023F12A81 B ILFE
Movement on Group’s Liabilities arising from 40. RMETHEENEEESE
Financing Activities SE
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from TRAFMAEEREZTDMEENE
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. BEY  BEAeRIFRCEH - F
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash BERBMEENEERBEEREIR
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s REERENAEBEEARERER
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing PO EAREEHHEERENAE
activities.
Interest
included
Dividend Lease Bank in other
payable liabilities borrowings payables Total
SRS
MRS HE8E RATER FEZFIE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTL AREBTTL ARETT ARETTL ARETT
At 1 January 2022 1202251 A1H - 3,826 522,015 - 525,841
Financing cash flows (Note) BERSTE () (49,056) (1,319 644,698 (19,306) 575,023
Discharge of borrowings from factoring of BB E& 5| EiRFRIEENE &
bills receivables upon maturity of bills FER B - - (384,269) - (384,269)
Finance costs recognised BRRBENS - 61 3,522 19,306 22,889
Dividend declared BERRE 49,056 - - - 49,056
At 31 December 2022 2022512318 - 2,574 785972 - 788,546
At 31 December 2022 1202012 A318 - 2,574 785,972 - 788,546
Financing cash flows (Note) BERSTE (M) (178,660) (1,313) 749,127 (24,080) 545,074
Discharge of borrowings from factoring of  EF B 25 EEFRIBENE 1K
bills receivables upon maturity of bills FER B - - (702,746) - (702,746)
Additions of bank borrowings from {RIER RS AR RTIE N
suppliers financing arrangement - - 74,000 - 74,000
Finance costs recognised BRARENA - 38 7,501 24,605 32,144
Dividend declared BEERRE 178,660 - - - 178,660
At 31 December 2023 R20235 12831 B - 1,299 913,854 525 915,678

Note: The financing cash flows represented the payment of dividend,
repayment of lease liabilities, net of repayment of borrowings and
new borrowings raised and interest paid.

izt - RERSRBEKRE  EEHE
EaE  HREEERIIEEN
ARBAFIS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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41.

Particulars of Subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at the end of the

reporting period are as follows:

Name of subsidiaries

WL R &

Directly held:

HERE :

Coal & Mines International
Resources Limited

Indirectly held:
EERE
HongKong Resources

BERDER

Subsidiaries of HongKong
Resources:

BERTE RN B L A]

Jiutai Bangda

ARHE

Guizhou Fu Bangda
Consultancy Services
Co., Ltd

BNE HER AR
BRAF

All the companies comprising the Group have adopted 31 December

Place of
incorporation/
establishment and
kind of legal entity
iy
BR 3 E R
FEERER

BVI, limited
liability company
RERUHS -
BRAA

Hong Kong,
limited liability
company

& ARAR

PRC, limited
liability company

FE - ARAA]

PRC, limited
liability company
RE - BRAE

as their financial year end date.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities during the
year or at the end of the year.

4. MBARFE

LUNNE

Shareholding/equity
interest attributable to
owners of the Company

Issued and fully paid
capital/registered

capital at 31 December

EEITRARE M12B31BMARATE

B/ HMER EEAELRE R

2023 2022

United States 100% 100%
Dollars 10,000

10,0003

HK$1 100% 100%

18T

RMB590,000,000 100% 100%

AR

590,000,000

RMB100,000 100% 100%

AR®100,0007T

RBER - NRBMBERBFE

Principal activities

ITEEK

Investment holding
REPER

Investment holding

REER

Exploration and mining
of coking coal and
coal refinery in the
PRC

RABBETER IR K
FERA R R RS

Management services
support for the
group entities and
investment holding

AEEEREHERER
Bk R AR

AEERAEENARBHERA12H

1B AERBELEH -

B S -

BB A RN F AR FERETEM
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42.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Statement of Financial Position and Reserves

of the Company

Non-current assets
Investment in a subsidiary
Property, plant and equipment

Current assets
Prepayments and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Accrued charges and other payables
Amount due to a subsidiary

Net current liabilities

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

FRBEE
RE—FHMRBAR
LUE 5 T=INE S

RBEE
TR FROR R EoA e KU KIR
RAekHEEEY

RBARG
FERTE A R E MR 5RIR
e —RIB B A AlFkIA

5

A MR M E(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B %2023F12A81 B ILFE

BABEARR R AN B 5

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREET T
388,330 388,330
3 142
388,333 388,472
385 339
3,972 6,162
4,357 6,501
2,596 2,089
283,892 97,357
286,488 99,446
(282,131) (92,945)
106,202 295,527
14,136 14,136
92,066 281,391
106,202 295,527
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR B TSI A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
EZ20235F12A81 B ILFE

42. Statement of Financial Position and Reserves 42. BRI RRAD BlEEE
of the Company (continued) (1)

Movement of reserves of the Company RARREEE

Share Accumulated

premium losses Total
IR E Z5tEE #Et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARMET T AREET T

At 1 January 2022 R2022%F1 811 390,605 (60,546) 330,059
Profit and total comprehensive FREMNREERS B8

expenses for the year - 388 388
Dividend recognised as distribution #3255k 2 %8 (H7E12)

(note 12) (49,056) - (49,056)
At 31 December 2022 72022412 A31H 341,549 (60,158) 281,391
Loss and total comprehensive FABEEREZARSZ R

expenses for the year - (10,665) (10,665)
Dividend recognised as distribution #3255 ik 2 I 8. (H7£12)

(note 12) (178,660) - (178,660)
At 31 December 2023 #R2023F12831H 162,889 (70,823) 92,066

43. Pledge of Assets 43. EEEH
The Group’s bank borrowings had been secured by the pledge of AEEMRITEFBASEEEER
the Group’s assets and the carrying amounts of the respective assets EER  BEEEZREENT

are as follows:

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARET T

Mining rights R 99,960 53,313
Bills receivables FE W ZE 1% 241,784 435,913

341,474 489,226
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Results
Revenue

Profit before taxation
Taxation charge

Profit and total
comprehensive
income
for the year

Profit and total
comprehensive
income for the year
attributable to:

— Owners of the
Company

Assets and liabilities
Total assets
Total liabilities

Net assets

Equity attributable to
owners of
the Company

E 3
Was

B 1 B A
BIAEX

FREA M
2ERALERE

AN 77 RGP A
REEB AL

—ARREEEA

ZA/NEIE/ 2SN
FE{h

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
L FHBEHRE

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A1BLEE

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥EET T AREFT AREFT AREETTT ARETTT
1,715,623 1,784,033 1,541,399 1,402,604 812,145
605,204 855,548 411,428 484,385 309,794
(101,011) (111,593) (109,658) (138,905) (91,773)
504,193 743,955 301,770 345,480 218,021
504,193 743,955 301,770 345,480 218,021
504,193 743,955 301,770 345,480 218,021
As at 31 December
M128318
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREFT AREFT ARETT ARET T
4,329,247 4,080,004 3,237,621 2,675,408 1,677,341
(1,541,071) (1,617,361) (1,469,877) (1,156,280) (467,097)
2,788,176 2,462,643 1,767,744 1,519,128 1,210,244
2,788,176 2,462,643 1,767,744 1,519,128 1,210,244
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SUMMARY OF MINE PROPERTIES

BRIE Y = Al

Locations

Equity interest held by the Group

Mining area (sq.km.)

Number of mineable coal seams

Permitted annual production capacity
(tonnes) (as at 31 December 2023)

Licence holder

Mining right licence validity period

Coal reserve mine life

Resource data under the JORC Code
Summary (as at 31 December 2023)"

Measured resources (kt)

Indicated resources (kt)

Inferred resources (kt)

Reserve data under the JORC Code
Summary (as at 31 December 2023)"

Proved reserves (kt)

Probable reserves (kt)

g

AEEFERE

FREB(EARE)

AHREESE

AT ERE (1) (R2023F
12A318)

FABRFAA

R ER A

RRFENRLSS

BIEJORCRAIMEN S RELE
(R2023%128318)0
FHERES(THE)
THERE(TH)
HEERS(TH)
BIEJORCHAIMENHERE
(R2023%E128318)0
EBHE(TH)
RS (TH)

Hongguo Coal Mine

ALRIFR

Panzhou City
BiMm

100%
3.0225

17

600,000

Jiutai Bangda
ARHiE
January 2019 -
January 2039
2019F1 7 &
203917
Approximately
30 years
#1305

15,860
7,780
13,225

12,052
5,910

Baogushan Coal Mine

BAWLRR

Panzhou City
BIMNm
100%
24736

17

600,000

Jiutai Bangda
ARiE
January 2019 -
January 2039
2019F1A%
203917
Approximately
43 years
#4345

8,950
24,700
7,000

6,803
18,790

Xiejiahegou Coal Mine

HRTRHR

Panzhou City
BNm
100%

1.0135

19

450,000

Jiutai Bangda
AEHE
January 2021 -
September 2039
2021F1/%E
2039F1A
Approximately
20 years

#1205

15,047
10,360

9,167
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The table below sets out the typical quality of the clean coal and middling

coal from Hongguo Coal Mine and Baogushan Coal Mine:

Ash content on a dry basis (%)

Volatile content on a dry and ash free

basis (%)

Total sulfur content on a dry basis (%)

Caking index

Total moisture (%)

Net calorific value on an as received

basis (kcal/kg)

R IR (%)
FOIR N IR R 3 53 (%)

HIRBETR D B E (%)

FEEEH

KD 1B (%)

B FTUR B B R FRME
(FR/F7=)

The table below sets out the typical quality of the clean coal and middling

coal from Xiejiahegou Coal Mine:

Ash content on a dry basis (%)

Volatile content on a dry and ash free

basis (%)

Total sulfur content on a dry basis (%)

Caking index
Total moisture (%)

Net calorific value on an as received

basis (kcal/kg)

ELIRBEIR 7 (%)
718 I IR BEE B (%)

IR D B2 (%)

IR

KD HAE (%)

R FT YR EAER FEVE
(FR/F%)

SUMMARY OF MINE PROPERTIES (Continued)

PREEY) ST ()

TREIIALRIETE B L RREA IR & B

o —AREE

Clean Coal®

e

10.4

31.9

0.8
90.1
10.2

N/A TNE A

Middling Coal®
O

N/A TNiE A
N/A &
N/A TN A
N/A &

N/A N A

3,356

TR SO B BB R R — R E

=

Clean Coal®

BRe
10.4
20.9
0.8
88.0

12.1

N/A TNiE A

Middling Coal®
Higo

N/A i A
N/A N
N/A NiE
N/A N

N/A &

3,309
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SUMMARY OF MINE PROPERTIES (Continued)
BRI ()

Notes:

Q)

@

©)

The resource and reserve data of the Hongguo Coal Mine and Baogushan
Coal Mine are based on the resource and reserve review report provided by
Mr. Edmundo Laporte of Valtech as of 31 December 2023 while the resource
and reserve data of the Xiejiahegou Coal Mine are based on the resource
and reserve review report provided by Mr. Leung Karfai of BAW as of 31
December 2022. The resource and reserve data as of 31 December 2023 of
the Xiejiahegou Coal Mine have been adjusted by the indicated resource data
and the probable reserve data as at 31 December 2022, after deducting the
respective data extracted from the mining activities between 1 January 2023
and 31 December 2023.

The clean coal produced from Hongguo Coal Mine and Baogushan Coal Mine
are mostly 1/3 coking coal whereas the clean coal produced from Xiejiahegou
Coal Mine are mostly coking coal. The above typical quality of clean coal is
based on the average of clean coal delivered to the customers in 2023.

The above typical quality of middling coal is based on the average of middling
coal delivered to the customer in 2023.

There was no exploration activity for the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2023, and that the Group has incurred
approximately RMB771.3 million (2022: approximately RMB666.4
million), being the cost of sales, for the mining production activities
for the year ended 31 December 2023.

i

AREBEBREA LHEES E£2023F12 7
31 B ERE &2 &K T iR #& Valtech
#)Edmundo Laporte %t £ R (EH E R E K
HEBFERESL  MARVEEEEE
2022F 12 A31AMERERFEEERETY
RIEBAWR R =18 5 1R & TR 2 I
SEERMHRESE - AR TEEEEHZ=2023
F12A3BMERERFEEEDRER
2022412 A31 A K5I &R 280K & B
HEZURIEH AR - WMk E202341 A1
A Z2023412 A31 B HEHNFEEEEEH
IR o

AT SR BB o B A LR P AR E M RS KB
D IBERRE - TSN B TE T A E B
BARBARER - LR —RESE
R2023FMEF R NIFEKTHERH -

it —REEER2023F AR R
MRS ESE -

REBREE2023F12 A31 B LFE
WEMIREE - MASEREZ2023
F12ANBILEEERFBEEES
EEHENANODARBITIIAEETT
(20227 : HHARKE666.4EETL) °
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